
March 28, 2008 

Ms. Blanca S. Bay0 
Commission Clerk 
Florida Public Service Commission 
2540 Shumard Oak Blvd. 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-0850 -c- 

RE: Docket No. 060728-GU, Consummation Report of Securities Issued by Chesapeake Utilities 
Corporation 

Dear Ms. Bayo: 

3 
Q 
s 
P 
ge, 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation ("Chesapeake") respectfully files this Consummation Report (original and 

three copies) on the issuance of securities for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, in compliance with 

Rule 25-8.009, Florida Administrative Code. In satisfaction of the Consummation Report requirements, 

Chesapeake sets forth the following information: 

1. On December 26, 2006, the Florida Public Service Commission ("FPSC") issued Order No. 

PSC-06-1061-FOF-GU, which authorized Chesapeake to issue up to 833,836 shares of 

common stock for the purpose of administering Chesapeake's Retirement Savings Plan, 

Performance Incentive Plan, Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan, the conversion 

of Chesapeake's Convertible Debentures, Directors Stock Compensation Plan, and Employee 

Stock Awards Plan. The Order further approved the issuance by Chesapeake of up to $40 

million in secured and/or unsecured long-term debt. The Order also authorized Chesapeake to 

issue up to 3,366,164 shares of common stock and an additional $40 million in secured and/or 

unsecured debt for possible acquisitions. Due to the nature of typical cash stock for 

acquisitions, the $40 million in secured and/or unsecured debt may be initially issued through a 

bridge loan in the form of bank notes or some similar form of short-term obligations. The Order 

provides that the Company can issue short-term obligations in an amount not to exceed $70 

million in support of the bridge financing, subsequently refinanced as unsecured long-term 

debt with an estimated rate of interest of up to 300 basis points above U S .  Treasury rates with 

an equivalent average life. In addition, the Order authorized Chesapeake to issue up to 

800,000 shares of common stock or an equity-linked instrument equivalent in value to 

permanently finance the Company's ongoing capital expenditures program. Chesapeake was 

also authorized to issue up to 1,000,000 shares of Chesapeake preferred stock for possible 
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acquisitions, financing transactions, and other general corporate purposes, including potential 

distribution under the Company’s Shareholder Rights Agreement adopted by the Board of 

Directors on August 20, 1999. Lastly, Chesapeake received authorization pursuant to the 

Order to enter into agreements for Interest Rate Swap Products in an amount, in the aggregate 

not to exceed $40 million. 

The Company’s Board of Directors, on May 2, 2006, authorized the Company to proceed with 

the preparation and filing of a registration statement on Form S-3 for use in connection with a 

shelf registration to issue Company common stock and/or debt securities. On July 5, 2006 the 

Company filed a shelf-registration statement on Form S-3 with the Securities Exchange 

Commission (SEC) to issue up to $40,000,000 in common stock and/or debt securities. As a 

result of filing the shelf-registration statement and the SEC declaring the shelf registration 

effective, the Company would be able to sell portions of the issue over a three-year period, 

subject to filing the required supplements with the SEC. The shelf-registration statement was 

declared effective by the SEC on November 9, 2006. Under the shelf-registration statement, 

the Company sold 600,300 shares of common stock on November 21, 2006. In addition, on 

November 30, 2006, an additional 90,045 shares were sold pursuant to the underwriters’ 

exercise of their over-allotment option in connection with the public offering. The average 

issuance price for the 690,345 shares was $30.10. The equity issuances generated total net 

proceeds of $19.7 million which were used for repayment of the Company’s outstanding short- 

term borrowing. Underwriter commissions and expenses associated with the public offering 

were approximately $777,000 and $304,000, respectively. At the time of the equity issuances 

of the 600,300 and 90,045 shares, the Company was not required to obtain authorization from 

the FPSC since the Company had been pre-approved for the issuance of 800,000 shares. As 

of December 31, 2007, the Company has approximately $20,000,000 remaining under the 

Shelf Registration Statement as previously authorized by the Delaware Public Service 

Commission. 

Of the above-mentioned securities, and for the twelve-month period ended December 31, 

2007, Chesapeake also issued the following: 

2. 

3. 

(a) 29,563 shares of common stock were issued for the purpose of administering 

Chesapeake’s Retirement Savings Plan. The average issuance price of these 



shares was $32.09 per share. Expenses associated with this issuance were 

negligible. 

(b) 10,124 shares of common stock were issued for the Performance Incentive Plan. 

The average issuance price of these shares was $30.89 per share. Expenses 

associated with this issuance were negligible. 

(c) 35,333 shares of common stock were issued for the purpose of administering 

Chesapeake’s Dividend Reinvestment and Direct Stock Purchase Plan. The 

average issuance price of these shares was $32.22 per share. Expenses 

associated with this issuance were negligible. 

(d) 8,106 shares of common stock were issued for the conversion of debentures. 

The average issuance price of these shares was $17.01 per share. Expenses 

associated with this issuance were negligible. 

(e) 5,850 shares of common stock were issued for the Directors Stock 

Compensation Plan. The average issuance price of these shares was $31.38 

per share. Expenses associated with this issuance were negligible. 

(0 350 shares of common stock were issued for the Employee Stock Award Plan. 

The average issuance price of these shares was $29.47 per share. Expenses 

associated with this issuance were negligible. 

4. Schedules showing capitalization, pretax interest coverage and debt interest requirements as 

of December 31, 2007, are attached hereto as Exhibit A. 



5. Except for those agreements provided as Exhibits to this document, copies of all Plans, 

Agreements, registration filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission and Orders of 

the Delaware Public Service Commission authorizing the issuance of the above securities 

have been previously filed with the FPSC under Docket Nos. 060728-GU, 050630-GU, 

030942-GU, 931 112-GU, 961 194-GU, 981213-GU, and 991631-GU, and are hereby 

incorporated by reference. 

6 .  Signed copies of the Opinions of Counsel with respect to the legality of all other securities 

issued have been previously filed with the FPSC as exhibits to the Consummation Reports of 

Securities issued by Chesapeake Utilities, Docket Nos. 931 112-GU, 961 194-GU, 991631-GU, 

041263-GU, and 050630-GU dated April 1, 1994, March 27, 1998, March 29, 2001, March 28, 

2006, and March 29, 2007, respectively, and are hereby incorporated by reference. 

7. A copy of Chesapeake’s most current Form 10-K as filed with the Securities and Exchange 

Commission is attached hereto as Exhibit B. 



We respectfully submit this Consummation Report on the issuance of securities by Chesapeake Utilities 

Corporation, Florida Public Service Commission Docket No. 060728-GU, this 28th day of March 2008. 

Sincerely, 

CHESAPEAKE UTILITIES CORPORATION 

Beth W. Cooper 
Vice President, Treasurer and Corporate Secretary 
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EXHIBIT A 
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CHESAPEAKE UTILITIES CORPORATION 
Capitalization Ratios Actual & Pro Forma as of December 31, 2006 

TYPE OF CAPITAL 

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

COMMON STOCK 

PAID IN CAPITAL 

RETAINED EARNINGS 

ACCUMULATED OTHER 
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

DEFERRED COMPENSATION 
OBLIGATION 

TREASURY STOCK 

PREFERRED STOCK 

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

LONG-TERM DEBT 

FIRST MORTGAGE BONDS 

CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES 

SENIOR NOTES 

OTHER 

TOTAL LONG-TERM DEBT 

TOTAL PERMANENT CAPITAL 

CURRENT PORTION OF LTD 

SHORT-TERM DEBT 

TOTAL CAP I TALlZATlO N 

UNAUDITED 

ACTUAL 
BEFORE ISSUANCE 

PRO FORMA 
AFTER ISSUANCE 

AMOUNT % O F  PROFORMA AMOUNT % OF 
OUTSTANDING TOTAL ADJUSTMENT OUTSTANDING TOTAL 

$3,254,998 

$61,960,220 

$46,270,884 

($334,550) 

$1 ,I 18,509 

($1,118,509) 

$2 

$111,151.552 

$0 

$1,970,000 

$69,000,000 

$80.000 

$71,050,000 

$1 82,201,552 

$7,656,364 

$27,553.941 

1.50% 

28.50% 

21.28% 

-0.1 5% 

0.51 % 

-0.51 % 

o.oo% 

51.12% 

0.00% 

0.91 % 

31.74% 

0.04% 

32.68% 

83.80% 

3.52% 

12.67% 

$217.411.858- 

$43,475 

$3,631,332 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$2 

$3.674.807 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$2 

$2 

$3.674,807 

$2 

($3,674,8071 

$P 
(4 

$3,298,473 

$65,591,552 

$46,270,884 

($334,550) 

$1,118,509 

($1,118,509) 

Q 

$1 14,826,359 

0 

$1,970,000 

$69,000,000 

$80.000 

$71,050,000 

$1 85.876.359 

$7.656.364 

$23,879,134 

$217.411.858 

1.52% 

30.17% 

21.28% 

-0.15% 

0.51 % 

-0.51 % 

o.oo% 

52.82% 

0.00% 

0.91% 

31.74% 

0.04% 

32.68% 

85.50% 

3.52% 

10.98% 

200.00% 

(a) The Company's short-term borrowing continued to increase in 2007 because of its capital expenditure program. 



EXHIBIT A 
PAGE 2 of 3 

CHESAPEAKE UTlLTlES CORPORATION 

Notes to Capitalization, Income and 
Pretax Interest Coverage Schedules 

As of December 31,2007 

The following adjustments have been made to capitalization: 

1. Common Stock - Number of shares (89,326) times par value ($0.4867 per share), with the 
shares issued for the following purposes: 

29,563 shares for the Retirement Savings Plan 
10,124 shares for the Performance Incentive Plan 
35,333 shares for the Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan 
8,106 shares for the conversion of debentures 
5,850 shares for the Directors Stock Compensation Plan 

350 shares for the Employee Stock Award Plan 

2. Additional Paid in Capital - Total cash value less the associated Common Stock amount for the 
following issuances: 

29,563 shares at $32.09 per share 
10,124 shares at $30.89 per share 
35,333 shares at $32.22 per share 

8,106 shares at $17.01 per share 
5,850 shares at $31.38 per share 

350 shares at $29.47 per share 

3. Short-Term Debt - 

Short-term borrowing-continued to increase in 2007 because of the Company’s capital 
expenditure program. However, the short-term borrowing requirement declined as a 
result of the proceeds from the Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan, the 
Retirement Savings Plan, the Performance incentive Plan, the conversion of certain 
debentures, Directors Stock Compensation Plan, and Employee Stock Award Plan. 



EXHIBIT A 
PAGE 3 of 3 

CHESAPEAKE UTILITIES CORPORATION 
Statement of Income and Pretax Interest Coverage 

Actual & Pro Forma for the Twelve Months Ended December 31,2006 (a) 

UNAUDITED 

Annualized Twelve Months 

Statement of Income 

1 Operating revenues 

2 Operating expenses before income taxes 

3 Income taxes (including Deferrals) 

4 Operating Income (1 -(2+3)) 

5 Other Income, Net 

6 Income Before Interest Charges (4+5) 

7 Interest Charges 

8 Income from Continuing Operations (6-7) 

9 Preferred stock dividends 

10 Earnings available to common equity (8-9) 

11 Pretax Interest Coverage ((3+6)/7) 

Actual 
Before 

Issuance 

$231,199,565 

$207,867,628 

$6.999.072 

$16,332,865 

$189,093 

$1 6,521,958 

$5,773.993 

$1 0,747,965 

$0 

$1 0,747,965 

4.07 

Pro Forma 
Adiustment 

$0 

$0 

$79,199 

($79,199) 

a 
($79,199) 

$201,012 

($280,212) 

$0 

($280,212) 

N/A 

Pro Forma 
After 

Issuance 

$231 , I  99,565 

$207,867,628 

$7,078.271 

$16,253,666 

$189,093 

$16,442,759 

$5,975,005 

$10,467,753 

$0 

$1 0,467,753 

3.94 

(a) Excludes discontinued operations. 



Exhibit B 

UNITED STATES 
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 

Washington, D.C. 20549 

FORM 10-K 

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF 
THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

For the Fiscal Year Ended: December 31,2007 Commission File Number: 001-11590 

CHESAPEAKE UTILITIES CORPORATION 
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter) 

State of Delaware 
(State or  other jurisdiction of 

incorporation or organization) 

51-0064146 
(I.R.S. Employer 

identification ho.) 

909 Silver Lake Boulevard, Dover, Delaware 19904 
(Address of principal executive offices, including zip code) 

302-734-6799 
(Registrant's telephone number. including area code) 

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act: 

'Title of each class 
Common Stock - par value per share si.4867 

\ame of each excliange on which recristered 
New York Stock Exchange, Inc. 

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: 
8.25% Convertible Debentures Due 2014 

(Title of class) 

Indicate by clicck mark iftlie registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer. as defined i n  Rule 405 or the Securities Act. Yc.; 1 1. N o  1x1. 
Indicate h> check mark if'the registrant is not required to f i le  reports pursuant to Section I3 o r  Section I5(d)  ol'thc Act. Yes I I. No 1x1. 
lndicatc b) check mark whether the registrant ( I  i has filcd all reports required to hc filcd by Section I3 or  I5 ( d )  ol'thc Sccuritics 
Fhchangc Act of' 19.34 during the preceding I2  months (or ror such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports). 
and ( 7 )  has been sub,icct to such filing requirements fo r  the past 90 da!,s. Yes [ X I .  N o  I 1 .  

Indicate by cliccli mark ifdisclosure ol'dclinquent lilcrs pursuant to Item 405 oi'Regulation S- l i  is not contained herein. and will nc?lbc . -' 
contained. to the best of' registrant's knowledge. in definitive proxy o r  inlbrmation statcments incorporatcd h! rcfkrcnce in Part I l & ~ f '  00 
this I:orni IO-K o r  any amendments to this b'orm I 0 - K .  IX I -... 

f__,  c:3 -2 <w ' 3  
> .  

Indicate by check marh whether the registrant is a largc accclcratcd lilcr. an accclcratcd lilcr. a non-accelerated filer. o r  ii siiidjcr 
reporting company.  Sec the definitions ol'"accc1crated filer." "largc accclcratcd filer'' and "smaller reporting company in K u l c  I2h-3  til' 
the Exchange Act. (Check one): 

I.argc accelerated filer 1 I Accelerated tiler 1x1 Non-accelcrated filer 1 I Smaller Reporzing ('ompan! 1 I 
i 

2. 
Indicate b!. a check mark whether the registrant is a shell compan!' (as  defined in Kulc 1217-3 ol'thc Act) .  Yes I I. Ko 1x1. 
The aggregate market value oi'thc common shares held h! non-affiliates oi'C'hesapcakc L t i l i t i e s  Corporation as ol'.lunc 30. 2007. 
last business day d i t s  most recently completed second fiscal quarter. based on the last trade price o n  that date. as reported b! the ric15 

York Stock Exchange. was approximatel! 6230.9 mill ion. 

As o l  k'cbruary 39. 2008. 6.806.487 shares ofcommoii stock were outstanding. 

, a  I 

- - I  

8 
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DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE 

I'ortions of'the Proxy Statcnicnt h r  the 2008 Annual Mccting ol'Stockholders arc incorporated by rclkrcncc in I k - 1  I l l .  
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PART I 
References in this document to "Chesapeake." *.the Compan) ,'* "we." "us" and "our" mean Chesapeake Utilities 
Corporation and/or its wholl! owned subsidiaries. as appropriate. 

Safe Harbor for Forward-Looking Statements 
Chesapeake Utilities Corporation has made statements in this Form 10-K that are considered to be "forward-looking 
statements" within the meaning ofthe Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These statements are not matters 
of  historical I k t  and are typically identified by words such as. but not limited to. "believes." "expects." "intends." 
"plans." and similar expressions. or future or conditional verbs such as "may." "will." "should." "would." and "could." 
I h e x  statements relate to matters such as customer growth. changes in re\'enues or gross margins. capital expenditures, 
environmental remediation costs. regulatory trends and decisions. market risks associated with our propane operations. 
the competitive position of the Company and other matters. It is important to understand that these forward-looking 
statements arc not guarantees but are sub,ject to certain risks and uncertainties and other important factors that could 
causc actual results to differ materiall!, from those in the forward-looking statements. The factors that could cause actual 
results to differ materiall). from the Compan),'s expectations include. but are not limited to those discussed in Item I A .  
"Risk Factors." 

I _  

ITEM 1. BUSINESS. 

(a) General 
Chesapeake is a diversilied utility company engaged directly or through subsidiaries in natural gas distribution. 
transmission and marketing. propane distribution and wholesale marketing. ad\mced inlimiation services and other 
related businesses. Chesapeake is a Delaware corporation that was formed in 1047. 

C'hesapeahe is composed of' four operating segments: 

.Vu/uru/ Gus The natural gas segment includes regulated natural gas distribution and transmission operations 
and also a non-regulated natural gas marketing opcration. 
/Jro~pu/ic. The propane segment includes non-regulated propane distribution and wholesale marketing 
operations. 
..fdvuIiwd / / 7 f o " 7 / 1  Sc/v ice .~ .  I h e  advanced inlbrniation scr\,iccs segment provides domestic and 
international clients with inliirmation-tcchnoiogy-related business services and solutions for both enterprise and 
e-business applications. 
O//ier.  'l'he other segment consists primarill ol'non-regulated operations that o\\'ri real estate Icascd t o  other 
('ompan). subsidiaries. 

_ .  

e 

(b)Financial Information About Business Segments 
Our natural gas segment accounts for approximatel! X O  percent ol'Chcsapcakc's consolidated operating inconic and 
approximatel! 86 percent ol'thc consolidated net propcrt! plant and equipment. 'I'hc li)llo\ving tablc sliows the si/c 01'  
each oi'our operating segments based on operating income and net propert) ~ plant and equipment. 

Additional linancial ini'ormation h! busincss segment is includcd i n  Itcni X tinder the heading "Notes to Consolidated 
Financial Statcnicnts - Note C ' . "  
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(c) Narrative Description of the Business 

(i)(a) Natural Gas 
Chesapeake's natural gas segment performs natural gas distribution. transmission and marketing services for its 
customers. Chesapeake operates its natural gas distribution services as three divisions: Delaware. Maryland. and 
Florida. which are based in their respective service territories. These three divisions serve approximately 62.900 
residential. commercial and industrial customers in central and southern Delaware. Maryland's Eastern Shore and 
parts ofFlorida. The Company's natural gas transmission subsidiary. Eastern Shore Natural Gas Company ("Eastem 
Shore" or "ESNG"). operates a 370-mile interstate pipeline system that transports gas from various points in 
Pennsylvania to the Company's Delaware and Maryland distribution divisions. as well as to other utilities and 
industrial customers in southern Pennsylvania. Delaware and on the Eastern Shore of Maryland. The Company. 
through its subsidiary, Peninsula Energy Services Company. Inc. ("PESCO"). also provides natural gas supply and 
supply management services in the State of Florida. 

Natural Gas Distribution 
Chesapeake distributes natural gas to residential. commercial and industrial customers in central and southern 
Iklaware.  the Salisbury and Cambridge areas on Maryland's Eastern Shore. and parts ofFlorida. These activities arc 
conducted through three utilit! divisions. one in Delauare. another in Maryland and a third in Florida. 

Delaware and /Marviand. Chesapeake's Delaware and Mavland distribution divisions serve approximately 
48.490 customers, of which approximately 48.290 are residential and commercial customers purchasing 
gas primarily Ihr heating and cooking use. Thc rcmaining 700 customers are industrial. 1-or the year 2007. 
operating revenues and deliveries by customer class were as follow: 

Dclivcr ics 

l M M r f \ l  

I.'/oridu. Thc Florida division distributcs natural gas to approximately 14.750 residential and conimcrcial 
and 100 industrial customers in the 13 C h m t i e s  ofPolk .  Osceola. I-lillsborough. (iadsden. Gilchrist. Inion. 
I lolmcs. Jackson. Iksoto.  S w a n n c c .  I,ibcrt! . M'ashingtoii and Citrus. 1,'or the !'car 7007. operating 
rcvcnues and delivcries b\ firm transportation customer class were as h l l o ~  : 

Opcrnting H ~ V C ~ ~ I I C S  I)ul IVP rich 

(MM rfs) (' l 'hll  I I S  >I lldh ) 

- - c ,  1 f l7 .77~1 5 I, Res iden1 ia l  $ 3.611 I _  ,,> 
(ummercial  2 ',?L! 2h'W I no7 .53~1  I X ' h  

Industr ia l  4 7u .I 2 0  u J,478.'1? ~ 7 7 " "  

101:11 h I !  2 x 5  5 X54 .?1< !  l(l(!l'>,, 

Natural Gas 'Transmission 
'l'hc ('ompan! ' s  \vholly-owncd transmission subsidiar! . I,.astcrii Shore. o\&ns and operates an interstate natural gas 
pipeline and provides open-access transportation scwiccs lbr  afiiliatcd and non-affiliated local distribution 
companies through an integrated gas pipclinc systcm extending from southcastcrn I'cnnsylunia through 1)clawarc to 
its terminus on the Eastern Shore of'Maryland. I'astern Shore also prwidcs swing transportation service and contract 
storage scrviccs. For  the ycar 2007. operating re\'cnucs and deliveries by customer class \vert as hl low: 
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Operating Revenues Deliveries 
(Thousands)  (MMcf's) 

Local Distribution Companies 9; 19.324 83 % 10.01 1.290 5 2% 
industrial 3.076 1 3 9'0 7.793.128 4 09" 

Commercial  856 45" 1,542.061 8% 
T ota I $ 23.286 I0040 19346.479 100%, 

During 2005, Chesapeake formed a wholly-owned subsidiary. Peninsula Pipeline Compan),. Inc. ('.PIPECO"), to 
provide industrial customers in the State of Florida natural gas transportation service as an intrastate pipeline. 
PIPECO did not have any actikity in 2005 and 2006. On August 27. 2007. PIPECO filed with the Florida PSC its 
petition f'or approval of a natural gas transmission pipeline tariff' in order to establish its operating rules and 
regulations. The Florida PSC approved the petition at its December 4.2007 agenda conference. PlPECO will begin 
marketing its services to potential industrial customers in 2008. 

hatural Gas Marketing 
PESCO, a wholly-owned subsidiarq . competes with regulated utilities and other unregulated third-party marketers to 
sell natural gas supplies directly to coniniercial and industrial customers in the State ofFlorida with the ob,iectivc of  
earning a profit through competitively-priced contracts. I'ESC'O does not own or operate any natural gas 
transmission or distribution assets. The gas that PESCO sells is delivered to retail customers through assets owned 
b!, the Company's regulated Florida distribution system and intrastate pipeline and four other regulated utilities' 
local distribution systems. PESCO bills its customers through the billing services of' the regulated utilities that 
deliver the gas. or directly. through its own billing capabilities. 

At December 3 I .  2007. f'ESCO served approximately I.500 commercial and industrial natural gas customers. and as 
ol'.lanuarg 2008. PESCO began of'l'ering similar services to customers in thc State ol'llelawarc. 

(;as Siipplics, h'irm 7i.an.spor~atioti ur7d .S/orupe ('upaci /I '  

I he Company believes that the availability of' gas supplq and transportation to its Delaware. Maryland and Florida 
divisions is adcquatc under existing arrangements to meet the anticipated needs oftheir. customers. The f'oliowing 
discussion provides a summary o f  the gas supplies and pipeline transportation and storage capacities. stated i n  
dekatherms (.'Dts"). available to each ol'the Compan!.'s natural gas operations. 

I .  

The Delaware and Maryland divisions have both firm and in tcrruptible transportation service contracts \I i th  Ibur 
interstate "open access" pipelines. including Eastern Shore. a \vholl!~-o\vned subsidiar!y Thc divisions arc direct11 
interconnected with I'astcrn Shore. and arc contracted with interstatc pipclines upstream ol'lkistcrn Shore. 'l'hcsc 
inters tm pipelines include Transcontinental Gas Pipe Line Corporation ("Transco"). Columbia (ias 'Transmission 
Corporation ("('olunibia") and ('olumbia (iull '  ' I  ransmission ('ompan) ( Y r u l l " ) .  None 01'  the upstream scr\,icc 
providers is an affiliate of' thc ('ompan!. The di\,isions use their lirin transportation suppl) resources to nicct a 
signilicant percentage ol'thcir projected demand requirements. in  order to meet the difl'crencc between lirm suppi! 
and lirni demand. the divisions purchase natural gas supplies on the spot market h n i  various suppliers. This gas i s  
transported by the upstream pipclines and delivered to thc divisions' interconnections with [.:astern Shore. T h e  
divisions also hmc  the caphilit! t o  tisc propane-air peak-shwing to supplement o r  displace thc spot niarkct 
purchases. 
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D e l m a r  e. 
Firm transportation 
capacity maximum Firm storage capaciw 

peak-day daily maximum peak-day 
Pipeline deliverability (Dts) daily withdrawal (Dts) Expiration 

Transco 11,356 6.407 Vanous dates between 2008 and 2013 

Coluinbia 3.460 8.224 Vanous dates betweeii 2010 and 2020 

G L I I  f 880 Expires 111 2009 

Eastern Shore 57.639 4,146 Vanous dates between 2008 and 2022 

The Delaware division currently has contracts with several suppliers for the purchase of  firm natural gas 
supply in the amount of' its capacity on the Transco and Columbia pipelines. The Delaware division also 
has contracts for firm peaking gas supplies to be delivered to its system in order to meet the differential 
between the Delaware division's capacity on Eastern Shore and capacity on pipelines upstream of Eastern 
Shore. These supply contracts provide a maximum firm daily entitlement of'44.566 Dts. delivered on the 
l'ransco. Columbia. and/or Gulf systems to Eastern Shore for redelivery to the division under firm 
transportation contracts. These gas supply contracts have various expiration dates. and quantities may v a p  
ffom day-to-day and month-to-month. 

iMurvland. 
Iqirm transporta tion 
capacity maximum Firm storage capacify 

peak-day daily maximum peak-day 
I'ipelinc deliverability (Dts) daily withdrawal (Dts) Expiration 

5.800 2.450 Vanous dates between 20 I 2  and 20  I3  'I rancso 

I .700 

590 

3.6(\? Vanous dates between 2014 and 201 X 
Espires i n  2009 

i:astcrii Shore I').42X 2.300 Vanous  dates betweell 2008 and 2 0 2 2  

'l'hc Maryland division currently has contracts with several suppliers for thc purchase of' firm natural gas 
supply in thc amount of its capacity on the Transco and Chlurnbia pipclincs. The Mary land division also 
has contracts for lirm peaking gas supplies to be delivered to its system in order lo meet the differential 
bctwccn thc Maryland division's capacit!, on Eastern Shore and capacity on pipelines upstream ol ' lk te rn  
Shore. These suppl!, contracts provide a maximuni firm daily entitlcnient 01' 12.816 Dts. dclivercd on thc 
Transco. Columbia. and/or G u l f  systems to Eastern Shorc Ihr redeliver! to the division under firm 
transportation contracts. 'I'hese gas supply contracts have mrious expiration dates. and quantities ma! v . 
from day-to-da! and month-to-month. 

h'loridu / lh i~ io t i  
Thc Florida division has firm transportation service contracts with Florida (ias Transmission C'onipan! 
("F(iT*') and (iulf'strcani Natural Gas System (*'(iulf'streani"). Pursuant to a program approved b!' the 
I:lorida Public Service Commission ("Florida PX"'). all oi'the capacity under these agreements has been 
released to various third parties. including I'CSCO. h d c r  icrma of thcsc capacit! rclcasc agrcenicnta. 
Chcsapcakc is contingently liable to b'(i'1' and (iuIf8trcam should an!' parr! that acquired the capacit! 
through rclcasc f'ail to pa! li)r thc service. 

Chesapeake's contracts with FG'I includc: ( a )  a contract. isliich cxpircs in 201 0. I i ~ r  dail! lirni 
transportation capacity oi23.5 19 IXs for the months ofLovenibcr through April. capacit! 01'20. I23  Ills 
I'or the months ol'Ma!' through Scptcmbcr. and capacitg oi'23.105 I)ts fbr October: and ( b )  a contract 1i)r 
dail! firm transportation capacit!, 01'  I .OOO Ilts dail! . which cxpircs in 201 5 .  ('hesapeakc's conrraci with 
(iullstrcani is fo r  dail! lirni transportation capacity of' 10.000 Dts and cxpircs iii 2022. 
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Lastern Shore 
I:astern Shore has three contracts with Transco for a total of 7.292 Dts of firm peak day storage 
entitlements and total storage capacity of 288.003 Dts. which expire in 2013. Eastern Shore has retained 
these firm storage senices  in order to provide swing transportation service and firm storage service to 
those customers that have requested such service. 

PESCO 
PESCO currently has contracts with ConocoPhillips and British Petroleum (.'BP") for the purchase of firm 
natural gas supplies. The ConocoPhillips contract. which provides a maximum firm daily entitlement of 
15.000 MMBtus. and the BP contract. which provides a maximum firm daily entitlement of 10,000 
MMBtus. expires in May 2008. PESCO is currently in the process of obtaining and reviewing supplq 
proposals from suppliers and anticipates executing agreements prior to the expiration of the existing 
contracts. 

The Company believes that the availabilit) of gas suppl:, and transportation to its operations is adequate under 
existing arrangements to meet the anticipated needs of its customers. 

Commtitioti 
See discussion on competition in Item 7 under the heading "Management's Discussion and Anallsis - 
Competition." 

Rules und Hewlation 
Chesapeake's natural gas distribution divisions are sub.ject to regulation b!, the Delaware. Maryland and Florida 
f'ublic Service Commissions ("PSCs") with respect to various aspects oftheir business. including the rates for sales 
and transportation to all customers in each respective,jurisdiction. All ofchesapeake 's  firm distribution sales rates 
arc sub,icct to gas cost recovery mcchanisms. which match revenues with gas supply and transportation costs and 
normally allow full recovery ol'such costs. Ad.justments under these mechanisms. which arc limited to such costs. 
require periodic filings and hearings with the state regulaton, authorit!, hat'ing jurisdiction. 

Eastern Shore is sub,ject to regulation by the Federal Energ!. Regulatory Commission ("FERC") as an interstatc 
pipelinc. The FERC regulates the terms and conditions of service and the rates Eastern Shore can charge lhr its 
transportation and storage services. 

Management monitors the achieved rate o f  return of its distribution divisions and f:astern Shore in order to ensure 
tiinel! filing ol'ratc cases. 

f2eKuiuton l-',oceedinzs 
See discussion 01'  regulator), activities in ltcni 7 under tlic heading "Management's Discussion and Analysis - 
Regulatory. Activities." 

Seasonaiin, of .4hturai Gus Revenues 
Revenues l'roin the Company's residential and conimci I natural gas distribution activitics arc afl'ccted b! seasonal 
variations in weather conditions. Weather conditions directly influence the volume ol'natural gas sold and deli\iered. 
Specificall!, customer demand substantial11 increases during the winter months. when natural gas is uscd liw 
heating. Accordingly. the volumes sold lbr this purpose arc direct11 affected by thc scvcrit) ol'winter ucathcr and 
can vary substantially from year to year. Sustained warmer-than-normal temperatures will tend to result in reduccd 
use ofnatural gas. while sustained colder-than-normal temperatures will tend to result in greater use. 'rhc ('ompan! 
measures the rclativc impact ol'wcathcr by using an accepted dcgrec-day methodolog). Dcgrec-day dat 
estimate amounts ol'cncrgy required to maintain comfirtablc indoor tcmpcraturc Ict~cIs based o n  cach da 
temperature. A degree-da! is the measure of the variation in the weather based on the extent to which the average 
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daily temperature (from 1O:OO am to 1O:OO am) falls below 65 degrees Fahrenheit. Each degree oftemperature belou 
65 degrees Fahrenheit is counted as one heating degree-da! . Normal heating degree-days are based on the most 
recent IO-year average. 

In efforts to stabilize the level of net revenues collected from customers. the Company has begun to request Weather 
Normalization Adjustments ("WNA") in its rate filings with the Maryland and Delaware PSCs. A WNA mechanism 
is a billing d jus tment  mechanism that is designed to eliminate the effect of deviations from average seasonal 
temperatures on utility net revenues. On September 26.2006. the Maryland PSC approved the Company's proposal 
to implement a revenue normalization mechanism for its residential heating and smaller commercial heating 
customers. 'The Company also has a pending rate case application filed with the Delaware PSC. requesting among 
other things. to implement a WNA billing mechanism. For further discussion ofthese matters. refer to the discussion 
of regulatory activities in Item 7 under the heading "Management's Discussion and Analysis - Regulatory 
Activities ." 

(i)(b) Propane 
Chesapeake's retail propane distribution group consists of: ( 1 )  Sharp Energ). Inc. ("Sharp Energ),"). a wholly- 
owned subsidiary of Chesapeake. ( 2 )  Sharpgas. Inc. ("Sharpgas"). a wholly-owned subsidiary of Sharp Energ\,. and 
( 3 )  Tri-County Gas Co.. Inc. ("Tri-County"). a wholly-owned subsidiary of Sharp Energy. The propane wholesale 
marketing group consists 01' Xeron. Inc. ("Xeron"), a wholly-owned subsidiap of Chesapeake. 

Propane is a form of liquefied petroleum gas. which is typically extracted from natural gas or separated during the 
crude oil refining process. Although propane is a gas at normal pressure. it is easily compressed into liquid form for 
storage and transportation. I'ropanc is a clean-burning fuel. gaining increased recognition for its environmental 
superiorit). safety. efficiency. transportability and ease of' use relative to alternative forms o f  fossil l'uels. I'ropanc is 
sold primarilj, in suburban and rural areas. which are not served by natural gas distributors. 

Propane Distribution 
During 2007. our propane distribution operations served approximately 34. IO0 propane customers i n  central and 
southern I>elawarc. the Eastern Shore of Maryland and Virginia. southeastern Pennsylvania and parts ofFlorida 
and delivered approximately 29.8 million retail and wholesale gallons of propane. The propane distribution 
busincss is affected b! many factors. such as seasonality. the absence o f  pricc regulation. and competition 
among local providers. 

1:or thc year 2007. operating revenues and nunibcr o f  customers Ibr o u r  Dclmarva and I:lorida propane 
distribution operations MWC as Ibllou: 

Propane Wholesale Marketing 
In  M a l  1908. ('hcsapcakc acquired Xcron. a natural gas liquids trading conipan!, located in I louston. ' I  csas. 
Xeron markets propane to large. independent petrochemical companies. resellers and retail propanc companics 
in the southeastern Lnitcd States. The propanc wholesale markcting business is affected b!' wholesale pricc 
volatility and suppl! levels. Additional inlormation o n  Xeron's trading and \vliolcsalc marketing acti\,itics. 
market risks and thc controls that limit and monitor Xcron's I is included in Item 7 undcr the heading 
"Managemcn['s Discussion and Analysis Markct Risk." 
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The Company's propane distribution operations purchase propane primarily from suppliers. including major oil 
companies. independent producers ofnatural gas liquids and from Xeron. Supplies ofpropane froni these and other 
sources are readily available for purchase by the Company. 

The Company's propane distribution operations use trucks and railroad cars to transport propane from refineries. 
natural gas processing plants or pipeline terminals to its bulk storage facilities. The Company's Delmarva-based 
propane distribution operation owns bulk propane storage facilities with an aggregate capacity of approximately 2.4 
million gallons at 42 plant facilities in Delaware. Maryland and Virginia, located on real estate that is either owned 
or leased. The Company's Florida-based propane distribution operation owns three bulk propane storage facilities 
with a total capacity of 66.000 gallons. From these storage facilities. propane is delivered primarily by "bobtail" 
trucks. owned and operated by the Company, to tanks located at the customers' premises. 

Xcron docs not own phl sical storage facilities or equipment to transport propane: howe\ er. it contracts for storage 
and pipelinc capacity to facilitate the sale of propane on a wholesale basis. 

Co mpe ti tion 
See discussion on competition in Item 7 under the heading "Management's Discussion and Analysis - 
Competition. '' 

fZale.7 atid ftepulation 
The propane distribution and wholesale marketing activities are not sub.ject to any federal or state pricing regulation. 
'l'ransport operations arc subject to regulations concerning thc transportation of hazardous materials promulgated b! 
the Federal Motor Carrier Wet! Administration within the linited States Deparlmcnl o f  Transportation and 
enforced b! the various states in which such operations take place. Propane distribution operations are also subject 
to state sal'ety regulations relating to "hook-up" and placement of propane tanks. 

The Company's propane operations are sub,ject to operating hazards normally associated with thc handling. storage 
and transportation o f  combustible liquids. such as the risk of  personal injury and propert!' damagc caused by lire. 
'I'hc Company carries general liability insurance in the amount of $35 million. but there is no assurance that such 
insurance will be adequate. 

Seasonaiik of  Proaane Kevei1ue.v 
Revenues from the Company's propane distribution sales activities are affected bq seasonal variations in weathcr 
conditions. Weather conditions directly influence the volume 01' propane sold and delivered to customers: 
spccifical I!. customers' demand substantiall) increases during the winter months when propane is uscd for heating. 
Accordingl!,. the propane volumes sold for this purpose arc directl? al'fcctcd h! the severity of winter weather and 
can var! substantiall!, from year to year. Sustained warmer-than-iiormal temperatures will tend to  result in reduced 
propane LISC. while sustained coldcr-than-normal tcmpcraturcs will tend to result i n  greater use. 

(i)(c) Advanced Information Services 
Chesapeake's advanced information services segment consists ol'BravePoint. Inc. ("Brawl'oint" ). a wholly-owned 
subsidiar!, o f the  Compan!.. Bravcl'oint. hcadquartcred in Uorcross. Georgia. provides domestic and international 
clients with information-technologq-related business services and solutions for both enterprise and c-busincss 
applications. 

C'ompe~i/ iot i  
See discussion on competition in Item 7 under the heading "Managemenl's Discussion and Analysis - 
Competition . " 
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(i) (d) 0 ther Subsidiaries 
Skipjack. Inc. ("Skipjack"). Eastem Shore Real Estate. Inc. and Chesapeake Investment Company are wholly-owned 
subsidiaries of  Chesapeake Service Company. which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Chesapeake. Skipjack and 
Eastern Shore Real Estate, Inc. own and lease office buildings in Delaware and Maryland to affiliates of 
Chesapeake, Chesapeake Investment Company is an affiliated investment company registered in Delaware. During 
the quarter ended September 30. 2007. Chesapeake decided to close its distributed energy services subsidiary. 
Chesapeake OnSight Services. LLC. 

(ii) Capital Budget 
A discussion of capital expenditures bq business segment and capital expenditures for environmental remediation 
facilities is included in Item 7 under the heading "Management's Discussion and Analysis - Liquidit! and Capital 
Resources." 

(iii) Employees 
As of December 3 I .  2007. Chesapeake had 445 employees. including 185 in natural gas, 134 in propane and 85 in 
advanced information services. The remaining 4 1 employees are considered general and administrative and include 
ollicers of  the Company. treasury. accounting. internal audit. information technology. human resources and other 
administrative personnel. 

(iv) Financial Information about Geographic Areas 
All o f t h e  C'ompan) 's material operations. customers. and assets occur and are located in the United States. 

(d) Available Information 
As a public company. Chesapeake files annual. quarterly and other reports. as well as its annual proxy statement and 
other information. with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC"). The public may read and copy an! 
materials that the Company files b i t h  the SEC at the SEC's Public Reference Room at 100 F Street. N.E. 
Washington. IIC 20549-5546: and the public ma) obtain information on  the operation oi'thc Public Reference Room 
by calling the SEC at I-800-SEC-0330. 

The S I X  also maintains an Internet site that contains reports. pro nd information statements and other information 
regarding the Company. The address of the SEC's Internet website is www.sec.go\'. Chesapeake makes available. 
lice ofcharge. on  the Companq ' s  Internet website. its Annual Report on Form I O - I i .  Quartcrl) Reports on Form I O -  
Q. Current Reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports. as soon as reasonably practicable after such 
reports arc elcctronically filed with or furnished to the SEC. The address oi' Chesapeake's Internet website is 
www.chpk.com. The content ol'this website is not part ol'this report. 

Chesapeake has a Business ( ~ o d c  ol'lcthics and ('onduct applicable to all cmployccs. ollicers and directors and a Codc 
ol'rlthics for Financial Officers. Copies oi'thc Husincss Code of Ethics and Conduct and the Financial Officer ('odc 
of' Ethics are available on its internet website. Chcsapeakc also adopted C'orporatc (iovcrnancc Guidelines and 
Charters ibr the Audit Committee. Compensation ('ommittec. and (iovcrnancc Committcc ol'thc Hoard ol'Directors. 
each of' which satisfies the regulatory requirements established by the SIX' and the he& York Stock E 
("NYSE"). The Board of Directors has also adopted "Corporate Governance (iuidelines o n  Director Independence." 
which conform to the NYSE listing standards o n  director independence. Each ofthcsc documents also is available on 
Chesapeake's Internet website o r  ma) bc obtaincd b) writing to: ('orporatc Sccrctar!,: c / o  ('hcsapcakc I :tilitics 
Corporation: 909 Silver Lake Blvd.: Dover. DE 19904. 

If Chesapeake makes an) amendment to, o r  grants a waiver of. an) provision of the Business Code ol'Ethics and 
Conduct o r  the 1,'inancial Officer Code of I-;thics applicable lo its principal executive ol'liccr. principal linancial 
officer. principal accounting officer o r  controller. the amendment or waiver will be disclosed within five business 
days on  the C:ompan),'s Internet website. 
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ITEM I A .  RISK FACTORS. 

The following is a discussion of the primary factors that ma). affect the operations and/or financial performance of the 
regulated and unregulated businesses of Chesapeake. Refer to the section entitled "Managemenf 's Discussion and 
Analysis ofFinancial Condition and Results of Operations " under Item 7 of this report for an additional discussion of 
these and other related factors that affect the Company's operations and/or financial performance. The financial. 
operational, regulatory and legal. and environmental factors that affect the operations and/or financial performance ofthe 
Company include: 

Financial Risks 

Inability to access capital markets may impair our future growth. 
W e  rely on access to both short-term and longer-term capital markets as a significant source of liquidit) for capital 
requirements not satisfied by the cash flow from our operations. Currently. $65 million of the total $90 million ofshort- 
term lines of credit utilized to satisfy our short-term financing requirements are discretionary. uncommitted lines of 
credit. We  utilize discretionary lines of credit to reduce the cost associated with these short-term financing requirements. 
We arc committed to maintaining a sound capital structure and strong credit ratings to provide the financial flexibility 
needed to access the capital markets when required. However. i fwe  are not able to access capital at competitive rates. 
our ability to implement our strategic plan. undertake improvements and make other investments required for our future 
growth may bc limited. 

A downgrade in our credit rating could adversselJ, affect our access to capital markets. 
Our abilit\ to obtain adequate and cost effective capital depends on our credit ratings. which arc greatly affected bq our 
subsidiaries' linancial performance and the liquidity of financial markets. A downgrade in our current credit ratings could 
adverselj affect our access to capital markets, as well as our cost ofcapital. 

Debt covenant.s may impact financial condition if'triggered. 
Our long-term debt obligations contain financial covenants related to debt-to-capital ratios and interest-covcragc ratios. 
Failure to comply with any ofthese covenants could result i n  an event ofdel'ault which. if not cured o r  waived. could 
result in the acceleration ofoutstanding debt obligations or the inability to borrow under certain credit agreements. An!, 
such acceleration would cause a material adverse change in Chcsapeakc's financial condition. 

A change in economic conditions and interest rates ma.p adverse!v affect our results of operations and cash flows. 
A downturn in the economies ofthe regions in which wc operate. which wc cannot accurately predict. might advcrsel) 
a fkc t  our abilit!, to increase our customer bases and cash Ilows at the same rates by which the! have grown in the reccnt 
past. Further. an increase in interest rates. without the recover) of' the higher cost of debt in the sales andior 
transportation rates we charge our utilit! customers. could adversely affect future earnings. An increase in short-term 
interest rates would negativel!, a l l k t  o u r  results 01' operations. which depend on short-term borrowing to linancc 
accounts receivable and storage gas inventories. and to temporarily linance capital expenditures. 

inflation may impact our results of operations, cash ,flows and,finun cia1 position. 
Inflation affects the cost of supply. labor. products and services required l'or operations. maintenancc and capital 
improvements. Q'hile the impact ofinflation has rcmaincd low in reccnt ycars. natural gas and propanc prices arc subjecl 
to rapid fluctuations. To help cope with the cll'ects ol'inflation on our capital investments and returns. wc seck ratc rclicl' 
from regulatory commissions lor regulated operations and closcl!, monitor the returns o f  our unrcguiated business 
operations. There can be no assurance that w e  will be able to  obtain adequatc and timely rate reliefto offset thc cffects 01' 
inflation. '1.0 compensatc for fluctuations in propanc gas prices. wc ad,just our propane sclling prices to the cstent allowed 
by the market. However. there can be no assurancc that we will be able to increase propanc sales prices sufficient11 to 
compensate fully for such fluctuations in the cost ol'propanc gas to us. 

Operational Risks 
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Fluctuations in weather may adverseiv affect our results of operations, cash jlows andfinancial condition. 
Our utility and propane distribution operations are sensitive to fluctuations in weather. and weather conditions directly 
influence the volume ofnatural gas and propane sold and delivered by our utility and propane distribution operations. A 
significant portion of our utility and propane distribution operation revenues is derived from the sale and deliverq of 
natural gas and propane to residential and commercial heating customers during the five-month peak heating season 
(November through March). If the weather is warmer than normal. we sell and deliver less natural gas and propane to 
customers. and carn less revenue. In addition, hurricanes or other extreme weather conditions could damage production 
or transportation facilities. which could result in decreased supplies of natural gas and propane, increased supply costs 
and higher prices for customers. 

The amount and availabili?y of natural gas and propane supplies are difficult to predict: a substantial reduction in 
available supplies could reduce our earnings in those segments. 
hatural gas and propane production can be affected by factors outside of our control. such as weather and refiner) 
closings. I f w e  are unable to obtain sufficient natural gas and propane supplies to meet demand. results in those segments 
ma) be adversely affected. 

We re!p on having access to interstate natural gas pipelines' transportation and storage capacity; a substantial 
disruption or lack of growth in these services muit impair our ability to meet customers' existing and future 
requirements. 
In order to meet existing and future customer demands for natural gas, we must acquire both sufficient natural gas 
supplies and interstate pipeline and storage capacity to serve such requirements. We must contract for reliable and 
adequate delivery capacity for our distribution sj'stems while considering the dynamics of the interstate pipeline and 
storage capacity market. our own on-system resources. as well as the characteristics of our markets. Chesapeake. along 
with other local natural gas distribution companies and other participants in the industry. have raised concerns regarding 
the future availability of additional upstream interstate pipeline and storage capacit! . This is a business issue which wc 
must continue to  manage as our customer base grows. 

Natural gas and propane commodity price changes may affect the operating costs and competitive positions of our 
natural gas and propane distribution operations, which muji adverseiv affect our results of operations, cash jlows and 
financial condition. 
Natursll Gas. Over the last liiur years. natural gas costs have increased signilicantl) . due LO increased demand. and h a w  
hccomc more volatile. due to cvcnts such as the hurricane activity in 2005. which reduced the natural gas available lfom 
the GulfCoast region and causcd a spike in natural gas prices. Higher natural gas prices can result in significant increases 
in the cost of gas billed to customers. I h d e r  our regulated gas cost recovery mechanisms. an increase in the cost o f  gas 
due to an increase in the price of thc  natural gas commodit!, generally has no immediate effect on our revenues and net 
income. Our net income. however. ma! bc reduced b l  higher expenses that wc ma! incur I'or uncollectablc customer 
accounts and by lower volumes of' natural gas deliveries as a result ol'customcrs reducing their consumption. 'I'hcreforc. 
increases in the pricc of' natural gas can affect our operating cash flows and thc competitiveness of  natural gas as an 
energy sourcc. 

JJroDanc. Propane costs arc sub,jcct to volatile changes as a result ofproduct supply or other market conditions. including 
economic and political i'actors a lkct ing crude oil and natural gas suppl!, or pricing. Such cost changes can occurrapidl!, 
and can affect profitabilit),. 'l'herc is no assurance that we will be ablc to pass on  propane cost incrcases I'ull>~ o r  
immediately. particularly when propane costs incrcase rapidl!,. Thereforc. avcrage retail sales prices can vary 
significantly from ycar to year- as product costs lluctuate in response to propane. fucl oil. crude oil and natural gas 
commodity market conditions. In addition. in periods of sustained higher commodity prices. declines in retail sales 
volumes. because of reduced consumption and increased amounts of uncollectible accounts m a j  adversely affect net 
income. 
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Operating events affecting public safeg and the reliability of Chesapeake's natural gas distribution system could 
adverse& affect the results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. 
Chesapeake's business is exposed to operational events. such as major leaks. mechanical problems and accidents, that 
could affect the public safety and reliabiliQ of its natural gas distribution systems. significantly increase costs and cause 
loss of customer confidence. The occurrence of any such operational events could adversely affect the results of 
operations. financial condition and cash flows. If Chesapeake is unable to recover from customers. through the regulatory 
process. all or  some of these costs and its authorized rate o f  return on these costs. this also could adversel! affect the 
results of operations. financial condition and cash flows. 

Because we operate in a competitive environment, we may lose customers to competitors. 
In our natural gas marketing business. we compete with third-party suppliers to sell gas to commercial and industrial 
customers. In our gas transportation and distribution operations. our competitors include interstate pipelines. when 
distribution customers are located close enough to the transmission company's pipeline to make direct connections 
economicall>, feasible. 

Our propane distribution operations compete with several other propane distributors. primarily on the basis of service and 
price. emphasizing reliability of service and responsiveness. Some of our competitors have significantly greater 
resources. The retail propane industry is mature. and we foresee modest growth in total demand. Given this limited 
growth. \4e expect that year-to-year industc volumes will be principally affected by weather patterns. Therefore. ou r  
ability to grow the propane distribution business is contingent upon execution ofour  community gas systems strategy to 
capture additional market share and to employ ser\,ice pricing programs that retain and grow our customer basc. An> 
failure to retain and grow# our customer base would have an adverse effect on our results. 

Thc propane wholesale marketing operation competes against various marketcrs. man) 0 1  which havc significantl! 
greatcr resources and are able to obtain price o r  volumetric advantages. 

Thc advanced information services business faces significant competition tioni a number of' larger competitors having 
substantially greater resources available to them to compete on the basis oftechnological expertise, reputation and price. 

Changes in techno1og.y may adverse!,i afect  our advanced information services segment's results of operations, crish 
j lows andfinancial condition. 
O u r  advanced information services segment participates in a market that is characterized b!, rapidly changing technolog! 
and accelerating product introduction cycles. The success of our advanced information services segment depends upon 
our abilitj to address the rapidly changing needs o f  our customers by developing and supplying high-qualit!,. cost- 
cffcctivc products. product enhancements and services. o n  a timcly basis. and b!, keeping pace with tcchnoiogical 
developments and emerging industry standards. There is no assurance that we will be ablc to keep up with technological 
advancements ncccssar) to keep o u r  products and services compctiti\ c .  

Our energy marketing subsidiaries have credit risk and credit requirements that mu.v adverse[,? affect our results of' 
operations, cash ,flows and financial condition. 
Xeron. our propane wholesale and marketing subsidiarj . and PESCO. our natural gas marketing subsidiar:, , extend credit 
to counter-parties. While w e  believe Xcron and PI:SCO utilize prudent credit policies. each of thcsc subsidiaries is 
exposed tn the risk that it ma) not be able to collect amounts owed to it. It'the counter-part!, to such a transaction fails to 
perform. and an! underlying collateral is inadcquatc. we could experience linancial Iosscs. 

Xeron and PESCO arc also dependent upon the a\ ailabilit! ofcredit to buy propane and natural gas lilr resale o r  to tradc. 
I f '  financial market conditions decline generall!. or thc financial condition of' these subsidiaries o r  o f  thc Conipan!. 
declines. then the cost ol'credit available to these subsidiaries could incrcasc. li'crcdit is no t  available. o r  ii'crcdit is more 
costly. our results ol'opcrations. cash flows and financial condition ma!' be advcrscl! af'fcctcd. 
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Our use of derivative instruments may adverse& affect our results of operations. 
Fluctuating commodity prices may affect our earnings and financing costs. Our propane distribution and wholesale 
marketing segments use derivative instruments, including forwards. swaps and puts. to hedge price risk. In addition, we 
have utilized in the past. and may decide, after further evaluation. to continue to utilize derivative instruments to hedge 
price risk for our Delaware and Maryland divisions. as well as PESCO. While we have a risk management policy and 
operating procedures in place to control our exposure to risk, if we purchase derivative instruments that are not properly 
matched to our exposure. our results of operations. cash flows. and financial conditions may be adversely affected. 

Changes in customer growth ma-s affect earnings and cash flows. 
Chesapeake‘s ability to increase its gross margins in its regulated and propane businesses is dependent upon the new 
construction housing market. adding neMJ industrial customers and conversion of customers to natural gas or propane 
from other fuel sources. Slowdowns in these markets could adversely affect the Company‘s gross margin in its regulated 
or propane businesses. its earnings and cash flows. 

Chesapeuke ’s businesses are capital intensive, and the costs of capital projects ma-v be signipcant. 
Chesapeake‘s businesses are capital intensive and require significant investments in internal infrastructure projects. Our 
results of operations and financial condition could be adversel> affected if we are unable to manage such capital projects 
effectively or if we do not receive full recovery of such capital costs in future regulator! proceedings. 

Regulatory and Legal Risks 

Regulation of the Company, including changes in the regulatorv environment, ma?? adverse!,, affect our results of 
operations, cash frnws andfinancial condition. 
The Delawarc. Maryland and Florida I’SCs rcgulatc our natural gas distribution opcrations: Eastern Shore. our natural 
gas transmission subsidiary. is regulated by the FERC. These commissions set the rates that wc can charge customers for 
services sub,ject to their regulatoryjurisdiction. Our ability to obtain timel!, future ratc increases and rate supplements to 
maintain current rates of return depends on regulatory approvals. and there can be no assurancc that our divisions and 
Eastern Shore will be able to obtain such approvals or maintain currently authorized rates of’return. 

We are dependent upon construction of new facilities to support ,future growth in earnings in our natural gas 
distribution and interstate pipeline operations. 
Construction of new fac es required to support future growth is sub.iect to  various regulatory and developmental risks. 
including but not limited to: ( a )  our ability to obtain necessary approvals and permits by regulatory agencies on a timcl! 
basis and on terms that are acceptable to us; ( b )  potcntial changes in federal. state and local statutes and regulations. 
including cnvircinmental requirements. that prevent a pmject from proceeding or increase the anticipated cost ol’thc 
pro,ject: ( c )  inability to acquire rights-or-way or land rights on a timcl! basis on tcrms that arc acceptable to us: td)  lack oi’ 
anticipated future growth in available natural gas suppl!,: and ( e )  insufficient custonier throughput conimitnients. 

We are su bject to operating and litigation risks that mu-y not hejufitl!v covered by insurance. 
Our operations arc sub,iect to the operating hazards and risks normally incidental to handling. storing. transporting and 
delivering natural gas and propane to end users. As a result. we are sometimes a def‘endant in legal proceedings arising in 
the ordinar?. course of business. We maintain insurance policies with insurers in such amounts and with such coveragcs 
and deductibles as we belie\<c arc rcasonablc and prudent. Thcrc can be no assurance. h o w \  er. that such insurance ~ v i l l  
be adecluatc to protect us tfoni all material expenses related to potential Iuturc claims l’or personal in,iui? and propert! 
damage or that such levels of insurance will be availablc i n  the I‘uturc at economical prices. 

Environmental Risks 
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Costs of compliance with environmental laws may be significant 
We are sub,ject to federal. state and local laws and regulations governing environmental qualitj and pollution control. 
These evolving laws and regulations may require expenditures over a long period oftime to control environmental effects 
at current and former operating sites. including former manufactured gas plant sites that w e  have acquired from third 
parties. Compliance with these legal obligations requires us to commit capital. If we fail to comply with environmental 
laws and regulations, even if such failure is caused b> factors beyond our control. we may be assessed civil or criminal 
penalties and lines. 

To date. we have been able to recover. through regulatory rate mechanisms. the costs associated with the remediation of 
former manufactured gas plant sites. However. there is no guarantee that we will be able to recover future remediation 
costs in the same manner or at all. A change in our approved rate mechanisms for recover) of environmental remediation 
costs at former manufactured gas plant sites could adverselj affect our results of operations. cash flows and financial 
condition. 

Further. existing environmental laws and regulations ma! be re\,ised. or new laws and regulations seeking to protect thc 
environment may be adopted and be applicable to us. Revised or additional laws and regulations could result in 
additional operating restrictions on our facilities or  increased compliance costs. which ma>' not be full> recoverable. 

ITEM 1 B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS. 

None. 

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES 

(a) General 
The Company owns offices and operates facilities in the following locations: Pocomokc. Salisbur! . C'amhridgc and 
Princcss Anne. Maryland: Dover. Scaford. I,aurel and Georgetown. Delaware: and Wintcr I - h e n .  I:lorida. Chcsapcakc 
rents of'ficc space in Do\ er and Ocean V i w .  Dclaware: Jupiter and Lecanto, I:Iorida: Chincotcaguc and BclIc I-lavcn. 
Virginia: Easton and Salisbury. Maryland: Honcjj Brook and Allenlowti. Pennsylvania: Houston. Tcsa 
Georgia. I n  general. the Company believes that its properties are adequate for the uses for which the! are employed. 

(b) Natural Gas Distribution 
Chesapeake owns over 1.033 milcs 01' natural gas distribution mains (together with related ser\,ice lines. meters and 
regulators) locatcd in its Delaware and Maryland service areas and 741 miles ol'natural gas distribution mains (and 
related equipment) in its central Florida service areas. Chesapeake also owns I'acilities in Delaware and Maryland. which 
i t  uses fir propanc-air injection during periods ol'pcak demand. 

(c) Natural Gas Transmission 
I.,astem Shore owns and operates approximately 370 miles ol'transniission pipclincs. cstcnding from suppi> interconnects 
at I'arkcsburg, I'cnns!,l\'ania: Dalcvillc. Pennsylvania: and I-lockcssin. Dclaivarc. to approsimatcl!' 78 delivery points in 
southeastern I'cnnsylvania. Delaware and the eastern shorc ol'blaryland. 

(d) Propane Distribution and Wholesale Marketing 
The company's Delmarva-based propane distribution operation owns hulk propane storage facilities. with an aggregate 
capacity of approximatel!, 2.4 million gallons. at 42 plant facilities in Ilclawarc. Mar!. land and Virginia. located on real 
estate that is either owned or leased. The Conipan!.'s Fiorida-based propane distribution operation owns threc bulk  
propane storslge Fslcilitics with a total capacity of' 66.000 gallons. Xeron docs not  own physical storagc facilities or 
equipment t o  transport propane: however. it leases propane storagc capacit!, and pipel inc capacit!,. 
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

(a) General 
The Company and its subsidiaries are currently involved in various legal actions and claims arising in the normal course 
of  business. The Company is also involved in certain administrative proceedings before various governmental agencies 
concerning rates. In the opinion of management. the ultimate disposition of these current proceedings will not hake a 
material effect on our consolidated financial position. 

(b) Environmental 
See discussion of environmental commitments and contingencies in Item 8 under the heading "Notes to Consolidated 
Financial Statements -Note M." 

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS. 

None 

ITEM 4A. EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT. 

Set forth below are the names. ages. and positions ofexecutive officers ofthe registrant at December 3 I .  2007. with their 
rcccnt business experience. The agc of each officer IS as o f the  date of  filing this report. 

John R. Schimkaitis (age 60) Mr. Schimkaitis is President and Chief Executive Officer of Chesapeake and its 
subsidiaries. Mr. Schimkaitis assumed the role of Chief Executive Officer on January 1. 1999. He has served as 
President since 1997. Mr. Schimkaitis previously served as President and Chief Operating Officer. Executive Vicc 
President. Senior Vice President. C h i d  Financial Officer. Vice President. Treasurer. Assistant Treasurer and 
Assistant Secretary of  Chesapeake. 

Michael P. McMasters (age 49) Mr. McMasters is Senior Vicc President and ChiefFinancial Ofticer of Chesapcakc 
Utilities Corporation. He was appointed Senior Vice President in 2004 and has served as Chief Financial Officer 
since December 1996. He has previously held the positions o f v i c e  President. Treasurer. Director of Accounting and 
Rates. and C'ontrolier. From 1992 to May 1994. MI.. McMasters \vas employed as Director of'Operations Planning 
for F:quitablc Gas Compan!. 

Stenhen C'. Thompson (age 47) Mr. Thompson is President ofEastern ShorcNatural Gas Company and Senior Vice 
President of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation. Prior to becoming Senior Vice President in 2004. he served as Vicc 
President of' Chesapeake. He has also served as Vice President. Director of Gas Supply and Marketing. 
Superintendcnt of  Eastern Shore and Regional Manager for the Florida distribution operations. 

Beth W .  CooDer (age 41) Ms. Coopcr is Vice President. Treasurer and Corporatc Secretary ofChcsapeakc Utilities 
Corporation. Ms. Coopcr has served as Corporate Secrctar! since .lull 1005. Shc pre\ iousl\, served as Assistan1 
'l'reasurer and Assistant Secretar!,. Director ol'lntcrnal Audit. Director of Strategic Planning. Planning Consultant. 
Accounting Manager for Non-regulated Operations and 'l'rcasury Analyst. Prior to  joining Chesapeake. she was 
employed as an auditor with l-:rnst & Young's I<ntrepreneurial Serb ices (;roup. 

S. Robcrt Zola (age 5 5 )  Mr. Zola,joincd Sharp I3ncrgy in August 2002 as I'residcnt. Prior ro,ioining Sharp Energ),. 
Mr. Zola most recent/\ served as hortheast Regional Manager of' Synergl Cias. n o m  Cornerstone MLP. in 
Philadelphia. PA. During his 27-year career in thc propanc industr!. Mr. Zola also . tcd and succcssfull~ 
developed Bluestreak Propane. in Phoenix. A%. which was ultiniatcl!' sold to k'errcll Cias. 
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PART II 

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER 
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES. 

(a) Common Stock Price Ranges, Common Stock Dividends and Shareholder Information: 
The Compan) ' s  Common Stock is listed on  the N e b  York Stock Exchange ("NYSE") under the symbol "CPK." The 
high. Ion and closing prices of Chesapeake's Common Stock and dividends declared per share for each calendar quarter 
during the years 2007 and 2006 were a s  follows: 

Dividends 
Declared 

Quarter Ended High Low Close Per Share 

.March 31 $ 31.10 $ a.85 s 30.94 s 0.290 

September 30 3 7.25 28.00 33.94 0.295 

2007 

June 30 3 5.58 29.92 34.24 0.29s 

December 31 3 6.38 29.59 31.85 0.295 

2006 
March 3 I S; 32.47 9; 29.97 S; 31.24 9; 0.285 
.Imc 30 31 20 27.90 30.08 0.290 

Dcceinber 3 I 3 1.31 29.10 30.65 0.290 
September 30 3 5.65 29.5 I 30.05 0.290 

Dividends arc payable at the discretion ofour  Board of Directors. Future payment ofdkidends.  and the amount ofthesc 
dividends. will depend on our financial condition. rcsults ol'opcrations. capital requirements. and othcr factors. W e  sold 
no securities during the year 2007 that were not registered under the Securities Act of 1933. as amended. 

Indentures to the long-term debt ol'the rompan!! contain various restrictions. Thc niost stringent restrictions state that thc 
(ompan!, must maintain equit! o f  at least 40 percent oi'total capitalization and the pro-i'ornia fixed charge coverage ratio 
must be at least 1.5 times. Thc C'ompanq was in compliance with thcsc restrictions and othcr debt covcnants during 2007. 

At Dcccnibcr .3 I .  2007. thcrc wcre 1 .Wl sharcholders ol'rccord ol ' thc  C'onimon StocL. 
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(b) Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer 
The following table sets forth information on purchases by or on behalf of Chesapeake of shares of its Common Stock 
during the quarter ended December 3 1.2007. 

T o t a l  T o t a l  N u m b e r  o f s h a r e s  M a x i m u m  N u m b e r o f  
N u m b e r o f  Ave rage  P u r c h a s e d  as P a r t o f  S h a r e s  T h a t M a y  Y e t  Be  

S h a r e s  P r i c e  Pa id  P u b l i c l y  A n n o u n c e d  P u r c h a s e d  U n d e r  t h e  
P e r i o d  P u r c h a s e d  p e r  Share  P lans  o r  P r o g r a m s  (2) P l a n s  o r  P r o g r a m s  (2) 

October  1 ,  2007 
through October  3 1 ,  2007 (1 )  

through November  3 0 ,  2007 

throuoh December  31 .  2007 

November  1 ,  2007 

December  1 ,  2007 

490 $34.10 

0 $0 00 

0 $0.00 

Tota I 490 $34.10 0 0 
~ ~ ~~ ~~~ ~~ 

Chesapeake purchased shares of stock on the  open market  f o r t h e  purpose of reinvesting the d iv idend o n  deferred 
s tock units held in the Rabb i  Trust accounts fo r  certain Senior Executives u n d e r t h e  Deferred Compensat ion Plan 
The Deferred Compensat ion Plan is d iscussed further in Note K to the Consol idated F inancia l  Statements 
quar ter  490 shares were purchased through the  reinvestment of dividends on deferred stock units 

During the 

Except  for the purpose described in Foo tno te  (1 )  Chesapeake h a s  no publicly announced  p lans  o rp rog rams  to 
repurchase its shares 

,' , 

Discussion of compensation plans of Chesapeake and its subsidiaries. for which shares ofChesapeake common stock are 
authorized for issuance. included in the portion of the Proxy Statement captioned .'Equity Compensation Plan 
Inlbrniation" to be filed not later than March 3 1. 2008. in connection with the Company's Annual Meeting to be held o n  
Ma! I .  2008. is incorporated herein by reference. 

The chiel' executive officer's annual certification regarding thc Compan),'s compliance with the NYSE's corporate 
governance listing standards was submitted to the KYSE o n  May 29. 2007. 

(C) Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Common Stock Performance Graph 
The following stock Performance Graph compares cumulative total shareholder return on a hypothetical investment in the 
Company's common stock during the five fiscal years ended December 3 1.2007. with the cumulative total shareholder 
return o n  a hypothetical investment in both ( i )  the SBI' 500 Index and ( i i )  an industr!, index consisting of 14 companics 
in the lidward Jones Natural Cias Distribution Group. a published listing ol'sclectcd gas distribution u t  
Company's I'erformancc Graph for the previous year included all but  one 01' these samc companies in addition to 
seventeen other companies. The Company chose to usc the Edward Jones Natural Gas Distribution Group as its peer 
group this year fbr performance mctrics comparison to  coincide with the compensation Committee's decision to use this 
index ol'companics to evaluate the ('ompan) ' s  results in connection with issuing long-tcmi awards to executive officers 
under the new long-term performance plan. 

'The lburleen companies in the Edward Jones Natural Cias Distribution Group industry index includc: ,401, Resources. 
Inc.. Atmos Energy Corporation. Chesapeake IJtilities Corporation. Coming Natural Cias Corporation. Delta Natural (ias 
Compan! . Inc.. Energj West. Inc.. EnergySouth. Inc.. The Laclede Group. Inc.. Ncu  .Icrsc! Rcsourccs Corporation. 
Northwest Natural Gas <'ompan!. Piedmont Natural Gas ( '0. .  Inc.. R(iC' Resources. Inc.. South Jersc!, Industries. Inc. 
and WGL Holdings. Inc. The Compan! excluded SCMCO Energy. Inc. l h n i  its comparison due to its rccent acquisition 
by Cap Rock I-lolding Corporation. 

The comparison assumes $100 was invested o n  December 3 1 .  2002 in the Companl ' s  common stock and in each of thc  
foregoing indices and assumes reinvested dividends. 'I'hc comparisons in the graph below arc based o n  historical data and 
arc not intended to forecast thc possible futurc perfbrmancc of the C'ompan!,'s Common Stock. 
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Stock Performance 
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2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 
Chesapeake $100 $148 $1 58 $189 $1 96 $21 1 
Industry Index $100 $120 $141 $152 $180 $202 
S&P 500 $100 $128 $1 42 $149 $1 72 $1 82 
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA 

Forthe Yean Ended December 31, 2007 2006 (3) 2005 

Omrating (in thousands of dollars) "' 
Revenues 

Natural gas $1 81,202 $170.374 $166.5 82 
Propanc 62,83 8 48.576 48.976 
Advanced informations systems 15,099 12.568 14.140 
Other andeliminatiom (853) (31 8) (2 13) 

Total revenues $258,286 $231.200 $229.4 85 

Operating income 
Natural gas 
Propane 
Advanced informations systems 

s22,485 $1 9.73 3 $1 7.236 
4,498 2.534 3.209 

836 76 7 1.1 97 
Other andeliminations 295 298 2 79 

$21.921 Total opcrating income S28,114 $23.332 

Nct incomc from continuing operations S13.218 $1 0.74 8 $10.699 

Assets /in of  d o w  
Cross property. plant and equipment 
Net property. plant and equipment ( 2 1  

.rota[ assets ('I 

Capital expenditures ( I i  

$352 $3 8 $325.836 $280.345 
S260,423 $240.82 5 $20 1.5 04 
s381.551 S325.5X5 $29 5.9 80 
$30,342 $49.154 $33.423 

Canitali7ation (in thousands of dollars) 
Stockholders' equity $1 19,576 $ 1  11.152 $84.7 57 
Long-term debt. net oi'current mtur i t ia  63,256 71.050 58.991 
I'otal capitalization $182,832 $182.202 $143.748 

Current portion of long-tcrm dcbt $7,656 $7.65 6 $4.929 

Total capitalization and short-tcmi financing $236,152 $2 17.41 2 Y; 184.1 50 
Short-term debt 45,664 27.554 35.482 

tnoimts iycludc the results ofc~str ibi t tc i  eiierm a t i d  WLIICI seiv iccs dic t(1 their tccl ca~ iai to d i w m t i n u d  iipcrtiti 011s 'I'lic ( 'o inp~tny  

closed i t s  dismbutrd eriayv operation it1 2007 411 tissets o l 'a l l  ol'thc water hurtncsscs were sold in  2M14 and 2 0 0 3  

Statci i ic t i r  o i '~ i t ianc ia l  , \ccoununp Stmidarc1 ( A S " )  14.3 u n s i i d u p t e d  i n  tticycni 2 0 0  I .  IlwcIoru. SbAS 143 w a s n o t  appllciiblc liirtlicvaith pi ior to2 l lU l  

1 5 R  w e r  adopted in die vcar 20O6 t t ietc lb ic.  the) werciiol appltcable liir !he w a r s  pr ior t i i  2MlO (7 1 
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2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 

$68.770 
41 So0  41.029 29.238 35.742 3 1.780 25.199 23.377 
12.427 12.578 12.764 14.104 12.390 13.53 1 10.331 

$124.246 $1 10.247 $93.588 $107.4 18 $101.138 $75.63 7 

(2 18) (2 86 1 (334) (1 13) (131) (14) (15) 
$177.955 $163.568 $135.256 $157.151 $145.177 $1 14.353 $102.463 

$1 7.091 $16.653 $14.973 $1 4.405 $1 2.798 $10.388 $8.820 
2.364 3.875 1 .052 913 2.135 2.622 965 

3 87 6 92 343 517 336 1.470 1.3 16 
335 3 59 23 7 3 86 816 495 4 85 

$20.177 $2 1,579 $16.605 $16.221 $1 6.085 $14.975 $1 1.586 

$9.686 $1 0.079 $7.535 $7.341 $7.665 $8.372 $5.329 

$250.267 $234.919 $229.12 8 $21 6.9 03 $I  92.925 $ 1  72.068 $15 2.991 
$177,O53 $1 67.872 $1 66.846 $161.014 $13 1.466 $1 17.663 $104.266 
$241.938 $222.058 $223.72 1 $22 2.229 $21 1,764 $1 66.958 $145.029 

$17.830 $1 1.822 $13.836 $26.293 $22.057 $21.365 $12.5 16 

$77.962 $72.939 $67.350 $67.517 $64.669 $60.71 4 $5 6.3 56 
66.190 69.416 73.408 48.409 50.921 33.777 37.597 

$144.152 $142.3 55 $1 40.758 $ 1 1  5.926 $1 15.590 $94.49 1 $93.953 

$2.909 $3.665 $3.93 8 $2.686 $2.665 $2.665 $5 20 
5.002 3.5 15 10.900 42.1 00 25.400 23.000 I 1.600 

$152.063 $149.535 $1 55.596 $160.7 12 $ 143.655 $120.156 $106.073 
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Forthe Years Ended December 31, 2007 2006 ('' 2005 

Common Stock Data and Ratios 
$1.96 $1.78 $1.83 Basic eamings per share from continuing operations 

Diluted eamings per share from continuing operations ( I '  $1.94 $1.76 $1.81 

U! 

Return on average equity from continuing operations ( I !  1 1 .s % 11.00/0 13.2% 

Common equity / total capitalization 65.4% 61.0% 59.0% 
Common equity / total capitalization and short-term financing 50.6 YO 51.1% 46 .Oo/o 

Hook value per share SI 7.64 $1 6.62 $14.41 

Market price: 
High 
Low 
Close 

$37.250 $35.650 $35.780 
$28.000 $27,90 0 $2 3.600 
$31.850 $30.650 $30.800 

Average number of shares outstanding 
Shares outstanding at year-end 
Registered common shareholders 

(:ash dividends declared per share 
Dividend yield (annualized) (2' 

Payout ratio from continuing operations ( t ' " l  

6,743,OM 1 6.032.462 5.836.463 
6,777,410 6.688.084 5.883.099 

1.920 1.978 2.026 

$1.18 $1.16 $1 . I 4  
3.7% 3.8% 3.7% 

60.2 %I 65.2Oh 62.3% 

-a 
Customers 

Natural gas distribution and transmission 
Propane distribution 

62,884 59.132 54.786 
34,143 33.282 32.1 17 

Volumes 
Natural gas deliveries (in MMCF) 
Propane distribution (in thousands ofgallons) 

34.820 34.32 I 34.981 
29,785 24.243 26. I78 

Hcating degree-days (Iklmarva Peninsula) 
Actual HDD 
IO -year average tIDD (normal) 

4,504 3.93 1 4.792 
4,376 4.372 4.436 

Propmc bulk storagc capacit), ( i n  thousands ol'gallons) 2,441 3.31 5 2.1 15 

445 43 7 4 23 ( 1 1  'I otal cmployees 

""I'hcsc amounts otcludc the  rcsuI& or distributed cncrb? and water surviccs due to their rcclassificiltion to disconttnuui oprat ions Thc("npany 
closed its distnbuted e n a g y  cipration in 2007 All a s s c ~ s  of' all of the  walcr husin 

'"Dividend yield (annualized) is  calculated by multiplying the fourth quarter dividcn 
dividing that amount by  the closing common stock pricc at Dccemher 3 1 

AS 1?3R and SFAS I S X  doptcd in thc year 200h thcrcfnrc. Ihcv wcrc not applical>lc f'or thc years prior 1 0  ?(WIh 

" 'The  payout ratio from continuing operations is calculated by  dividing cash dividends declared per sharc 
if 'orthe vear) by basic carnings per sharc fiom continuing op ra t tons  
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20 04 2003 2002 20 01 2000 1999 1998 

$1.68 $1 30  $1.37 $1.37 $1.46 $1.63 $1.05 
$1.64 $1.76 $1.37 $1.35 $1,43 $1.59 $1.04 

12.8Yn 14.4% 11.2% 11 190 12.2% 14.3% 9 .7% 

54.1% 51.2% 47.8% 58.2% 55,Y% 64.3yo 60.0% 
51.3% 48.8% 43.3% 42.0% 45.0% 50.5% 53.1% 

$1 3.49 $12.89 $12.16 $12.45 $12.21 $1 1.71 $11.06 

$27.550 $26.700 $21.9Y0 $1 9.900 $1 8.875 $19.813 $20.5 00 
$20.420 $1 8.400 $16.500 $17.375 $1 6.250 $14.875 $1 6.500 
$26.700 $26.050 $18.300 $1 9.800 $18.625 $18.375 $1 8.3 13 

5.735.405 5.610.592 5.489 .424 5.367.433 5 2 4  9.439 5.1 44.449 5.060.3 28 
5.778.9 76 5.660.594 5.537.71 0 5.42 4.9 62 5 2 9  7.443 5186.546 5.09 3.7 88 

2.026 2.069 2.130 2.171 2.166 2.212 2.27 1 

$1.12 $1.10 $1.10 $1. 10 $1 .07 9; 1.03 $1.00 
4.2% 4.2% 6.0% 5.6% 5.8% 5,7So 5 , 5 %  

66.7% 61.10/b 80.3% 80.390 73.3% 63.296 9 5 .2%0 

50.878 47.649 45.133 42.741 40.854 39.02 9 37. I28 
34.888 34.894 34.56 6 35.530 3 5.56.; 35.267 34.1 I3 

31.430 29.375 27.935 27.264 3 0.830 27.383 21.400 
24.979 25.147 21.185 23.080 2 8.469 27.788 2 5.9 70 

4.5 53 4.7 15 4.16 I 4.368 4.730 4.082 3.704 
4.3xo 4.409 4.393 4.446 4.350 4.40Y 4.493 

2.045 2. 195 2.151 1.Y58 1.928 1.926 1.890 

4 20 439 45 5 458 47 1 46 0 43 1 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis 

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

INTRODUCTION 

This section provides management's discussion of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries, 
with specific information on results of operations and liquidity and capital resources. I t  includes management's 
interpretation of' our financial results. the factors affecting these results. the major factors expected to affect future 
operating results and future investment and financing plans. This discussion should be read in conjunction with our 
consolidated financial statements and notes thereto. 

Several factors exist that could influence our future financial performance, some of which are described in Item I A  
above. "Risk Factors." They should be considered in connection with evaluating forward-looking statements contained in 
this report. or otherwise made by or on behalf of us since these factors could cause actual results and conditions to differ 
materially from those set out in such forward-looking statements. 

EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW 
Chesapeake is a diversified utility company engaged directly or through subsidiaries in natural gas distribution. 
transmission and marketing. propane distribution and wholesale marketing. advanced information services and other 
rclatcd businesses. 

The Company's strategy is focused on growing earnings from a stable utility foundation and investing in related 
businesses and services that provide opportunities for returns greater than traditional utilit), retums. The key elements of 
this strategy includc: 

e 

m 

executing a capital investment program in pursuit oforganic growth opportunities that generate retums equal to 
or grcatcr than our cost of capital; 
expanding the natural gas distribution and transmission business through expansion into ncu geographic areas 
in our current servicc territories: 
expanding the propane distribution business in existing and new markets through leveraging our community gas 
systcm services and our bulk delivery capabilities: 
utilizing the Company's cxpertisc across our various businesses to improve overall pcrforniancc: 
enhancing marketing channels to attract new customers: 
providing reliable and responsive customer service to  retain existing customers: 
maintaining a capital structure that enables the Company to access capital as needed: and 
maintaining 11 consistent and conipet i t ix  dividend for shareholders. 

In  2007. net incomc increased 26 percent as the Company earned $13.2 million in net income. or $1.04 per share 
(diluted). when compared to the net income o f 9 ; l O . j  million. or $1.72 per share (diluted). earned in 2006. Overall. 
operating income in 2007 increased $4.8 million. o r  20 percent. from 2006. The increasc in operating income was 
partiall!, oflsct b! an iiicrcasc o l ' $ X I  6.000. or 14 percent. in intcrest expcnsc and higher incomc taxcs of$I  .6 million. or 
13 percent. 
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managemeizt uses gross margin in measuring its business units 'performance and has iiistoricailii ana!vzed and reported 
gross margin information pubIic(v. Otizer companies m q  calculate gross margin in a different manner. 

ODerating Income 
A strong year-over-year increase in operating income for 2007 was attained from the Compan) 's natural gas, propane, 
and advanced information services business segments. 

Percentage 
(In thousanh) 2007 2006 Change Change 
Natural gas S 22,485 $ 19.733 9; 2.752 14% 
Pro pane 4,498 2.534 1.964 7 8% 
Advanced information services 836 761 69 9% 
Other & eliminations 295 298 ( 3 )  - I %  
1 otal operating income s 28,114 $ 23.332 $ 4.782 100% 

The natural gas segment benefited from the additional transportation capacity contracts implemented b) Eastern Shore. 
continued customer growth from the distribution operations, rate increases. and the impact of'colder temperatures on thc 
1)clmarva Peninsula that were 15 percent colder in 2007 than in 2006. The propane segment benefited from the colder 
temperatures on  the Delmarva Peninsula and also from the volatility in wholesale propane prices experienced in 2007. 

Key financial and operational highlights for fiscal 5 ear 2007 include the following: 

New transportation capacity contracts implemented b) Eastern Shore in Novembcr 2006 providcd for 26.200 
Dts ol'lirm transportation capacity per day and contributed $3.1 million of additional gross margin in 2007. 

O n  August 1 1. 2007. Eastem Shore received authorization from the FERC to commence construction of a 
portion ofthe Phasc I I  facilities (approximately 4 miles) of thc 2006-2008 Expansion I'ro,iect. These additional 
facilities. which were completed and placed in service on November I .  2007 provide for 8.300 Dts ofadditional 
firm capacit), per day generating annualized gross margin ofS1.2  million. 

The base rate incrcasc that the Company received from the Maryland PSC o n  September 26. 2006. ror o u r  
Maryland natural gas operations. contributed $693.000 of additional gross margin in 2007. 

Effective September I .  2007. the FERC authorized Eastern Shore to commence thc billing ol'incrcased rates 
agreed to in a settlement with its customers, which the F IXC i'ormall), approved in January 2008. 'l'hcsc 
increased rates provided f i ~ r  an additional S563.000 of gross margin in 2007. 

O n  August 21. 2007. the Delaware PSC' authorized the Company to implement teniporaq rates with its 
custonicrs. sub,jcct to refund. pending thc completion ol' full cvidentiar!' hearings and a final dcci sion b! the 
Delaware P X ' .  

Customer growth in the natural gas and propane busincsses remained strong. with the Iklmarva and I'lorida 
naiural gas distribution operations registering scven and iivc percent incrcases in residential customers. 
rcspcctivel),. and the Delmarva Community Gas Sl'stcms ("CGS") generating a 22 percent increase in propane 
d is tri but ion cus to m crs . 

For the year cnde'd Ilccembcr 3 I .  2007. thc ('ompan! generated $25.7 million in operating cash attributed to  net 
inconic of' S 13.2 million and S; 12.5 mi l l i on  in net cash ikon1 other opcraiiiig aciivitica. which includes $9. I  
million in depreciation and amortization. 

The Company continued to in\est in propert). plant and equipment io support current and futurc growth 
opportunities and utilized $3 1.3 million of cash in 2007 for such cxpenditurcs. 

Thc Company's linancial pcrforniancc is discussed in grcatcr dctail below in Results of' operations 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Critical Accounting Policies 

Chesapeake prepares its financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America ("GAAP"). Application of  these accounting principles requires the use of estimates and assumptions 
that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities. revenues and expenses. and related disclosures of contingencies 
during the reporting period. Chesapeake bases its estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions 
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. the results of which form the basis for makingjudgments 
about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Most of Chesapeake's 
businesses are regulated, accordingly. the accounting methods used by these businesses must comply with the 
requirements ofthe regulatory bodies: therefore. the choices available are limited by these regulatory requirements. In the 
normal course of business. estimated amounts are subsequently adjusted to actual results that may differ from estimates. 
Management believes that the following policies require significant estimates or other judgments of matters that are 
inherently uncertain. These policies and their application have been discussed with Chesapeake's Audit Committee. 

Reaulatorv Assets and Liabilities 
As a result of the ratemaking process. Chesapeake records certain assets and liabilities in accordance with Statement 
ofFinancial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 71 "Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation." 
and consequently. the accounting principles applied by our regulated utilities differ in certain respects from those 
applied by the unregulated businesses. Costs are deferred when there is a probable expectation that they will be 
recovered in future revenues as a result of the regulatory process. As more fully described in Note A to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements. Chesapeake had recorded regulator) assets of $4.1 million and regulator> 
liabilities of$27.7 million. at December 3 1.  2007. l f the Company were required to terminate application of SFAS 
No. 71. it would be required to recognize all such deferred amounts as a charge or a credit to earnings. net o f  
applicable income taxes. Such an ad.justmcnt could havc a material adverse effect on thc Compan! 's  results o f  
operations. 

Valuation of Environmental Assets and Liabilities 
As more fully described in Kote M to thc Financial Statements. Chesapeakc has completed its responsibilities related 
to  one environmental site and is currently participating in the investigation. assessment or remediation ofthree other 
former manufactured gas plant sitcs. Amounts have been recorded as environmental liabilities and associated 
environmental regulatory assets based on estimates of future costs provided by independent consultants. Thcrc is 
uncertainty in these amounts because the Environmental Protection Agency ( ' . I T A " )  or applicable state 
environmental authority may not have selected the final remediation methods. In addition. there is uncertainty with 
regard to amounts that may be recovcred froni other potentially responsible parties. 

Since the Compan),'s management believes that recovery of thesc expenditures. including an! litigation costs. is 
probable through thc regulator!, process. the Company has recorded. in accordance with SFAS 7 I .  a regulatory asset 
and corresponding regulatory liabilit!,. At December 3 1. 2007. Clhcsapcakc had recorded an environmental 
regulatory asset of$85 1 .OOO and a regulatory liability oL'$227.000 for over-collections and an additional liability ol' 
$835.000 for environmental costs. 

Derivatives 
Chesapeake ma! use derkativc instruments to manage the price risk of  its natural gas and propane purchasing 
activities. The use of'thesc instruments is sub,icct to the Company's risk management policies. which arc continuall!, 
monitored for  compliance. Derivative instruments utilized in connection with thesc activities and services arc 
accounted in accordancc with SFAS 133. .Iccounting,for Derivutive /n.s/run7en~.s and Hedging Ac/ivi/ie.v. under 
which Chesapeakc cithcr records the Pair \~aluc ol'dcrivativcs held as assets and liabilities. I I'thc derivative contracts 
meets the "normal purchase and normal sale" scope exception of SFAS 133. the related activities and services are 
accounted on an accrual basis of accounting. 

The following is a re\ i c M  o f  Chcsapeakc's derivative acti\ it! at r)eccmhci 3 1 .  2007 and 2006: 
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The natural gas distribution and marketing operations entered into physical contracts for the purchase and sale 
of natural gas. These physical contracts qualify for the "normal purchases and normal sales" scope exception 
under SFAS 133 at December 3 1.2007 and 2006 in that they provide for the purchase or sale of natural gas that 
will be delivered in quantities expected to be used or sold by the Company over a reasonable period of time in 
the normal course of business. Accordingly. they are not subject to the accounting requirements of 
SFAS No. 133. 

During 2007 and 2006. Chesapeake's propane distribution operations entered into physical contracts to bu) 
propane supplies. These contracts qualify for the "normal purchases and normal sales" scope exception under 
SFAS 133 in that they provide for the purchase or sale of propane that will be delivered in quantities expected 
to be used or sold by the Company over a reasonable period of time in the normal course of business. 
Accordingly. the related liabilities incurred and assets acquired under these contracts are recorded when title to 
the underlying commodity passes. 

During 2006. the propane distribution operation had entered into a swap agreement to protect the Company 
from the impact of price increases on our price-cap plan that we offer to customers. The Company considered 
this agreement to be an economic hedge that did not qualify for hedge accounting as described in SFAS 133. At 
the end of the period. the market price ofpropane dropped below the unit price within the swap agreement. As a 
result of the price drop, the Company marked the agreement to market. which resulted in an unrealixd loss in 
2006 of$84.000. The Company did not enter into a similar swap agreement in 2007. 

Chesapeake's propane wholesale marketing operation enters into forward and futures contracts that arc 
considered derivatives under SFAS KO. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities." 
In accordance with that pronouncement. open positions are marked to market prices at the end ofcach reporting 
period and unrealized gains or losses are recorded in the Consolidated Statement of Income as revenue. The 
contracts all mature within one year and are almost exclusively for propane commodities. with delivery points 
of Mt. Belvieu. Texas: Conway. Kansas: and Hattiesburg. Mississippi. Management estimates the market 
valuation based on references to exchange-traded futures prices. historical differcntials and actual trading 
activity at the end of the reporting period. At December 3 1.2007. these contracts had net unrealized gains oi' 
$1 79.000 that were recorded in the financial statements. At December 3 1 ,  2006. these contracts had net 
unrealized gains of $8.500 that were recorded in the financial statements. Commodity price volatility may haw 
a significant impact on the gain or loss in any given period. 

Operatinq Revenues 
Revenues for the natural gas distribution operations ofthe Company are bascd on rates approved b)' the I'SCs ofthe 
jurisdictions in which we operate. The natural gas transmission operation's revenues are based on rates approved by 
the FERC. Customers' base rates ma!' not be changed without formal approval by these commissions. I-lowcvcr. the 
regulatory authorities have granted the Companq ' s  regulated natural gas distribution operations the ability to 
negotiate rates. based on approved methodologies. with customers that h a w  compctitiw altcrnati\#cs. In addition. thc 
natural gas transmission operation can negotiate rates above or below the FERC-approved tariff rates. 

I*or regulated dcliveries ol'natural gas. Chesapeake reads meters and bills customers on nionthlq c!,cles that do not 
coincide with the accounting periods used for financial reporting purposes. Chesapeake accrues unbilled revenues 
i'or gas that has been delivered. but n o t  yet billed at the end of an accounting period to the extent that thcg do  not 
coincide. In connection with this accrual. Chesapeake must estimate the amount o fgas  that has not been accounted 
for o n  its deliver! system and must estimate the amount ofthe unbillcd revenue by ,iurisdiction and customer class. 
A similar computation is made to accrue unbilled revenues for propane customers with meters. such as communit!, 
gas system customers. 

The propane wholesale marketing operation records trading activit! . on il net mark-to-market basis in the 
Company's income statement. i'or open contracts. The propane distribution. advanced information scr\jiccs and other 
segments record revenue i n  the period the products arc delivered and/or services arc rendered. 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Chesapeake's natural gas distribution operations in Delaware and Maryland each have a purchased gas cost recoverq 
mechanism. This mechanism provides the Company with a method ofadjusting the billing rates with its customers 
for changes in the cost of purchased gas included in base rates. The difference between the current cost of gas 
purchased and the cost of gas recovered in billed rates is deferred and accounted for as either unrecovered purchased 
gas costs or amounts payable to customers. Generally. these deferred amounts are recovered or refunded within one 
year. 

The Company charges flexible rates to the natural gas distribution's industrial interruptible customers to make them 
competitive with alternative types of fuel. Based on pricing. these customers can choose natural gas or alternative 
fuels. Neither the Company nor the interruptible customer is contractually obligated to deliver or receive natural gas. 

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 
An allowance for doubtful accounts is recorded against amounts due to reduce the net receivable balancc to the 
amount we reasonably expect to collect based upon our collections experiences and our assessment of our 
customers' inability or reluctance to pay. If circumstances change. however. our estimate of the recovcrability of 
accounts receivable may also change. Circumslances which could affect our estimates include. but are not limited to. 
customer credit issues. the level of  natural gas prices and general economic conditions. Accounts are written off 
once they are deemed to be uncollectible. 

Results of Operations 

Net Income & Diluted Earnings Per Share Summary 
Increase Increase 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2007 2006 (decrease) 2006 2005 (decrease) 
Net Income * 

Continuing omrations $13,218 $10.748 162.470 $10.748 $10.699 $49 - .  
Discontinued operations (20) (241) 221 (241) (231) ( I O )  

Total Net Income $1 3,198 $1 0.507 $2.691 $10.507 $10.468 $3 9 

Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share 
Continuing o pcrati on s $1.94 $1.76 $0.18 $1.76 $1 3 1  ($0.05) 
Discon t in i iopera t  ions (0.04) 0.04 (0.04 ) (0.04) 

Total Earnings Per Share $1.94 $1.72 $0.22 $1.72 $1.77 ") 

1 .  I hc Compan!,'s net incomc from continuing operations increased $2.5 million in 2007 when compared to 2006. Net 
incomc lkoni continuing operations was $ I  3.22 million. or $1.04 per share (diluted). lor  2007. comparcd to  a nct inconic 
from continuing operations of $ 1  0.75 niillion. or $1.76 per share (diluted) in 2006. 

The Company's nct incomc fiom continuing operations increased $49.000 in 2000 when compared to 2005. Net inconic 
fkom continuing operations was $10.75 million. or 51.76 per share (dilutcd). for 2006. compared to a nct incomc froni 
continuing operations oi'$10.70 million. or $1.81 per share (diluted) in 2005. 

During 2007. Chesapeake decided to closc its distributed energy services compan! . ('licsapcakc OnSight Scrviccs. I , I , ( '  
("OnSight"). which consistently experienced operating losses since 2004. AI December 3 1 .  2007. the results of 
operations for OnSight have been reclassified to  discontinued operations and shown net oftax for all periods presented. 
For 2007. the discontinued operations cxperienccd a net loss of$20.000 compared to a net loss of's24 I .OOO. or $0.04 per 
share (diluted). for 2006 and a net l o s s  of$23 1.000. o r  $0.04 per share (diluted). for 2005.  
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Operating Income Summary (in thousands) 
Increase Increase 

Forthe Years Ended December 31, 2007 2006 (decrease) 2006 2005 (decrease) 
Business Segment: 

Natural gas $22,485 $1 9.733 $2.752 $19.733 $17.236 $2.497 
Propane 4,498 2.534 1.964 2.534 3.209 (675) 
Advanced information services 836 7 67 69 767 1.197 (430) 

, I  

Other & eliminations 295 2 98 (3) 298 279 19 
Operating Income $28,114 $23.332 $4.782 $23.332 $21.921 $1.41 1 

Other Income 291 189 102 I89 383 (194) 
Interest Charges 6,590 5.774 8 16 5.774 5.132 64 2 
Income Taxes 8,597 6.999 1.598 6.999 6.472 527 
Net Income from Continuing Operations S13,218 $I  0.748 $2.470 $10.748 $10.700 $4 8 

2007 ComDared to 2006 
Compared to 2006. operating income in 2007 increased b! $4.8 million. or 20 percent. Factors affecting this 
improvement included the following: 

New transportation capacit) contracts implemented for the natural gas transmission operation in November 
2006 and November 2007 provided for $3.3 million of additional gross margin in 2007. 
Weather on the Delmania Peninsula was 15 percent colder in 2007 than 2006. which the Company estimates 
contributed approximately $2.0 million in additional gross margin for its Delmarva natural gas and propane 
distribution operations. This amount differs lion1 the $2.2 million oi’additional gross margin that the Compan! 
had expected the colder weather to contribute. The variance occurred as a result of the season or month that the 
heating degree day variance occurred. 
Rate increases to customers of the natural gas transmission and distribution operations in Delaware and 
Maryland added $1.4 million to gross margin in 2007. 
Strong period-over-period residential customer growth ol’ seven percent and five percent. respcctively. Iiir the 
Delmarva and Florida natural gas distribution operations in 2007. 
Thc werage gross margin per retail gallon sold to cusionicrs increased $0.05 in 2007 l’or the Delniarsa propanc 
distribution operations. which contributed $ 1 ,  I million to gross margins. 
I he L>clmana Communit) Gas Systems continued to experience strong customer growth as Ihc number 01‘ 
custonicrs increased 32 pcrccnt in 2007 compared t o  2006. 

2006 Compared to 2005 
Operating income in 2006 increased S; I .4 million. or 6.5 percent, compared to  2005. despite significantl) warmcr weather 
in 2006. The improvement in 2000 results ol’opcrations compared to 2005 was aff‘cctcd hl, the i i ) l l o M  ing lactors: 

Weather on the Iklniarva Peninsula was 1 X percent warmcr in 2006 than in 2005: as a result. the (‘ompan!, 
cstimatcs that 2000 gross margin for its Dclmarva natural gas and propanc distribution operations was 
approximately $3.4 million less than in 2005. 
Strong residential customer growth oi‘ninc percent and eight percent. rcspccti\d> . for  the I k l m a r w  and Florida 
natural gas distribution operations in 2006. 
The natural gas transmission operation aciiicvcd gross margin growth ol‘.Y;I .X  million. o r  1 I pcrccnt. duc to 

additional capacity contracts that went into cflcct i n  Novcnihcr 2005 and November 2006. 
A 67 percent increase in the number ol’customers for  the (’ompan),‘s natural gas marketing operation. 
Gross margin for the Delmarva propane distribution operations decrcascd $834.000. priniaril) . as a result ofthc 
warmer weather in 2006. 
The Dclmarva [ommunit) Gas Systems continued to experience strong customer gro\vtli increasing b!, 34 
percent in 2006 compared to 2005. 
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Operating income for the advanced information services segment decreased $430.000 in 2006. Although 
revenues from consulting increased $749.000 in 2006, the 2005 results contained $993.000 of operating income 
for the Lightweight Association Management Processing Systems ("LAMPSTM") product. which was sold in the 
fourth quarter 2005. The LAMPST" product was an internall> developed software that was developed and 
marketed specificall) for REALTOR@ Associations. 

Natural Gas 
The natural gas segment earned operating income of $22.5 million for 2007. $19.7 million for 2006. and $17.2 million 
for 2005. resulting in increases of $2.8 million. or 13.9 percent for 2007. and $2.5 million. or 14.5 percent, for 2006. 

Natural Gas (in thousands) 
Increase Increase 

Forthe Years Ended December 31, 2007 2006 (decrease) 2006 2005 (decrease) 
Revenue $181,202 $170.374 $10.828 $170.374 $166.582 $3.792 
cost of gas 121,550 11 7.948 3.602 1 1  7.948 1 16.178 1.770 
Cioss margin 59,652 5 2.426 7.226 5 2.426 50.404 2.022 

Operations & maintenance 26,024 22.673 3.351 22.673 23.874 (1.201) 

Other operating expenses 37,167 32.693 4.474 3 2.693 33. I68 (475) 

Depreciation B amortization 6,918 6.3 12 606 6,312 5.682 63 0 
Other taxes 4,225 3.708 5 I7 3.708 3.612 96 

Total Operating Income $22,485 $I  9.733 $2.752 $1 9.733 $17.236 $2.497 

Heating Degree-Day (HDD) and Customer Analysis 
Increase Increase 

Forthe Years Ended December 31, 2007 2006 (decrease) 2006 2005 (decrease) 
Heating degrec-day data - Delmarva 

Actual HDD 4,504 3.931 5 73 3.931 4.792 (861) 
IO-year avcrage I-IDD 4.3 76 4.3 72 4 4.372 4.436 (64) 
Fstimatcd gross margin per HDI) $1,937 $2.0 13 ($76) $2.013 $2.234 ($22 I )  

Ciross margin S3 72 $3 72 $0 $372 $372 E 0 
Other operating expenses $1 06 $1 I I  ($5 ) $ 1 1 1  $ 106 $5 

I'stimated dollars per residential customer added: 

Average number of'residential customers 
Dclmma 43,485 40.535 2.950 40.535 37.346 3.189 
1;lorida 13,2fio 12.663 5 87 1 2.663 11.717 94 6 

'l'otal 56,735 53.198 3.537 53.198 49.063 4.135 

2007 Compared to 2006 
Gross margin for thc Compan>,'s natural gas segmcnt incrcascd by $7.2 million. or 14 percent. and other operating 
expenses increased $4.5 million. or 14 percent. for 2007 compared to 2006. The gross margin increases ol'X'3.9 million 
l'or the natural gas transmission operation. $3.4 million for thc Delmarva natural gas distribution operations. and $88.000 
l'or the Florida natural gas distribution operation were partiall! of'fsct bq I lower gross margin o1'$207.000 Ibr thc natural 
gas marketing operation. as further explained below. 

Natura/ Gas Transniissiot~ 
The natural gas transmission opcration achieved gross margin growth 01'$3.9 million. os 22 percent. in 2007 coniparcd to 
2006. Ofthe $3.9 million increase. $3.3 million was attributable to new transportation capacity contracts implemented in 
November 2006 and 2007. In 2008. the new transportation capacity contracts implemented in ?lobember 2007 arc 
expected to generate an additional annual gross margin ol'$I .2 million above 2007 gross margins. In addition. thc 
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implementation of rate case settlement rates, effective September 1. 2007. contributed an additional $563.000 to gross 
margins in 2007. A further discussion of the FERC rate proceeding is provided in detail within the "Regulatory 
Activities" listed later in this section. The remaining $43.000 increase to gross margin in 2007 is attributable to other 
factors, such as higher interruptible sales. An increase of $2.3 million in other operating expenses partially offset the 
increased gross margin. The factors contributing to the increase in other operating expenses are as follow: 

Payroll and benefit costs increased by $282.000 and $90.000. respectively. as the operation increased its 
staffing levels to comply with new federal pipeline integrity regulations and to serve the additional growth. 
The new pipeline integrity regulations require the Company to assess the integrity of each covered segment 
of its fine pipe. These regulations require the assessment of at least 50 percent of the covered segments by 
December 17. 2007 and completion of the baseline assessment of all covered segments by December 17. 
2012. 
Eastern Shore also incurred an additional $385.000 ofthird-party costs in 2007 compared to 2006 to 
comply with the new federal pipeline integrity regulations previously discussed. 
The increased level of capital investment caused higher depreciation and asset removal costs oi'$371 .000 
and increased property taxes of $1 88.000. 
Corporate costs increased $568.000 as the Company updated its annual corporate cost allocations based o n  
a methodology accepted b!, the FEKC. 
The increase in operating expenses for 2007 is magnified b!, the FEKC's authorization. in July 2006. to defer 
certain pre-service costs of Eastern Shore's E3 Project. allowing the Company to treat such costs as a regulatory 
asset. The deferral ofthese costs resulted in the reduction of $1 90.000 in other operating expenses in 2006 for 
expenses incurred in 2005. Please refer to the "liegulator! Activities" discussion below for Iurther information 
on  the E3 I'rqject. 
Other operating expenses relating to various items increased collectivel>, ty approximatel!, $226.000. 

Naturui Gus Disrrihuti o t ~  

The Delmarva distribution operations experienced an increase in gross margin of  $3.4 million. or 16 pcrccnt. Thc 
significant items contributing to the increase in  gross margin include the Ihllowing: 

Continued residential customer growth contributed to the increase in gross margin. The average number of 
rcsidcntial customers on the Delmarva Peninsula increased b! 2.950. or seven percent. for 2007 comparcd to 
2006. and the Company estimates that these additional residential customcrs contributed approximately $1.2 
million to gross margin. The Compan!, does not expect to maintain the growth rate o f  residential customers. 
which it has experienced in the past f e ~ ,  years. The Company has seen a slocc-down in the new housing market 
in 2007 as a result of unfavorable niarkct conditions in the housing industr),. which include: ( a )  increased neu 
and resale home inventor!' levels. ( b )  decreased honicbuycr demand due to lower consumer conlidcncc in thc 
overall housing market. ( c )  increased unccrtaint!, in the overall mortgage market. and ( d )  increased underwriting 
standards. 
Iiatc increases Ibr both the Delaware and Maryland divisions generated an additional $848.000 in gross margin 
in 2007 compared to 2000. In October 2006. the Maryland PSC granted the Compan) a base rate increase. 
which resulted in a $693.000 period-o~~er-period increase to gross margin in 2007. The fklaware Division 
received approval from the Dclawarc PSC to implement temporary rates. sub,ject to refund. which contributed 
an additional $ I  55.000 to gross margin in 2007. 
The Company estimates that weather contributed $8 19.000 to gross margin in 2007 compared to 2006. as 
tcmperatures on the Delniana Peninsula were 15 percent colder in 2007. This amount differs from thc $1 , I  
million of additional gross margin that the Compan!, had expected the colder weather to contribute. This 
variance occurred as a result ol'thc season or month that the heating degrcc da). variance occurred. 
The colder temperatures did not have a signilicant impact on the Maryland distribution operation's gross margin 
in 2007. because the opcration's approved rate structure now includes a weather normalization ad,justment 
("WNA") mechanism. which was implemented in October 2006 and is designed to protect a portion ol'thc 
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Company's revenues against warmer-than-normal weather. as deviations from normal weather can affect our 
financial performance. The WNA also serves to offset the impact of colder-than-normal weather on our 
customers by reducing the amounts the Company can charge them during such periods. 
Growth in commercial and industrial customers contributed $224.000 and $102.000. respectively. to gross 
margin in 2007 compared to 2006. 
Increased sales volumes to interruptible customers contributed $224.000 to gross margin in 2007 compared to 
2006. 
The remaining $3 1,000 increase in  gross margin can be attributed to various other factors. 

8 

8 

Gross margin for the Florida distribution operation increased by $88.000. or one percent. in 2007 compared to 2006. The 
higher gross margin, which resulted from an increase in residential customers. was partiallj, offset b!, lower volumes sold 
to industrial customers. The operation experienced a five percent growth in residential customers in 2007 compared to 
2006. which provided for an additional $1 42.000 in gross margin. The Florida distribution operation also experienced a 
slowdown in the housing market in 2007 attributable to the same unfavorable housing market conditions previously 
discussed. 

Other operating expense for the natural gas distribution operations increased bj $2.0 million in 2007 compared 2006 
Among the key components of the increase were the following: 

Payroll costs increased by $ 1  10.000 as vacant positions in 2006 were tilled in 2007 and additional positions 
were added to serve the growth experienced by the operations. 
Health care costs increased by $ 1  77.000 as a result of thc additional personnel and a higher cost of'claims in 
2007 compared to  2006. 
Incentive compensation increased $229.000 in 2007 as the Delmarva operations cxperienced improved earnings 
and increased staffing levels. 
Depreciation and amortization expense. asset removal cost and property taxes increased by $3 16.000. $ I2 1 .OOO 
an? $1 56,000. respectively. as a result ol'the Company's continued capital investments. 
The I-'lorida distribution operation experienced an increased expense of$227.000 in 2007 compared with 2000 
to maintain compliance with the new federal pipeline integrit!, regulations. 
Sales and advertising costs increased $129.000 in 2007 compared to 2006. primarill, to promote cncrgy 
conservation and customcr awareness o f thc  availabilit!, of natural gas service. 
Regulatory expenses increased $ 1  13.000 as the Ileiaware and Maryland operations began expensing costs 

'l'hc allowance for uncollectible accounts increased $ 183.000 in 2007 compared to 2006 due to increased 
revenues resulting from customer growth and colder temperatures. 
Merchant payment k c s  decreased b!, $ 1  10.000 as thc ('ompan! ' s  I)clniarva operation outsourced lhc 
proccssing of credit card payments in April 2007. 
Other operating expenses relating to  various other itenis increased b! approximatel! $355.000, 

ociatcd with their respective rate cases. 

Nuiural Gus iWurke/inx 
Gross margin for the natural gas marketing operation decrcased b! $207.000. or 1 1 percent. I'or 2007 compared to 2000. 
The dcclinc in gross margin was primarily thc result of increases in natural gas suppl!. costs that the ('ompan! was 
contractually unablc to pass through to its customers. In addition. a shift in the market prcvcntcd the <'ompan\ l'roni 
selling as much of its available capacity in 2007 as was sold during 2006. Other operating expenses for the marketing 
operation increased b! S;258.000 primarily duc to  increases in payroll and benelit costs. allowance for uncollectiblc 
accounts and corporate overhead costs. which he rc  partially offset b> lower espenses lor consulting services. 

2006 Compared to 2005 
Gross margin for thc ('ompany's natural gas segment increased $2.0 million. or iiwr percent. and other operating 
expenses decreased $475.000. or one percent. in 2006 compared to 2005 .  'l'hc gross margin increases ol'SI . X  million liv 

Page 30 Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 2007 Form 10-K 



the natural gas transmission operation. $395.000 for the Florida natural gas distribution operation and $75.000 for the 
natural gas marketing operation were partially offset by a lower gross margin of $21 0.000 for the Delmarva natural gas 
distribution operations. 

Natural Gas 7iansmission 
The natural gas transmission operation achieved gross margin growth of SI .8 million. or 1 1 percent. Ofthe $1.8 million 
increase. $1.  I million was attributable to new transportation capaci6 contracts implemented in November 2005 and 
$61 2,000 due to new transportation capacity contracts implemented in November 2006. An increase of $41 6,000 in other 
operating expenses partially offset the increased gross margin. The factors contributing to the increased expenses are a5 
fol I ow: 

Payroll costs and incentive compensation increased $ I  08,000 t o  serve the additional growth experienced by 
the operation. 
Depreciation and asset removal costs increased by $558.000 and property taxes by $1 09,000 due to an 
increase in the level of capital investment. 
As a result of the operation receiving approval from the FERC to recover certain pre-service costs 
associated with the E3 I-'ro.iect. the Companq deferred $ 1  88.000 o f  costs previously incurred and expensed 
in 2005. As a result o f  this deferral. the amounts recognized in the Compan) ' s  income statement declined 
from 2005 by $376.000. Please refer to the "Regulator), Activities" discussion for further information on 
this expansion prqject. 
Other operating expenses relating to various other items increased by approximatel!, .R 17,000. 

il'atural Gas Distribution 
Gross margin for the Florida distribution operation increased by $395.000 in 2006 compared to 2005. An eight percent 
growth in residential customers contributed $230,000 ofthis increase in gross margin. In addition to residential customer 
growth. new commercial and industrial customers contributed $91.000 to gross margin in 2006. 'The remaining S74.000 
increase in gross margin is attributed to various Pdctors. including turn-on revenue. 

Thc Iklmarva distribution operations experienced a decrease ofS2 10.000 in gross margin. Weather significantl), affcctcd 
gross margin in 2006 compared to 2005. The Company estimates that the warmer temperatures in 2006. which were I8 
percent warmer than in 2005. led to a decrease in gross margin of approximately $1.7 million when compared to 2005. 
This decrease was partially offset by continued residential customer growth. The average number ofresidential customers 
on the Iklmarva Peninsula increased 3,189. or nine percent. for 2006 compared to 2005 and the Company estimates that 
additional residential customers Contributed approximatel! $1.2 million to gross margin. 'The remaining $1 90.000 
increase in gross margin can be attributed to a r i o u s  factors. including an increase in thc number of commercial 
customers and a decrease i n  interruptible sales. 

Other operating expense for thc natural gas distribution operations decreased $8 14.000 in 2006 compared to 2005. Somc 
of thc significant components 01' thc decrease in other operating expenses in 2006. compared to 2005. include tlic 
fo I I OM' i ng : 

I-lcalth care costs decreased b) $3 13.000 as a result ofthe Company changing health care scrvicc providers in  
Kovenibcr 2005 and experiencing lower costs related to claims. 
Allowance I'or uncollectible accounts decreased b j  $289.000 in 2006 compared to 2005 due to increased 
collection efforts and lower revenues resulting from lower prices and warmer tcmpcraturcs. 
Incentive compensation decreased by $ 177.000 in 2006. rellecting lower than expected earnings. 
Corporate costs were reduccd by $407.000 due to lower payroll and related cxpcnscs. 
Depreciation and amortization expense and asset removal cost increased b> S 132.000 and SI XO.OOO. 
respectivel!,. as a result o f t h e  Compan!,'s continued capital investments. 
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Merchant payment fees increased by $136,000 in 2006 compared to 2005 as the Company experienced more 
customers making payments with the use of credit cards. 
In addition, other operating expenses relating to various minor items increased by approximately $55.000, 

Natural Gas Marketing 
Gross margin for the natural gas marketing operation increased by $75,000 for 2006 compared to 2005. The increase was 
due primaril) to growth in the number of customers to which the operation provided suppl) management services. Other 
operating expenses decreased by $78.000 due to lower levels of consulting services, partiall) offset by an increase in the 
allowance for uncollectible accounts. 

Propane 
The propane segment experienced an increase of $2.0 million. or 78 percent. in operating income in 2007 compared to 
2006. Gross margin increased $4.0 million. which was partiall! offset by an increase in other operating expenses of$2.0 
million. During ’2006. operating income for the propane segment decreased by $675.000. or 21 percent. compared to 
2005. reflecting a gross margin decrease of $1. I million. which \+as partially offset bq a decrease in operating expenses 
of $464.000. 

Propane (in thousands) 
Increase lncreas e 

2006 (decrease) 2006 2005 (decrease) For the Years Ended December 31, 
Revenuc $62,838 $48.576 $1 4.262 $48.576 $48.976 ($400) 

Gross margin 21,800 17.796 4.004 I 7.796 18.935 ( I . I  39) 

2007 

Cost of salcs 41,038 30.780 10.258 3 0.780 30.04 1 73 9 

Operations & maintenance 14,594 12.823 1.771 I 2.823 13.355 (532) 

Other taxes 866 780 86 780 797 (17) 

Total Operating Income $4,498 $2.534 $1,964 $2.534 $3.209 ($675) 

Propane Heating Degree-Day (HDD) Analysis - Delma rva 
Increase lncreas e 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2007 2006 (decrease) 2006 2005 (decrease) 
Heating degree-days 

Dcprcciation 8L amortization 1,842 1.659 183 1.659 1.574 85 

Other operating expenses 17,302 15.262 2.040 15.262 15.726 (404) 

Actual 4,504 3.93 I 573 3.93 I 4.792 ( & % I )  
IO-yar averagc 4,376 4.3 72 4 4.37’ 4.436 (64) 

listimatd gross margin per HI111 %1,Y74 $1.743 $23 I $1.743 $1.743 pi, (1 

2007 Compared to 2006 
Operating incomc for the propane segment increased b!, $20 million to $4.5 million for 2007 compared to 2006. Gross 
margin in the Dclmarva propanc distribution operations increased by $3.2 million. compared to 2006. primarill duc t o  
increases in retail margin per gallon and colder weather on the Delmarba Peninsula. Gross margin also increased in thc 
Florida propane distribution operation and thc (’ompaty’s wholesale propanc marketing opcration h!, .R 100.000 and 
$677.000. respectively. 

Delmarvu Propunc Dis/rihu/toti 
The Delmarva propanc distribution operation’s incrcasc in gross margin ofS3.2 million. o r  22 percent. resultcd lkom thc 
following: 
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Gross margin increased by $ 1 . 1  million in 2007. compared to 2006. because o f a  $0.05 increase in the average 
gross margin per retail gallon. This increase occurs when market prices of propane are greater than the 
Company's average inventory price per gallon. This trend reverses when market prices decrease and move 
closer to the Company's inventory price per gallon. Propane gross margin is also affected by changes in the 
Company's pricing of sales to its customers. 
Temperatures on the Delmarva Peninsula were 15 percent colder in 2007 compared to 2006. which contributed 
to the increase of 1.7 million retail gallons. or nine percent. sold during 2007. The Company estimates that the 
colder weather and increased volumes sold contributed $1.1 million to gross margin for the Delmania propane 
distribution operation compared to 2006. 
Non-weather related retail volumes sold in 2007 increased b> 1 .0 million gallons. or six percent. This increase 
in gallons sold contributed approximately $665.000 to gross margin for the Delmarva propane distribution 
operation compared to 2006. Contributing to the increase of gallons sold was the continued growth in the 
average number of CGS customers. which increased by 972 to a total count of 5.330. or a 22 percent increase. 
compared to 2006. The Company expects the growth ofits CGS operation to continue as the number ofsystems 
currently under construction or under contract is anticipated to provide an additional 7.700 CGS customers. an 
increase of 145 percent. With the slowdown in the housing market. however. the Compan! is unable to predict 
when construction of systems current11 under contract will be completed and in service. 
Wholesale volumes sold in 2007 increased by 2.9 million gallons. or 70 percent. which contributed 
approximately $1 19.000 to gross margin for the Delmarva propane distribution operation compared to  2006. 
The remaining $216.000 increase in  gross margin can be attributed to various other factors. including higher 
service sales and service fees. 

Total other operating expenses increased by $1.5 million I'or the t)elniarva propane operations in 2007. compared to the 
same period in 2006. The significant items contributing to this increase were: 

Increased operating expenses f'or 2007 were magnified b\ thc C'ompan!"s one-time recovery in 2006 01' 
prcviousl>' incurred costs ol'pd387.000 from one of  its propane suppliers in 2006. This recover)' reimbursed the 
Company lor fixed costs incurred in the removal ol'abovc-normal levels of'pctroicum b! -products contained i n  
approximatel! 75.000 gallons 01' propane that it purchased froni the supplier. The recovery of' thesc costs 
reduced other operating expenses in the first ninc months of2006.  
Inccntiw compensation increascd by $36 I .000 as a result ol'the improved operating results in 2007 compared 
to 2006. 
I-lealth care costs increased b) $ 1  19.000 during 2007 compared to the same period in 2006 as the Compan!, 
cxpcricnced a higher cost ol'claims during the !car. 
The operation incurred an additional $233.000 expense in 2007 for propane tank recertifications and 
niaintcnancc to maintain compliance with f)cpartnicnt oi' 'I  ransportation (.'I)O'l''*) standards. 'l'hc DO'I' 
standards require propane tanks or  cylinders to be rcccrtiiicd tweI\'c years from their date oi'nianufacture and 
cvcr! live years alter that. 
Mains I'ccs increased bq $ 1  00.000 i n  2007 compared to 2006 as a result of' added ('(is custoniera. This 
expenditure will continuc to increase as more CGS customers arc added. 
Depreciation and amortization expense increased by $ 1  07.000 over the pr ior  year as a result ol'the ('ompan! 'S 

increased capital investments. 
I n  addition. other operating expenses relating t o  various items increased collccti\ el! b! approsiniatcl! 
$ 1  93.000. 

Florida ProDane Distrihutioti 
'The Florida propane distribution operation experienced an increase in gross margin ol'S;100.000. o r  ninc pcrccnt. i n  2007 
compared to 2006. primaril) because of' an increase in the average gross margin per retail gallon and higher service 
margins. Other operating expenses in 2007. compared to 2006. increased by S223.000. primarilq due to increases in 
payroll costs. insurance and depreciation espcnsc. 
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Propane Wholesale and Marketinx 
Gross margin for the Company‘s propane wholesale marketing operation increased by $677.000, or 40 percent. in 2007 
compared to 2006. This increase reflects the larger number of market opportunities that arose in 2007. due to price 
volatility in the propane wholesale market. which exceeded the level of price fluctuations experienced in 2006. The 
increase in gross margin was partiall) offset by higher other operating expenses of $3 18.000. due primaril) to higher 
incentive compensation based on the increased earnings in 2007. 

2006 Compared to 2005 
Operating income for the propane segment decreased $675.000. or 21 percent. to $2.5 million for 2006 compared to 
2005. This decrease was due primarily to warmer weather on the Delmarva Peninsula in 2006. which resulted in reduced 
customer consumption. Gross margin in the Delmarva propane distribution operations wias $834.000 lower than in 2005. 
primarily due to warmer weather in 2006. Gross margin also decreased in the Florida propane distribution operation and 
the Company’s wholesale propane marketing operation by $ 1  46.000 and $ 1  59.000. respectively. 

Delmarva Propane Distribution 
’The Delmarva propane distribution operation‘s decrease in gross margin of $834.000 resulted from the following factors: 

Volumes sold in 2006 decreased I .9 million gallons. or eight percent. due primarily to 18 percent warmer 
temperatures on the Delmarva Peninsula in 2006 than in 2005. ’The Compan! estimates that the warmer 
temperatures resulted in a decrease in gross margin of approximately $1.7 million when compared to 2005. 
Gross margin increased by $956.000 due to an increase ol’three cents in the avcrage gross margin per retail 
gallon in 2006 compared to 2005. 
Gross margin for the Delmarva CGS activities increased b y  $ 1  55.000 compared to 2005 due primarily to an 
increase in the average number of customers, which grew by approximately 1.000 to a total count of 
approximately 3.900. or a 34 percent incrcasc. compared to 2005. 
Gross margin was adversely affected by a $272.000 write-down ol‘propane inventor),. rellecting the lowcr 01‘ 
cost or market. 
l’hc remaining gross margin decreasc of $29.000 was attributable primaril!. to customer conservation and 
changes in the timing of deliveries to customers. 

Other operating expenses decreased by $335.000 for the Delniarva opcrations in 2006 compared to 2005. The significant 
factors contributing to the decrease included: 

.. I he Compan) recovered $387.000 in fixed costs from one of its propanc suppliers in response to a propane 
contamination incident that occurred in a previous period Lvhcn approximatel! 75.000 gallons ol’propanc that 
the Company purchased from the supplicr containcd above-nomial levels of petroleum byproducts. 
Health care costs decreased b:, $324.000. The Company changed health carc service providers in Novembcr 
2005 and subsequcntl) experienced lower costs related to claims. 
In addition. there was a decrease of approximatel) $39.000 in other operating expenses relating LO various 
minor items. 
These lower costs were partially offset by increased costs ofS;176.000 Ibr onc ol‘thc I’cnnsylvania start-ups. 
which began operation in Ju ly  2005. increased pa!,roll costs ol’$165.000 and higher costs ot’$74.000 associatcd 
with vehicle fuel. 

Florida Propane Distrihiitioii 
In 2006. the I’lorida propanc distribution operation cxpcrienced a decrease in gross margin oi‘$l46.000. or 12 percent. 
when compared to 2005. The lower gross margin rcflected a decrease of’ $208.000 for in-house piping sales as the 
operation exited the house piping service. which was partially offset b: an increase in gross margin oi’lfi62.000 irom 
propane sales due primaril! to an increase in thc average gross margin per retail gallon. partially ofibet by a onc percent 
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decrease in the volumes sold in 2006. The Florida propane operation experienced a decrease of $49.000 in other 
operating expenses in 2006 compared to 2005. attributable to lower payroll and benefits costs related to vacant positions 
during the year. partially offset by higher expenses related to leak testing and depreciation expense. 

Propane Wholesale and Marketinc 
Gross margin for the Company's propane wholesale marketing operation decreased b! $1 59.000 in 2006 compared to 
2005. This decrease from the 2005 results reflects the increased market opportunities that arose in 2005 due to the 
extreme price volatility in the propane wholesale market following the hurricanes in the Gulf of Mexico area. but did not 
extend into 2006. The decrease in gross margin was partially offset by lower other operating expenses of $79.000 
attributed primaril! to lower incentive compensation as a result of lower earnings in 2006. 

Advanced Information Services 
The advanced information services segment provides domestic and international clients with information-technology- 
related business services and solutions for both enterprise and e-business applications. The advanced information services 
business contributed operating income of$836.000 for 2007. $767.000 for 2006. and $1.2 million for 2005. 

Advanced Information Services (in thousands) 
Increase Increase 

Forthe Years Ended December 31, 2007 2006 (decrease) 2006 2005 (decrease) 
Revenuc $15,099 $1 2.568 $2.531 $12.568 $14.140 ($1.572) 
cost of sales 8,2 60 7.082 1.178 7.082 7.181 (99) 
Ciross margin 6,839 5.486 1.353 5.486 6.959 ( 1.473) 

Operations BL maintenance 
Depreciation BL amortization 

5,225 4.1 19 1.1 06 4.119 5.129 (1.010) 
144 113 31 I13 123 (10) 

Other t a m  6 34 487 147 487 510 (23) 
Other operating cxpenso, 6,003 4.7 19 1.2 84 4.719 5.762 ( I  ,043) 

Total Operating lncome S836 $7 67 $69 $767 $1.197 ($430) 

2007 Compared to 2006 
The advanced information Serb ices business experienced gross margin growth of approximatcly $1.4 million. or 25 
percent. and contributed operating income ofX836.000 for 2007. an increase 01'$69.000. or nine percent. compared to 
2006. 

l'hc period-o\ier-period increase ol'gross margin resulted primaril) from: 

A strong demand for the segment's consulting scr\iices in 2007 generated an increase oI'$l,9 million in 
consulting revenues as the number ofbillable hours increased by 15 percent: and 
A n  increase ol'$276.000 from Managed Database Administration ("MDRA") services. first oli'ercd in the first 
quarter of 2006. which provide clients with professional database monitoring and support solutions during 
business hours or around thc clock. 

Other opcrating expenses increased b! $1.3 million to $6.0 niillion in  2007. compared to $4.7 million for 2000.  'l'his 
increase in operating expenses in 2007 is attributable to the following: 

Payroll. incentive compensation and commissions. payroll taxes. benefit claims. and consulting expense 
accounted for $937.000 01' the period-over-period increase. 'l'hesc costs increased as a result ol' improved 
earnings and increased staffing levels t o  support the growth and customer demand experienced in 2007. 
An increase in a1 lowance for uncollectiblc accounts of$273.000 associated with a customer in the mortgage 
lending busincss that had filed for bankruptq in thc third quarter of2007.  
In  addition. other operating expenses relating to various minor itcnis incrcascd b!, approximatel) X 140.000, 
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2006 Compared to 2005 
Operating income for the advanced information services segment decreased by $430.000 to $767.000 for 2006 compared 
to $1.2 million in 2005. The greater operating income in 2005 included $993.000 for the LAMPSTM product. which in 
turn included a $924.000 pre-tax gain on the sale of the product in October 2005 to Fidelity National Information 
Solutions. Inc.. a subsidiary of Fidelity National Financial. Inc. 

Revenues for the period decreased $1.6 million compared to 2005. due primarily to elimination of $1.9 million of 
revenue generated by the LAMPSTM product in 2005. Consulting revenues increased $749.000 in 2006 compared to 
2005. primarily from offering MDBA services to its customers in 2006. which accounted for $740.000 of the increase. 
and an increase of 7.6 percent in the average hourly billing rate. while the number of billable hours remained at the same 
level attained in 2005. Partially offsetting the increase in consulting revenues were decreases of $1 28.000 in training and 
product sales and $244.000 in other revenues. 

Cost of sales for 2006 decreased by $99.000 to $7.08 million. compared to the 2005 cost ofsales of$7. I8 million. which 
included $401 .000 related to LAMPSTM. After deducting the 2005 cost of sales associated with the LAMPSTM product. 
cost of sales increased in 2006 compared to 2005 to support the higher 2006 revenues. 

Other operating expenses decreased $1 .0 million in 2006 to $4.7 million compared to 2005. The reduction in expenses 
primarily reflects expenses of$554.000 in 2005 associated with LAMPST" and lower benefits costs. rent cspensc and 
consulting costs. 
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Other Operations and Eliminations 
Other operations consist primarily of subsidiaries that own real estate leased to other Compan) subsidiaries. Eliminations 
are entries required to eliminate activities between business segments from the consolidated results. Other operations and 
eliminating entries contributed operating income of $295.000 for 2007, $298.000 for 2006. and $279.000 for 2005. 

Other Operations & Eliminations (in thousands) 
Increase Increase 

For the Years Ended December 31 2007 2006 (decrease) 2006 2005 (decrease) 
Revenue $6 22 $618 $4 $618 $618 $0 
Cost of sales 
Gross margin 6 22 618 4 618 618 

Operations &L maintenance 
Depreciation &L amortization 

109 96 13 96 61 29 
160 163 (3) 163 220 (57) 

Other taxes 62 65 13) 65 81 (16) 
Other opcrating expenses 331 3 24 7 324 368 (44) 

Operating Income - Other $291 $2 94 ($3 $294 $250 $44 
Operating Income -Eliminations $4 4 $0 $4 29 ($25)  

Total Operating Income $2 95 2 98 ($3 ) $298 219 $1 9 

Other Income 

Other income lbr the years 2007. 2006. and 2005. respectivcl),. was $201 .000. $ 1  X9.000. and $383.000, nhich include 
interest income. late fees charged to customers and gains o r  losses from the sale of assets. 

Interest Expense 
Total interest expense for 2007 increased approximately $8 16.000. or  I 4  percent. compared to 2006. 'The higher 
interest expense was a result o i t h c  following developments: 

As the result of fewer capital pro,jccts in 2007 compared to  2006. the (limpan), capitalized $460.000 less 
interest on debt in 2007 associated with ongoing capital pro,iects. 
The Compan! 's  average long-term debt balance during 2007 was $76.5 million. with a weighted averagc 
interest rate of6.71 percent. compared to $67.2 million. with a weighted average interest rate of6.98 percent for 
2006. Thc large year-over-year increase in the average long-term debt balance was the result of a debt 
placement ol'S20 million in Senior hotes ("i%otes") at 5 . 5  percent in October 2000 with three institutional 
investors (The Prudential Insurance ( h i p a n !  01' America. I'rudential Retirement Insurance and Annuit! 
Company and United Omaha Lilk Insurance Company). 
'The average short-terni borrowing balance decreased by $6.3 million in 2007 to $20.0 million compared to an 
average balance of'S26.9 million in 2006. 'l'hc weighted average interest rates I'or short-term borrowing o1'5.40 
percent for 2007 and 5.47 percent for 2006. had minimum impact on the change in short-term borrowing 
expense. 

'I'otal interest expense ['or 2006 increased approxiniatcl! $642.000. o r  12.5 pcrccnt. compared l o  2005. 'l'hc incrcasc 
reflected the following: 

Average short-term debt balance and short-term intercst rates both increased in 2006 compared to 2005. The 
average short-tcrm borrowing balance increased b)' $2 1.2 million in 2000 to  $20.0 million compared to $5.7 
million in 2005 primarily to finance the $39.3 million o fne t  propert)'. plant. and equipment added in 2000. 
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The weighted average interest rate for short-term borrowing increased from 4.47 percent for 2005 to 5.47 
percent for 2006. 
The average long-term debt balance during 2006 was $67.2 million with a weighted average interest rate of 6.98 
percent, compared to $67.4 million with a weighted average interest rate of 7.18 percent for 2005. The 
Company also capitalized $586.000 o f  interest as part of capital project costs during 2006. 

income Taxes 

Income tax expense for 2007 was $8.6 million compared to $7.0 million for 2006. Income taxes increased in 2007 
compared to 2006, due primarily to increased taxable income and income taxes increased in 2006 compared to 2005. 
again due to increased taxable income. The effective federal income tax rate for each of the three years 2007, 2006 and 
2005 was 35 percent and the Compan! realized a benefit of $226.000. $220.000, and $223.000 in those years. 
respectively. resulting from a change in the tax law allowing tax deductions for dividends paid on Company stock held in 
Employee Stock Ownership Plans ("ESOP"). 

Discontinued Operations 

During the quarter ended September 30. 2007. Chesapeake decided to close its distributed energ! services compan!. 
Chesapcakc OnSight Services. LLC ('-OnSight"). which experienced operating losses since its inception in 2004. 
OnSight was previously reported as part ofthe Compan! 's Other Operations business segment. At December 3 1.2007. 
the results of operations for OnSight have been reclassified to discontinued operations and shown net of tax for all 
periods presented. The discontinued operations experienced net losses of $20.000 for 2007. $24 I .000 for 2006 and 
$23 1 .000 for 2005. 

Liquidity and Capital Resources 

Chesapeake's capital requirements reflect the capital-intensive nature of its business and are principally attributable to 
investment in neM. plant and equipment and retirement of'outstanding dcbt. 'The Company relics on cash gcncratcd f'rom 
operations. short-term borrowing. and other sources to mcet normal working capital requirements and to finance capital 
expenditures. During 2007. net cash provided by opcrating activities was $25.7 million. cash used by investing activities 
was $31.3 million and cash provided b! linancing activities was $3.7 million. 

During 2006. net cash provided by operating activities was $30.1 million. cash used by investing activities was $48.0 
million. and cash provided b! financing activities was $20.7 million. 

The Hoard of Directors has authorized the Company to borrow up to $55.0 million of short-term dcbt. as required. from 
various banks and trust companies under short-term lines of credit. As of December 3 1. 2007. Chesapeake had five 
unsecured bank lines of credit with three financial institutions. totaling $90.0 million. none of which requires 
compensating halances. These bank lines arc available to  provide funds I'or the Compan) hort-term cash needs to  meet 
seasonal working capital requirements and to fund temporarily portions of its capital expenditures. 'lliree ol'the bank 
lincs. totaling $25.0 million. are committed. Advances of'fcred undcr the uncommittcd lines of'credit arc sub,ject to  thc 
discretion ol'the banks. The outstanding balance of short-term borrowing at December 3 I .  2007 and 2006 was $45.7 
million and $27.6 million. respectively. The level of'short-term debt was reduced in 2006 with funds provided from thc 
placement of $20 million of'5.5 percent Senior Notes in October 2006 and from the proceeds ol'thc issuance of600.300 
shares of common stock in November 2006. 

Chesapeake has budgeted $37.5 million for capital expenditures during 2008. This amount includes $1 7.0 million for 
natural gas distribution. $ 1  3.3 million for natural gas transmission. $5.9 million for propane distribution and wholesalc 
marketing. $290.000 for advanced information services and $887.000 for other operations. The natural gas distribution 
and transmission expenditures are I'or expansion and improvement offacilities. The propane expenditures are to suppon 
customer growth. to acquire land for a future bulk storage facility. and to replace equipment. The advanced information 
services expenditures arc for computer hardware. softwire and related cquipment. Tbc other category includes general 
plant. computer software and hardware. The Company expects to fund the 2008 capital expenditures program from short- 
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term borrowing. cash provided by operating activities. and other sources. The capital expenditure program is sub,ject to 
continuous review and modification. Actual capital requirements may vary from the above estimates due to a number of 
factors. including changing economic conditions. customer growth in existing areas. regulation, neu growth 
opportunities. acquisition opportunities and availability of capital. 

Capital Structure 
The following presents our  capitalization as of Decem her 3 1.  2007 and 2006: 

December31, 
2007 2006 
(In thousands. except percentages) 

Long-term debt net of current maturities $63,2S6 35%) $7 1.050 3 9% 

Total capitalization excluding short-term debt S 182,832 100% $182.202 100% 
Stockholders' cquitv S 11 9,576 65% $11 1.152 61% 

As of '  Decembcr 3 I ,  2007. common equit) represented 65 percent of total capitalization. compared to h I percent at 
December 3 I .  2006. 

The f'ollowing presents our  capitalization as o f  December 3 I .  2007 and 2006. if short-term borrowing and the current 
portion of long-term debt were included in capitalization: 

December 31. 

(In thousands. except pxentages) 
Short-term dcbt $45,664 19%) $21.554 13"/n 

Long-term dcbt including current maturities $70.9 I2 3 0% $7 8.706 369;) 
I - 

Stoc kholdcrs' cqui t) %: 11 9,576 51% $11 1.152 51% 
Iotal capitalization including short-term debt $236,152 100% $217.412 1 OOO/n 

I f  short-term borrowing and the current portion of long-term debt were included in capitalization. total capitalization 
increased by .R 18.7 million in 2007 compared to 2006. 'The increased capitalization was primarily used to fund a portion 
of the $3 1.3 million of net property. plant. and equipment added in 2007 and for other general working capital. In 
addition. if short-term borrowing and the current portion of long-term dcbt were included in total capitalization. the 
equit! component o f the  Company's capitalization would have been 5 1 percent at both December 3 1 .  2007 and 2006. 

('hcsapcakc remains committed to maintaining a sound capital structure and strong credit ratings to provide the linancial 
Ilcxibilit!, necdcd to access the capital markets when required. This commitment. along with adequate and timcly ratc 
rclic1'fi)r the C'ompany's regulated operations. is intended to cnsurc that Chesapeake will be able to attract capital from 
outside sources at a reasonable cost. Thc Compan!, believes that the achievement ofthcsc ob,iectives wil l  provide bcnefits 
to customers and creditors. as well as its investors. 

Shelf Registration 
In July 2006. the Compan! filed a registration statement on Form S-3 with thc SEC to issue up to $40.0 million in new 
common stock and/or debt securities. The registration statement was declared eff'ecti\ c by the SIC' in November 2006. In 
November 2006. we sold 600.300 shares of common stock. including the underwritcr's cxercisc of'their over-allotment 
option of 90.045 shares. under this registration statemcnt. generating net proceeds of'.Rl 0.7 million. Thc net proceeds 
from the sale were used for  general corporate purposes. including financing of capital expenditures. repayment orshort- 
term debt, and funding working capital requirements. At December 3 1.2007 and 2006. the Company had approxiinatel! 
$20.0 million remaining under this registration statement. 
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Cash Flows Provided by Operating Activities 
Our cash flows provided by (used in) operating activities were as follows: 

For the Years Ended December 31, 20 07 2006 2005 
Net income $1 3,197,710 $10,506,525 $10,467,614 
Non-cash adiustments to net income 15,554,639 1 1,186,418 13,059,678 
Changes in working capital (3,070,465) 8,424,055 (9,927,351) 

Net cash from operating activties $25,681,884 $30,116,998 $13,599,941 

Period-over-period changes in our cash flows from operating activities are attributable primarill to changes in net 
income and working capital. Changes in working capital are determined by a variety of factors. including weather. the 
price of natural gas and propane, the timing of customer collections. payments of natural gas and propane purchases. and 
deferred gas cost recoveries. 

The Company generates a large portion of its annual net income and subsequent increases in our accounts receivable in 
the first and fourth quarters of each year due to significant volumes of natural gas and propane delivered by our Delmarva 
natural gas and propane distribution operations to our customers during the peak heating season. In addition, our natural 
gas and propane inventories. which usually peak in the fall months. are largely drawn down in the heating season and 
provide a source of cash as the inventory is used to satisfi winter sales demand. 

In 2007. our net cash flow provided by operating activities was $25.7 million. a decrease of $4.4 million from 2006. The 
2007 operating cash flows reflect the favorable timing of payments Tor accounts payable and accrued liabilitics. which 
increased operating cash flow by $22.1 million. In addition. increased net income and favorable non-cash adjustments. 
primarily depreciation expense. contributed to the increase in operating cash flow. Partially offsetting these incrcascs in 
operating cash flow was an increase in accounts receivable o1’$28.2 million associated with increased revenues and the 
timing of invoicing by our propanc wholesale and marketing operation. 

In 2006. our net cash flow provided b!, operating activities was $30.1 million. an increase ofSi16.5 million m e r  2005. 
This increase was primarily a result of the recovery during 2006 ol’working capital that was deployed in  2005 due to 
significantly higher commodity prices and the amount of working capital required for operations. Also. contributing to 
this increase was a reduction of $6.1 million in natural gas and propane purchased for inventor! as il result of mild 
weather in the prior heating season and therefore higher inventory balances f‘or the current heating season. 

Cash Flows Used in Investing Activities 
bet cash Ilows used in investing activities totaled $3 I .3 million. S4X.O million and $33.  I million during fiscal !ears 
2007. 2006. and 2005. respectivel!,. 

Cash utilized I:)r capital cspenditures was $3 I .3 million. $48.0 million and $33.3 million Ibr 2007. 2006. and 
2005. respectivelJ.. Additions to propert), plant and equipment in 2007 werc primarily for natural gas 
transmission ($9.2 million). natural gas distribution ( $ 1  5.2 million). propane distribution ($5.2 million). and 
other operations ($1.7 million). In both 2007 and 2006. the natural gas distribution expenditures were used 
priniaril). to fund expansion and facilities improvements. In both periods. the natural gas transmission capital 
expenditures related primarily to expanding the Company‘s transmission s) ‘Stem. : 
Sales of property. plant. and equipment generated $205.000 o f  cash in 2007. 
The Company‘s environmental expenditures exceeded amounts recovered through rales charged to customers in 
2007 and 2006 by Si228.000 and $ 16.000. respectivel),: in 2005. the Company rccovcrcd from its customers 
$240.000 in excess ol’ its environmental expenditures for the period. 
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Cash Flows Provided by Financing Activities 
Cash flows provided by financing activities totaled $3.7 million during 2007. $20.7 million during 2006. and $20.4 
million during 2005. Significant financing activities included the following: 

During 2007 and 2005. net borrowing of short-term debt increased by $18.7 million and $29.6 million. 
respectively. primarily to support our capital investments. During 2006. the Company reduced it short-term debt 
by $8.0 million. 

The Company repaid $7.7 million of long-term debt during 2007 compared with $4.9 million during 2006 and 
$4.8 niillion during 2005. 

During 2007. the Company paid $7.0 million in cash dividends compared with dividend payments of $6.0 
million and $5.8 million for 2006 and 2005. respectively. The increase in dividends paid in 2007 compared to 
2006 rcflects both growth in the annualized dividend rate. from $1.16 per share during 2006 to $1.18 per share 
during 2007. and the increase in shares outstanding following the issuance of additional shares of common 
stock in the fourth quarter of2006. 

In November 2006. the Compan). sold 600.300 shares ofcommon stock. including the underwriter's exercise of 
their over-allotment option of 90.045 shares. pursuant to a shelf registration statemcnt declared cffcctive in 
November 2006. generating net proceeds o f $ l 9 . 7  million. 

In October 2006. the Company placed $20.0 million o f 5 3  percent Senior Notes ("Notes") to three institutional 
investors (The Prudential Insurance Company of America. Prudential Retirement Insurance and Annuity 
Company and United Omaha Life Insurance Company). 

In August 2006. the Company paid cash of $435.000. in lieu of issuing shares ofthe Company's common stock 
Ihr thc 30.000 stock warrants outstanding at December 3 1. 2005. 
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Contractual Obligations 

We have the following contractual obligations and other commercial commitments as of December 3 1. 2007: 

Payments Due by Period 
More than 5 

Contractual Obligations Lessthanlyear I-3yean 3-Syears V e a  n Total 

Long-term debt"' $7.656.364 $13.312727 $14.474.545 $35.468.364 $70.912000 

operating leasci ' 2 1  790.801 1.21 1.720 1.166.800 22  52.7 1 4 5.422035 

P u r c k  oMlgatlons 
Transnisson capacity 9,302.772 20.794.882 6266.171 21339,713 57.703.538 
S t o w  -NEbWdI G~E 1.553.175 4.210.670 3.015.217 1.838.948 10.618010 
Comdit ies  13.9U7.762 63.5 15 13.97 1.277 
Faward prck contracts -Propane '' 4 1.781.709 41,781,709 

Unfbckd b a d i n  ('I 308.552 628.1 43 645.350 1.945.895 3.52 7.940 
Funded knefits ("' 73.939 133.864 1 1 9,852 1.572.844 1.900.499 
Total C:ontractual Ubhgahons S753 75.U74 %40.3%521 m.68 7.93.5 %4,4 18.478 Su5.83 7.008 

' I '  Principal p a y " &  on long-term debt. see Note tl. "l,ong-Term Debt." in the No ta  to the Consolidated Financial Statemnts  
for additional discussion of this  item The e x p t e d  interest payments on long-tam debt are $4 7 million. $7 8 million. 
$5 9 million a n d U  5 million, respectively. for theperiods indicatedabovc Expected interest payments for all periods 
total $26 million 

ee Note J. "IraseOblifations." in the Notes to the Cr)nsoiidated Finaxial  Statements foradditional dscussion orthis iteni 
l3'See Notc N, "other Commihnents and Contingencies." in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statanents for further 

"'The Company has also entered into forward sale contracts See "Market Risk" o f t k  ManagemmCs Discussion and Analysis 
for further information 

'"Thc Compnv has rccorded long-term Iiahilitics oC53.5 million at Decemha 3 I, 2007 for unhndcd post-rdirment benefit 
plans Thc a m u n t s  specified in the table arc based on expected payments to current retirees and assumes a retirement ape 
of 65 for currently active employees There an: many factors that would cause actual payment? to differ from t h s e  amun t s .  
including carly rctircmcnt. future health care costs that differ from past cxpaience and discount raics implicit in calcdatiom 

'"'The C o m p v  has recorded long-term liabilities o f $  I 9 million at Decemba 3 I .  2007 for funded benefik These liabilities have 
been funded using ii Rabbi Trust and an asset in tk ram amount is  worded  under i n v a m e n t s  on the Balance Shcct 

The defined knefi t  pension plan was closcd to new participants on January I ,  1999 and participants in the plan on that date 
werc given the option to  leave the plan See Notc K. "l:mplovec Benefit Plans," in the Notes to  the Consolidated Financial 
Statements for further informtion on the plan S i n c e t k  plan modification. IX) additional fundng has bcm required From t k  

Company and none is expected for the ~ x t  live years. based on Factors in efkct a t  December 31. 2007 However. this is 
sublect rochange based on the actual return carwd hv thc plan assets and othcr actuarial assumplions. such as thc discount 
rite and long-term cyxcted rate of rcturn on plan assets 

information 

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements 
The Conipan) has issued corporate guarantees to  certain vendors ol'its propane wholcsalc marketing subsidiar! and its 
Florida natural gas supply management subsidiarj,. 'l'hesc corporate guarantees provide I'or the payment ofpropane and 
natural gas purchases in the event either subsidiary's def'ault. Neithcr of' thcsc subsidiaries has ever dcfaulted in its 
obligations to pay its suppliers. The liabilities for these purchases arc recorded in the Consolidated Financial Statements 
when incurred. The aggregate amount guaranteed at Ileccmbcr 3 I .  2007 was $24.2 million. with the guarantees expiring 
on various dates in 2008. 

In addition to the corporate guarantees. the Company has issued a tetter of'credit to its primary insurance compan) f o r  
$775.000. which expires on May 3 I .  2008. The letter ol'crcdit is provided as security to  satisl) the deductibles under thc 
Company's various insurance policies. There ha\.e been no draws on this letter of  credit as of' Ilecember 3 I I 2007. 
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Regulatory Activities 

The Company's natural gas distribution operations in Delaware, Maryland and Florida are sub.ject to regulation by their 
respective PSCs: Eastern Shore, the Company's natural gas transmission operation. is subject to regulation by the FERC. 

Delaware. On September 2,2005. the Delaware division filed an application with the Delaware PSC requesting approval 
of an alternative rate design and rate structure in order to provide natural gas service to prospective customers in eastern 
Sussex County ("2005 Proceeding"). While Chesapeake provides natural gas service to residents and businesses in 
portions of Sussex County under the Company's current tariff. natural gas distribution lines have not been extended to a 
large portion of eastem Sussex County targeted for growth by the State of Delaware. In April 2002. Governor Ruth Ann 
Minner established the Delaware Energy Task Force ("Task Force"). whose mission was to address the State's long-term 
and short-term energy challenges. In September 2003. the Task Force issued its final report to the Governor that included 
a strategy to enhance the availability of natural gas within the State by evaluating possible incentives for expanding 
residential and commercia! natural gas service. Chesapeake believes its current proposal to implement a rate design that 
will enable the Company to provide natural gas as a viable energy choice to a broader number ofprospective customers 
within eastern Susses County supports the Task Force recommendation. As the Delaware division included these 
proposals in its base rate filing made on .July 6.2007. the Delaware division closed the 2005 Proceeding with the intent to 
continue discussions in the context of the 2007 base rate proceeding. 

On September 1. 2006. the Company filed with the Delaware PSC its annual Gas Sales Service Rates ("GSR") 
Application. seeking approval to change its GSR rates effective for service rendered on and after November 1.2006, On 
October 3. 2006. the Delaware I'SC authorized the Company to implement the GSR charges on a temporary basis and 
sub,iect to refund. pending the completion of'full evidentiary hearings and a linal dccision by the Delaware PSC. The 
Division ofthe Public Advocate ("DPA") recommended a cost disallowance ol'approximately $4.4 million related to the 
Delaware division's commodity procurement purchases and a disallowance ofapproximately $275.000 related to pipeline 
capacity the 1)claware division holds in eastern Susses County. Delaware. The Delaware PSC Staff recommended a cost 
disallowance ol'approximately $2.2 million related to the Delaware division's commodity procurement purchases and thc 
deferral of approximately $535.000 related to pipeline capacity the Delaware division holds in eastern Sussex Count),. 
Delaware. The  Company disagreed with these recommendations and opposed the proposed cost disallowances and 
deferrals in its rebuttal position submitted on April 19. 2007. Under established Delaware Ian. gas procurement costs. 
like other normally accepted operating expenses. cannot be disallowed unless it  is shown that the costs were the result o f  
an abuse of discretion. bad faith. or waste. Management believes that the Company's gas procurement practices and 
pipeline capacity costs were reasonable and that. in no event were the costs at issue incurred as a result ofany abuse of 
discretion. bad fBith. or waste on the part of the C o m p a q .  On July 24. 2007. the Delaware PSC approved a settlement 
agreement among the parties resulting in a complete recovery o f t h c  Delaware division's costs. As a result of the 
settlement agreement. the Delaware division has agreed to contribute an amount equal to $37.500 per >'ear for the next 
three ycars to a program designed to bcnclit eldcrl>. disabled. and low-inconic customers ol'thc Dclawarc division. In 
addition. with respect to the allowances for  recovery ol'costs associated with pipeline capacity in eastern Susses Count). 
the settlement provides for thc Delawarc division to reduce the total amount of'GSR charges to he collected Itom its 
customers b!, $275.000. cfl'ectivc beginning with the billing period from November I .  2007 through Octobcr 3 I ,  2008. 
The settlement also provides for the Delanare division to add $275.000 to the total GSR charges to he collected from 
customers effectivc for billings from November 1. 2008 through October 3 I .  2009. 

On November I .  2006. the 1)clacvarc division lilcd with thc 1)claware PSC' its annual Ihvironmcntal Ridcr (*'I:R'') rate 
application to become effective for service rendered on and after December I. 2006. The Delaware PSC granted approval 
ofthe ER rate at its regularl!, scheduled meeting on Novemhcr 21. 2006. subject to full evidentiar!' hearings and a final 
decision. On January 23. 2007. the Ilelawarc I'SC granted linal approval ol'thc ER rate as filed. 

On Kovember 9. 2006. the Delaware division liled two applications with the Delaware PSC' requesting approval for a 
7'otvn of Millsboro Franchise Fcc Kider and a Town ol'Cicorgetown Franchise 1:cc Rider. These Riders wil! allow ihc 
Iklawarc division to charge all respective natural gas customers within town limits the lranchisc k c  paid by the 
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Delaware division to the Towns of Millsboro and Georgetown as a condition to providing natural gas service. The 
Delaware PSC granted approval ofboth Riders on Januarj 23. 2007. 

On July 6, 2007. the Company filed with the Delaware PSC an application seeking approval of the following: ( i )  
participation by the Company's Delaware commercial and industrial customers in transportation buying pools served by 
third-party natural gas marketers; ( i i )  a base rate adjustment of $1.896.000 annually that represents approximately a 3.25 
percent rate increase on average for the Delaware division's firm customers: ( i i i )  an altemative rate design for residential 
customers in a defined expansion area in eastern Sussex County. Delaware: and (iv) a revenue normalization mechanism 
that reduces the impact of natural gas consumption on both customers and the Company. As an incentive for the 
Delaware division to make the significant capital investments to serve the growing areas ofeastern Sussex County and in 
supporting Delaware's Energy Policy. the Company has proposed as part of the filing that the Delaware division be 
permitted to earn a return on equity up to 15 percent. This level of return would ensure that the Company's investors are 
adequately compensated for the increased risk associated with the higher levels of capital investment necessary to 
provide natural gas in those growing areas. On August 21. 2007. the Delaware PSC authorized the Company to 
implement charges reflecting the proposed $1 396.000 increase effective September 4. 2007 on a temporary basis and 
subject to refund. pending the completion of full evidentiary hearings and a final decision by the Delaware PSC. The 
Delaware PSC Staff filed testimony recommending a rate decrease of $693.245. The DPA recommended a ratc decrease 
of $588,670. Neither party recommended approval of the Delaware division's other proposals mentioned above. The 
Delaware division strongly disagrees with these positions and is currentl!) in the process ofdrafting its rebuttal position 
which was filed on February 7. 2008. The Delaware division anticipates a final decision by the Delaware PSC during the 
second quarter of2008.  

On September IO. 2007, the Company filed with the Delaware PSC its annual GSR Application. seeking the approval of' 
the Delaware I'SC to change its GSR rates effective for service rendered on and after November 1.2007. On October 2. 
2007. the Delaware PSC authorized the Company to implement the t iSR charges on a temporary basis and subject to 
refund. pending the completion of full evidentiary hearings and a final decision by the Delawart. PSC. 'The Delaware 
division anticipates a final decision by the Delaware I'SC during the second or third quarter of7008. 

On November I .  2007. the Delaware division filed with the Delauare PSC its annual Environmental Rider ("ER") rate 
application to become effective for service rendered on and afier Decembcr 1.2007. Thc Delaware PSC granted approval 
of the Eli ratc at its regularly scheduled meeting on November 20. 2007. subject to full evidentiar) hearings and a final 
decision. The Delaware division anticipates a final decision by the Delaware PSC' during thc first quarter of2008.  

Maryland. On September 26. 2006. the Maryland PSC approved a base rate increase for the Maryland division of 
approximately $7X0.000 annuall!'. In a settlemcnt agreement entered into in that proceeding. thc Maryland di\ 'ision '. ' was 
required to iile a depreciation study. which w a s  filed on April 9. 2007. The Mapland division tiled formal testimony on 
July IO. 2007. initiating a phase I1 ofthis proceeding. In this iiling. the Maryland division proposed a ratc decreasc 01' 
approximately $80,000 annually. resulting from a change in depreciation espensc. O n  Xovcnibcr 29.2007 thc Maryland 
PSC approved a settlement agreement for a rate decrease of161 32.155. effective December 1.2007 based on the change 
in the Company's dcprcciation rates. 

O n  I>cccmbcr 17.2007. the Maryland PSC held an evidentiary hearing to daerniinc the reasonableness ol'thc Maryland 
division's four quarterly gas cost recovery filings during the twelve months ended September 30.2007. No issues were 
raised at the hearing. The Manland division anticipates a final decision by the Maryland PSC' during the lirst quarter 01' 
2008. 

Florida. On October IO. 2006. the Florida division filed with the Florida PSC a petition for authorit) to implement phase 
two of its experimcntal transitional transportation service ("TTS") pilot program. and liir approval of' a  ne^' tariff' to 
reflect the division's transportation service environment. Phase two of the TTS program for residential and certain small 
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commercial consumers will expand the number of pool managers from one to two and increase the gas supply pricing 
options available to these consumers. Approved on April 24. 2007 by the Florida PSC. phase two o f the  TTS program 
went into effect on July 1 .  2007. 

On November 29. 2006. the Florida division filed with the Florida PSC a petition for authority to modify its energy 
conservation programs. In this petition. the Florida division sought approval to increase the cash allowances paid within 
its Residential I-Iomebuilder Program and the Residential Appliance Replacement Program, and to expand the scope of its 
Residential Water Heater Retention Program to add natural gas heating systems. cooking and clothes drying appliances. 
The Florida PSC granted approval of the petition in an order dated March 5 .  2007. The modifications and new cash 
allowances became effective on March 30. 2007. 

On May 2. 2007. the Florida division filed its summary of activig and true-up calculation for its 2006 Energq 
Conservation Cost Recovery Program with the Florida PSC. On September 5.2007. the Florida PSC issued its audit 
report in which less than $8.000. or one percent. ofthe 2006 expenditures were disallomed as non-conservation-related. 
The results of the audit were incorporated into thc calculation of the 2008 Energy Conservation Cost Recovep Factors, 
M hich were filed with the Florida PSC on September 13.2007. approved on November 6.2007. and became effective on 
Januarq I ,  2008. 

In compliance with the Florida Administrative Code. the Florida division filed its 2007 Depreciation Study ("Study") 
with the Florida PSC on Ma) 17. 2007. This study provides the Florida PSC with the opportunity to review and address 
changes in plant and equipment lives, salvage values. reserves and resulting life depreciation rates since the last study 
performed in 2002. In its filing, the Florida dkision has rcqucsted that any changes to the depreciation rates be made 
cffcctive Januar) I .  2008. The Florida division responded to interrogatories conccrning the Study on October 15 and 
December 24. 2007. While the Companq cannot predict the outcome of  the Florida PSC's revim at this time. the 
Company anticipates a final decision regarding the depreciation rates in the second quarter of2008.  

On July 6.2007. the Compan!, and Peoples Gas Service ("I'GS''). another local gas distribution company in Florida. filed 
a joint petition Ibr Commission action o n  a territorial agrccmcnt for portions of Pasco County. a Master Territorial 
Agreement and a Gas Transportation Agreement filed as a special contract. PGS operates a natural gas distribution 
system in Pasco Count!' but is unable to serve economically certain areas of the count). 'The Company entered into 
negotiations with PCiS that would allow the Company to serve these areas by connecting to PGS' existing distribution 
system and to extend its facilities into these specific territories to serve primarily residential and commercial consumers. 
The negotiations concluded with the execution ofa  Pasco County Territorial Agreement that provides the Company with 
two distinct areas as its territory and a Gas Transportation Agreement that speciiies thc terms. conditions and rates for 
transportation service across the I'GS distribution system. The Compan!, and I'GS have also entered into a Master 
'l'crritorial Agreement that contains terms and conditions which will govern all existing and potential territorial 
agreements. The Florida PSC approved these agreements at its October 9. 2007 agenda conftrencc. 

On August 27. 2007. I'IPECO. lilcd with tbc Florida I'SC its petition for approval o r a  natural gas transmission pipclinc 
tariff in order to establish its operating rules and regulations. The Florida I'SC approved thc petition at its December 4. 
2007 agenda conference. 

Eastern Shore. During 2007. FER(' regulatory activity regarding the expansion ol'1:astcrn Shorc's transmission system 
included the l'ollowing: 

System Exuansion 2006 - 2008. On .lanuar! 20. 2006. Eastern Shore filed with thc l:I;l<C an application (or a 
Certificate of Public Convenicncc and Necessity for its 2006-2008 sysiem expansion project (.'the 2006 - 2008 
Pro.ject"). The application requested authorit!) lo construct and operate approximatel! 5 5  miles ofnew pipclinc 
facilities and two new metering and regulating station facilities to provide an additional 47.350 dekatherms per 
day (*'Dt/d") ol'firm transportation service in accordance with customer requests 01'26.200 Dt/d in  2006. 10.300 
Dt/d in 2007. and 10.850 D tid i n  2008. at a to tal estimated cost of' approximatel!, $33.6 million. On June 13. 
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2006. the FERC issued a certificate authorizing Eastern Shore to construct and operate the 2006 - 2008 Project 
as proposed. On November 1, 2006. Eastern Shore completed and placed in service the authorized Phase 1 
facilities. 

On July 24. 2007. Eastern Shore requested FERC authorization to commence construction of a portion 
(approximately 4 miles) of the Phase I1 facilities. Eastern Shore received the requested FERC authorization on 
August 11. 2007. Facilities habe been completed and were placed in service on November 1. 2007. These 
additional facilities provide for 8.300 Dts of additional firm capacib per da! and annualized gross margin 
contribution of $1.2 million. instead of the amounts included in the original filing of 10.300 Dts of additional 
firm capacity per day and $1.5 million annualized gross margin contribution. 

On November 15. 2007 Eastern Shore requested FERC authorization to commence construction of Phase 111 
facilities (approximately 9.2 miles). The FERC granted this authorization on Januag 7. 2008. Construction 
activities are to begin in the first quarter of 2008 and are to be completed and placed in service on November 1. 
2008. These Phase I l l  facilities provide for 5.650 Dts ofadditional firm capacity per day and annualized gross 
margin contribution of approximately $1 .O million instead of the amounts included in the original filing of 
10.850 [Its o f  additional firm capacit) per day and $1.6 million annualized gross margin contribution. 

Eastern Shore Enerevlink Expansion Proiect ("E3 Proiect"). In 2006. Eastern Shore proposed to develop. 
construct and operate approximately 75 miles o f  ncn' pipeline facilities to transport natural gas from Calvert 
County, Maryland. crossing under the Chesapeake Bay into Dorchester and Caroline Counties, Mar) land, to 
points on the Delmarva Peninsula where such facilities would interconnect with Eastern Shore's existing 
facilities in Susscx Count). Dclawarc. 

On May 3 1.  2006, Eastern Shore entered into Precedent Agreements (the "Precedent Agreements") with 
Delinarva Power & Light Company ("Delniarva") and Chesapeake, through its Delaware and Maryland 
divisions. to provide additional firm transportation services upon completion of the E3 I'miect. Both 
Chesapcake and Delmarva are parties to existing firm natural gas transportation service agreements with 
Eastern Shore, and each desires additional firm transportation service under the E3 Pro,ject. as evidenced by the 
Precedent Agreements. Pursuant to the Precedent Agreements. thc parties agreed to proceed with the required 
initiatives to obtain the governmental and regulatory authorizations necessary for Eastem Shore to provide. and 
fbr  Chesapeake and Delmarva to utilize. additional firm transportation service under the E3 I'rqject. 

As part of thc Precedent Agreements. Eastern Shore. Chesapeakc and Delmarva also entered into ILetter 
Agreements which provide that. if the event that the E3 Project is not certificated and placed in service. 
Chesapcake and Delmarva will each pay their proportionate share oi' certain pre-certification costs by means of' 
a negotiated surcharge of'up to $2 million. over a period of' not less than 20 years. 

In lurthcrancc of the E3 I'ro,ject. Eastern Shore submitted il petition to the FERC on June 27. 2006 seeking 
approval of an uncontested rate-related Settlement Agreement by and between Eastern Shore. Chesapeake and 
Delmarva (the "Settlement Agreement"). The Settlement Agreement provides Eastern Shore and all customers 
utilizing Eastern Shore's system with benefits. including but not limitcd to the following: ( I  ) advancement o f a  
necessar!. infrastructurc pro,iect to meet thc growing demand f'or natural gas o n  thc Dclmarva I'eninsula: ( 2 )  
sharing of'prqject development costs by the participating customers in the prqicct: and ( 3 )  n o  development cost 
risk for non-participating customers. On August I .  2006. the FERC approved the Settlement Agreemcnt. which 
was uncontested. On September 6.2006. Eastcrn Shore submitted to FERC proposed tariff sheets to implement 
the provisions o f t h e  Settlement Agreement. By Lettcr Order dated October 6. 2006. the FERC acccpted the 
tariff sheets. cf'fective September 7. 2006. 

O n  April 23. 2007. Eastern Shore submitted to the FER(' its rcquest to commence a prc-filing process and on 
Ma) 15. 2007. the FERC notified Eastern Shorc that its request had been approved. The pre-filing process is 
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intended to engage all interested and affected stakeholders early in the process with the intention ofresolving all 
environmental issues prior to the formal certificate application being filed. As part of this process. Eastern 
Shore has performed environmental. engineering and cultural surveys and studies in the interest of protecting 
the environment, minimizing any potential impacts to landowners. and cultural resources. Eastern Shore has 
also held meetings with federal. state and local permittinghegulatory agencies. non-governmental organizations. 
landowners. and other interested stakeholders. 

As part of  an updated engineering study. Eastern Shore received additional construction cost estimates for the 
E3 project. which indicated substantially higher costs than previously estimated. In an effort to optimize the 
feasibility of  the overall prqject development plan. Eastern Shore explored all potential construction methods. 
construction cost mitigation strategies. potential design changes and prqiect schedule changes. Eastern Shore 
also held discussions and meetings with several potential new' customers. who have expressed an interest in the 
pro,jcct that would expand its size and likely have significant impact on the cost. timeline and in-service date. 

On December 20.2007. Eastern Shore withdrew from the pre-filing process as a result of insufficient customer 
commitments for capacity to make the prqject economical. Eastern Shore will continue to explore potential 
construction methods. construction cost mitigation strategies. additional market requests. and potential design 
changes in its efforts to improve the overall economics o f the  prqject. 

If Eastern Shore decides to abandon the E3 Prqject. it will initiate billing ofpre-certification costs surcharge in 
accordance with the terms of the Precedent Agreements executed with two of its customers. which provide for 
these customers to reimburse Eastern Shore for prc-certification costs incurred in connection with the E3 
I'ro.ject. up to a maximum amount of$2.0 million each over a period o f20  years. As ofDecember 3 I. 2007. the 
Conipany had incurred $2.97 million ofpre-certification costs relating to the E3 Pro,iect. 

During 2007. 1:astern Shore also had developments in the following I-ERC rate matters: 

On October 3 I, 2006. Eastern Shore filed a base rate procccding with the IXRC in compliance with the 
scttlement approved in its prior base rate proceeding. Eastern Shore's filed rates. proposed to be effective 
November 1 .  2006. rellected an annual increase or  $5.589.000 i n  its annual operating revenues based on 
increases in operating and maintenance expenses. depreciation expense. taxes other than income taxes. and 
return on existing gas plant l'acilities and new facilities placed into service b!, March 3 1. 2007. 

On Novcmbcr 30.2006 thc FbXC' issued an order suspending the efl'ectiveness oi' Eastern Shore's proposed rate 
increase until Ma!, 1. 2007. sub.ject to  refund and the outcome of'the hearing established in thc order. On 
Ikccmhcr  19. 2006. the Presiding Administrative I a n  Judge ("AI ,.I*') approved a procedural schedulc to govern 
further proccedings in this case. 

Settlement conferences were held o n  April 17. Ma!, 30. and June 0.2007 at the F I~ l IC ' s  offices in Washington. 
D.C. O n  Ma), 14. 2007. Eastern Shore filed a motion. which the FER(' granled. to make its suspended rate 
increase cfl'ectivc on Ma!. 15. 2007. sub,icct to refund. pending thc ultimate resolution of the rate case. At thc 
.lune 6. 2007 conference. the parties reached a settlement agreement in principle. and on June 8.2007. the Chic!' 
AI,.I suspended the procedural schedule to a l l o ~  time for thc parties to draft a fbrmal Stipulation and 
Agreement. The negotiated settlement provides for an annual cost ol'service of$2 1.5-36.000. which reflects a 
pretas return on equity of 13.6 percent and a rate increase ol'approximately $1.07 million on an annual basis. 
On September IO. 2007. tern Shore submitted its Settlement Offer to thc Conimission for the A L J ' s  review 
and certification to the full Commission. There were no comments liled ob,jecting to. or in protest ol: the 
Settlement Oflcr. 

Eastern Shore filed concurrcntl!, with its Settlement Agreement ii Motion to place the settlement rates into cl'fcct 
on September I .  2007. in order to expedite the implementation oi'the reduced settlement rates pending final 
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approval of the settlement. The Commission issued an order on September 25.2007. authorizing Eastem Shore 
to commence billing its settlement rates effective September 1. 2007. 

On October I ,  2007. the Presiding ALJ forwarded to the full Commission an order certifying the uncontested 
Settlement Agreement as fair. reasonable. and in the public interest. A final Commission Order approving the 
settlement was issued on January 3 1.2008. 

Environmental Matters 

The Company continues to work with federal and state environmental agencies to assess the environmental impact and 
explore corrective action at three environmental sites (see Note M to the Consolidated Financial Statements). The 
Compan) believes that future costs associated with these sites will be recoLerable in rates or through sharing 
arrangements with. or contributions b) . other responsible parties. 

Market Risk 

Market risk represents the potential loss arising from adverse changes in market rates and prices. Long-term debt is 
sub,ject to potential losses based on changes in interest rates. The Company's long-term debt consists of  first mortgage 
bonds. fixed-rate senior notes and convertible debentures (see 'Riote H to the Consolidated Financial Statements for 
annual maturities of consolidated long-term debt). All o f the  Company's long-term debt is fixed-rate debt and was not 
entered into for trading purposes. The carrying value of long-term debt. including current maturities. was $70.9 million at 
December 3 1, 2007. as compared to a fair value of$75.0 million. based mainly on current market prices or discounted 
cash flows. using current rates for similar issues with similar terms and remaining maturities. The Company evaluates 
whether t o  refinance existing debt or permanently refinance existing short-term borrowing. based in part o n  the 
fluctuation i n  interest rates. 

The Company's propane distribution business is exposed to market risk as a result of propane storage activities and 
entering into fixcd price contracts for supply. The Company can store up to approximatel! four million gallons (including 
leased storage and rail cars) of propane during the winter season to meet its customers' peak requirements and to serve 
metered customers. Decreases in the wholesale pricc of propane may cause the value of stored propane to decline. 'lo 
mitigate thc impact of price fluctuations. the Company has adopted a Risk Management Policy that allows thc propane 
distribution operation to enter into fair value hedges of its inventory. Management reviewed the Company's storage 
position as of December 3 I .  2007. and elected not to hedge an!' of its inventories. At December 3 I .  2006. the propane 
distribution operation had entered into a swap agreement to  protect the Company from the impact ofprice increases on 
the price-cap plan that we offer to customers. The Company considered this agreement to be an economic hedge that did 
not qualif) Ibr hedge accounting as described in SFAS 133. At the end of2006. the market pricc ofpropane droppcd 
bclow the unit price within the sivap agreement. As a result of the price drop. the Compan). marked the agreement to 
market. which resulted in an unrealized l o s s  o1'$84.000. T h e  Company did not enter into a similar agrecnicnt i n  2007. 

,. I he Company's propane wholesale marketing operation is a party to natural gas liquids ("NGI,") forward contracts. 
primaril!, propanc contracts. with various third parties. These contracts require that the propane wholesale marketing 
operation purchase or sell NGI. at a fixed pricc at fixcd future dates. At  expiration. the contracts are settled b! the 
delivery ol 'NGL LO the Company or the counter-part!' or "booking out" the transaction. Booking out is a procedure fbr 
financially settling a contract in lieu ofthe physical deli\ er) ofenerg!, . The propane wholesale marketing operation also 
enters into futures contracts that arc traded on thc Neu York Mcrcaniilc I:xchangc. In ccrtain cascs. thc futures conlracls 
are settled by the payment or receipt of a net amount equal to the difference between the current market price of'the 
futures contract and the original contract price: however. the! ma!' also be settled b> physical receipt or delivery of' 
propane. 

The forward and f'uturcs contracts are entered ink) 11)r trading and wholesale marketing purposes. 'l'hc propane wholcsalc 
marketing business is sub,iect to commodity price risk on its open positions to  the extent that market prices I'or N G l ,  
deviatc from fixcd contract settlement prices. Market risk associated with the trading of'fiiturcs and 1i)rward contracts is 
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monitored daily for compliance with the Company's Risk Management Policy. which includes volumetric limits for open 
positions. To manage exposures to changing market prices. open positions are marked up or down to market prices and 
reviewed by the Company's oversight officials daily. In addition. the Risk Management Committee reviews periodic 
reports on market and the credit risk of counter-parties. approves any exceptions to the Risk Management Policy (within 
limits established by the Board of Directors) and authorizes the use of  any new types of contracts. Quantitative 
information on forward and futures contracts at December 3 1.  2007 and 2006 is presented in the following tables. 

Quantity in Estimated Market Weighted Average 
At December 31,2007 gallons Prices Contract Prices 

Forward Contracts 
Sale 
Purchase 

30,941,400 $0.8925 - $1.6025 $1.3555 
30,954,000 $0.8700 - $1.6000 $1.3498 

Estimated market prices and weighted average contract prices are in dollars per gallon. 
A// contracts expire in 2008. 

Quantity Estimated Weighted Average 
At December 31,2006 in gallons Market Prices Contract Prices 
Forward Contracts 

Sale 
Purchase 

13,797,000 $0.9250 -$1.2100 $1.01 07 
13,733,800 $0.9250 -$1.2200 $1.0098 

Estimated market prices and weighted average contract prices are in dollars per gallon. 
All contracts expired in 2007 

The Company's natural gas distribution and marketing operations have entered into agreements with natural gas suppliers 
to purchase natural gas for resale to their customers. Purchases under these contracts either do not meet the definition of 
derivatives in SFAS Yo. I33 or arc considered "normal purchases and sales" under SFAS No. 138 and are not marked to 
market. 

Competition 
The Company's natural gas operations compcte with other forms ol'energy including electricity. oil and propane. The 
principal competitive factors arc price and. to  a lesser extent. accessibility. The Company's natural gas distribution 
operations have scvcral large volumc industrial customers that can use fuel oil as an alternative to natural gas. When oil 
prices decline. these interruptible customers may convert to oil to satisf), their fuel requirements. Lower levels of 
interruptible sales ma!' occur when oil priccs arc lower than the price of natural gas. Oil prices. as well as the prices of 
clcctricity and other fuels. are sub,ject to fluctuation for a variet), ofreasons: thcrelilre. future competitive conditions are 
not predictablc. '1'0 address this unccrtaint). thc ('ompany uses flexible pricing arrangements o n  both the supply and sales 
sides ol'this business to compete w i t h  thc lluctuations in its customers' altcrnativc luel prices. As a result 01' the 
transmission operation's conversion to open access and the Florida gas distribution division's restructuring 01' its 
services. their busincsscs have shifted l k m  prwiding bundled transportation and sales scrvicc to providing onl!, 
transportation and contract storage services. 

The Compan) ' s  natural gas distribution operations in Delaware. Maryland and l lorida offer unbundled transportation 
services to certain commercial and industrial customers. In 2002. the Florida operation extended such service to 
resideniial customers. With such transportation service available on the Company's distribution systems. the Company is 
competing with third-part!, suppliers to sell gas to  industrial customers. With rcspcct to unbundled transportation 
services. the C'ompan!"~ competitors include interstatc transmission companies. ifthc distribution customers arc located 
close enough to a transmission conipany's pipelinc to make connections economically feasible. l'hc customers a( risk arc 
usually large volunic commercial and industrial custonicrs with the financial resources and capabilit!, to  hypass thc 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 2007 Form 10-K Page 49 



Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Company's distribution operations in this manner. In certain situations. the Company's distribution operations may adjust 
services and rates for these customers to retain their business. The Company expects to continue to expand the 
availability of transportation service to additional classes of distribution customers in the future. The Company 
established a natural gas sales and supply operation in Florida to compete for customers eligible for transportation 
services. The Company also provides such sales service in Delaware. 

The Company's propane distribution operations compete with several other propane distributors in their service 
territories. primarily on the basis of service and price. emphasizing reliability of service and responsiveness. Competition 
is generally from local outlets of national distribution companies and local businesses because distributors located in 
close proximity to customers incur lower costs of providing service. Propane competes with electricity as an energy 
source. because it is typically less expensive than electricity. based on equivalent BTU value. Propane also competes 
with home heating oil as an energy source. Since natural gas has historically been less expensive than propane. propane 
is generally not distributed in geographic areas served by natural gas pipeline or distribution systems. 

The propane wholesale marketing operation competes against various regional and national marketers. many of which 
have significantly greater resources and are able to obtain price or volumetric advantages. 

The advanced information services business faces significant competition from a number of larger competitors having 
substantially greater resources available to them than does the Company. In addition. changes in the advanced 
information services business are occurring rapidly. which could adverscl) affect the markets for thc products and 
services offered by these businesses. This segment competes on the basis oftechnological expertise. reputation and pricc. 

Inflation 
Inflation affects the cost of supply. labor. products and services required for operations. maintenance and capital 
improvements. While the impact ofinflation has remained low in recent years. natural gas and propane prices are sub,iect 
to rapid fluctuations. In the Compan! ' s  regulated natural gas distribution operations. fluctuations in natural gas prices are 
passed on to customers through the gas cost recovery mechanism in the Company's miffs.  To hclp cope with the cffccts 
of inllation on its capital investments and returns. the Company seeks rate relief from regulator! commissions [or ils 
regulated operations and closel! monitors thc returns of  its unregulated business operations. To compensate for 
fluctuations in propane gas prices. the Company ad,justs its propane selling prices to the extent allowed by the market. 
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Cautionary Statement 
Chesapeake Utilities Corporation has made statements in this Form IO-K that are considered to be "forward-looking 
statements" within the meaning ofthe Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These statements are not matters 
of historical fact and are typically identified by words such as. but not limited to, "believes." "expects," "intends." 
"plans." and similar expressions. or future or conditional verbs such as .'may.'' "will." "should." "hould." and "could." 
These statements relate to matters such as customer growth. changes in revenues or gross margins. capital expenditures, 
environmental remediation costs. regulator! trends and decisions. market risks associated M ith our propane operations. 
the competitive position of  the Company. inflation. and other matters. It  is important to understand that these forward- 
looking statements are not guarantees. but are subject to certain risks and uncertainties and other important factors that 
could cause actual results to differ materially from those in the forward-looking statements. The factors that could cause 
actual results to differ material]! from the Company's expectations include. but are not limited to: 

e 

e 

e 

e 

e 

e 

e 

e 

e 

e 

e 

e 

e 

e 
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e 

e 

the temperature sensitivity of the natural gas and propane businesses: 

the effects of spot, forward. futures market prices. and the Company's use of derivative instruments on thc 
Company's distribution. wholesale marketing and energy trading businesses: 

the amount and availability of natural gas and propane supplies: 

the access to interstate pipelines' transportation and storage capacit), and the construction of new, i'acilities to 
support future growth: 

the effects of  natural gas and propane commodit), price changes on the operating costs and competitive 
positions of our natural gas and propane distribution operations: 

third-party competition for the Company's unregulated and regulated businesses: 

changes in federal. state or local regulation and tax requirements. including deregulation: 

changes in technolog!, affecting the Company's ad\,anced information services segment: 

changes in credit risk and credit requirements affecting the Company's energ!' marketing subsidiaries: 

the effects of accounting changes: 

changes in benefit plan assumptions: 

cost ol'compliance with en\.ironmental regulations or the remediation of cnvironnicntal damagt: 

thc effects of general economic conditions. including interest rates. on the Company and its customers: 

the ability of the Company's new' and planned facilities and acquisitions to generate expected revenues: 

thc ability ol'thc Conipanl to construct facilities at or  hclou. estimated costs: 

bility to obtain the rate relicf'and cost recovery requcstcd lfoni uti l i t)  regulators and the timing 
ol'the requested regulator!, actions: 

the Compan!.'s abilit!, to obtain necessary approvals and permits liom regulator! agencies o n  a timely basis: 

impact ol' inflation on tho results ol'operations. cash flows. linancinl position and on the C'ompan)"s planned 
capital expenditures: 

inabilit! to access the financial markets to a degree that ma!' impair futurc growth: and 

operating and litigation risks that ma\' not be covered b!, insurancc. 
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK. 

Information concerning quantitative and qualitative disclosure about market risk is included in Item 7 under the heading 
"Management's Discussion and Analysis - Market Risk." 

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA. 

Management's Report on internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate intemal control over financial reporting. as such 
term is defined in Exchange Act Rules I3a- I j(0. A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process 
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal 
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance ofrecords that. 
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company: ( i i )  
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of  financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. and that receipts and expenditures of  the company are being 
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors ofthe company: and ( i i i )  provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition. use. or disposition of the company's 
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Under the supervision and with the participation ofmanagement. including the principal executive officer and principal 
financial officer. Chesapeake's management conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of its internal control over 
linancial reporting based on the criteria established in a report entitled "Internal Control - Integrated Framcwork" issued 
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations ofthe Treadway Commission. Because of its inherent limitations. intemal 
control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also. prqiections of an) evaluation 01' 
effectiveness to future periods are sub.ject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions. or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. Chesapeake's management 
has evaluated and concluded that Chesapeake's internal control over financial reporting was effective as o f k c e m b e r  3 1 
2007. 

Page 52 Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 2007 Form 10-K 



Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 2007 Form 10-K Page 53 



REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

To the Board of Directors and 
Stockholders of'chesapeake Utilities Corporation 

We havc audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of  Chesapeake IJtilities Corporation as of  December 3 1 .  
2007. and the related consolidated statements of income. stockholders' equity. comprehensive income. cash flows and 
income taxes for the year then ended. Chesapeake Utilities Corporation's management is responsible for these 
consolidated financial statements. Our responsibilit! is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements 
based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the I'ublic Compan) Accounting Oversight Board (United 
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining. on a test basis. 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management. as well as evaluating thc overall financial 
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis ror our opinion. 

In our opinion. the consolidated financial statements referred to above present [airl!,. in all material respects. the financial 
position ofChesapeake Lltilities Corporation and subsidiaries as ofDecember 3 1.2007 and the results oftheir operations 
and their cash flows for the year ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the llnited States 
of America. 

We also have audited. in accordance with the standards of'the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United 
States), Chesapeake Iltilities Corporation's internal control over financial reporting as of December 3 1. 2007. based on 
criteria established in /n/erna/ ('oi2tro/-~/n/e~ruled kiunzework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of 
the Treadwa> Commission (COSO). and our report datcd March I O .  2008 exprcsscd an unqualified opinion. 

/S/ H E A R D  MII.I.I:R ('OMI'ANY 1,1,1' 
h a r d  Miller Company L,LP 
Kcading. I'ennsylvania 
March I O .  2008 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders 
of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 

In our opinion, the consolidated balance sheet as of  December 3 1. 2006. and the related consolidated statements of 
income. comprehensive income, cash flows. stockholders‘ equity and income taxes for each of the two years in the period 
ended December 3 1. 2006. before the effects of the ad,j ustments to retrospectively reflect the discontinued operations 
described in Note B. present fairly. in all material respects, the financial position of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and 
its subsidiaries at December 3 1.2006. and the results oftheir  operations and their cash flows for each ofthe two years in 
the period ended December 3 1.2006. in conformit!, with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America (the 2006 financial statements before the effects of the ad,justments discussed in Note B are not presented 
herein). In addition. in our opinion. the financial statement schedule for the each o f the  two years in the period ended 
December 3 I ,  2006. presents fairly. in all material respects. the information set forth therein when read in conjunction 
with the related consolidated financial statements before the effects ofthe ad.justments described above. These financial 
statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility ofthe Company’s management. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits. We conducted our 
audits. before the effects ofthe adjustments described above. ofthese statements in accordance with the standards ofthe 
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (IJnited States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements arc frec of material misstatement. An audit 
includes examining. on a test basis. cvidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 
assessing thc accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management. and evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation. We  believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

As discussed in Note I( to thc consolidated linancial statemcnts. the Company changed the manner in which it accounts 
ibr  delined bencfit pension and other postretirement plans. eff‘cctive Ileceniber 3 1. 2006. 

Wc were not engaged to audit. revieM,. or apply an!’ procedures to the djustments to retrospectively rellect the 
discontinued operations described in Uote F3 and accordingly. we do not express an opinion or an! othcr form o f  
assurancc about whether such ad,justments are appropriate and have properly applied. Those ad,justments were audited by 
othcr auditors. 

/Sl’ ~’IIICIiWA’I‘EI11-IOUSbC’OOf’~l~S I,!, 1’ 
I’ricewaterhouscCoopcrs l, l , l’  
Hoston. MA 
March I O .  2007 
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Consolidated Statements of Income 

Forthe Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005 

Operating Revenues $258,286,495 $231,199,565 $229,485,352 

Operating Expenses 
Cost of sales, excluding costs below 170,848,211 155,809,747 $153,398,723 
Operations 42,274,023 36,670,302 39,778,597 
Ma in tenance 2,203,800 2,103,558 1,818,981 
Depreciation and amortization 9,060,185 8,243,715 $7,568,209 
Other taxes 5,786,694 5,040,306 $4,999,963 

Total operating expenses 230,172,913 207,867,628 207,564,473 

Operating Income 28,113,582 23,33 1,937 21,920,879 

Other income, net of other expenses 291,305 189,093 $38261 0 

Interest charges 6,589,639 5,773,993 $5,132,458 

Income Before income Taxes 21,815,248 17,747,037 17,171,031 

Income taxes 8,597,461 6,999,072 6,472,220 

income fromcontinuing Operations 13,217,787 10,747.965 10,698,811 

Loss from discontinued operations, net of 

Net Income $1 3,197,710 $10,506,525 
tax benefit of $10,898, $162,510 and $160.204 (20,077) (241,440) (231,197) 

$10,467,614 

Weighted Average Common Shares Outstanding: 
Basic 
Diluted 

6,743,041 6,032,462 5,836,463 
6,854,716 6,155,131 5,992,552 

Earnings (Loss) Per Share of Common Stock: 
Basic 

From continuing operations $1.96 $1 78 $1 83 
From discontinued operations ($0 04) (0 04) 

Net Income $1.96 $1 74 $1 79 
Diluted 

From conbnuing operations $1.94 $1 76 $1 81 
From discontinued operations ($0 041 (0 04) 

Net Income $1.94 $1 72 $1 77 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005 

Operating Activities 
Net Income 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net operating cash: 

Depreciation and amortization 
Depreciation and accretion included in other costs 
Deferred income taxes, net 
Gain on sale of assets 
Unrealized gain (loss) on commodity contracts 
Unrealized loss on investments 
Employee benefits and compensation 
Other, net 

Sale (purchase) of investments 
Accounts receivable and accrued revenue 
Propane inventory, storage gas and other inventory 
Regulatory assets 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 
Other deferred charges 
Long-term receivables 
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities 
Income taxes receivable (payable) 
Accrued interest 
Customer deposits and refunds 
Accrued compensation 
Regulatory lia bili tes 

Changes in assets and liabilities: 

$13,197,710 

9,060,185 
3,336,506 
1,831,030 
(204,882) 
(170,465) 
(122,819) 

1,825,028 
56 

229,125 
(28,189,132) 

1,193,336 
(344,680) 

(1,188,481) 
(2,477,879) 

83,653 
22,130,049 

(158,556) 
33,112 

2,534,655 
1,117,941 
2,124,091 

$10,506,525 

8,243,715 
3,102,066 
(408,533) 

37,110 
(1 51,952) 
382,608 
(18,596) 

(177.990) 
9,705,860 

354,764 
2,498,954 
(271,438) 
(231,822) 
137,101 

(1 1,434,370) 
1,800,913 

2 7 3,6 72 
2,361,265 
(542,512) 

2,824,068 

$1 0,467,614 

7,568,209 
2,705,620 
1.51 0,777 

(227,193) 
(56,650) 

1,621,607 
(62,692) 

( 1 ,242,56 3) 
(16,831,751) 
(5,704,040) 
(1.71 9.1 84) 

36,704 
(102,561) 
247,600 

15,569,924 
(2,006,762) 

(42,376) 
462,781 
875,342 
144,501 

Other liabilities (157,699) 1,125,590 385,034 
Net cash provided by operating activities 25,681,884 30.1 16,998 13,599,941 

lnvesting Activities 
Property, plant and equipment expenditures (31,277,390) (48,845,828) (33.319.613) 
Proceeds from sale of assets 
Environmental recoveries (expenditures) (227,979) (15,549) 240,336 

Net cash used by investing activities (31,300,487) (48,861,377) (33,079,277) 

Financing Activifies 

204,882 

Common stock dividends (7,029,821) (5,982,531) (5,789,180) 
Issuance of stock for Dividend Reinvestment Plan 299,436 321,865 458,757 
Stock issuance 19,698,509 
Cash settlement ofwarrants (434,782) 
Change in cash overdrafts due to outstanding checks (541,052) 4 9,047 874,083 
Net borrowing (repayment) under line of credit agreements 18,651,055 (7,977,347) 29,606,400 

Repayment of long-term debt (7,656,580) (4,929,674) (4,794327) 
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 20,000,000 

Net cash provided by financing activities 3,723,038 20,745,087 20,355,233 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (1,895,565) 2,000,708 875,897 
1,611,761 Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Period 4,488,366 2,487.658 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Period $2,592,801 $4,488,366 $2,487,658 

Supplemental Disclosures of Non-Cash Investing Activities: 
Capital property and equipment acquired on account, 
but not paid as of December 31 $365,890 $1,490,890 $1,367,348 

Supplemental Disclosure o f  Cash Flow information 
Cash paid for interest $5,592,279 $5,334,477 %5,052.013 
Cash paid for income taxes $7,009,206 $6,285,272 $6,342,476 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 2007 Form 10-K Page 57 



Consolidated Balance Sheets 

December 31, December 31, 
Assets 2007 2006 

Property, Plant and Equipment 
Natural gas $289,706,066 $269,012,516 
Propane 48,506,231 44,791,552 
Advanced information services 1,157,808 1,054,368 
Other plant 8,567,833 9,147,500 

Total property, plant and equipment 347,937,938 324,005,936 

Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization (92,414,289) (85,010,472) 
Plus: Construction work in progress 4,899,608 1,829,948 

Net propertv, plant and equipment 260,423,257 240,825,412 

1,909,271 2,015,577 Investments 

Current Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts receivable (less allowance for uncollectible 

accounts of $952,075 and $661,597, respectively) 
Accrued revenue 
Propane inventory, at average cost 
Other inventory, at average cost 
Regulatory assets 
Storage gas prepayments 
Income taxes receivable 
Deferred income taxes 
Prepaid expenses 

2,592,801 

72,218,191 
5,2 65,474 
7,629,295 
1,280,506 
1,575,072 
6,042,16 9 
1,237,438 
2,155,393 
3,496,517 

4,488,366 

44,969,182 
4,325,351 
7,187,035 
1,564,937 
1,275,653 
7,393,335 
1,078,882 
1,365,316 
2,280,900 

Ma rk-to-market energy assets 7,8 12,456 1,379,896 
Other current assets 1 46,25 3 173,388 

Total current assets 11 1,451,565 77,482,241 

Deferred Charges and Other Assets 
Goodwill 674,45 1 674,451 
Other intangible assets, net 178,073 191,878 
Long-term receivables 740,680 824,333 
Regulatory assets 2,539,235 1,765,088 
Other deferred charges 3,640,480 1,215,004 

Total deferred charges and other assets 7,772,919 4,670,754 

Total Assets $381,557,012 $324,993,984 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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Consolidated Balance Sheets 

December 31, December 31, 
Capitalization and Liabilities 2007 2006 

Capitalization 
Stockholders' equity 

Common Stock, par value $0.4867 per share 
(authorized 12,000,000 shares) $3,298,473 $3,254,998 

Additional paid-in capital 65,591,552 61,960,220 
Retained earnings 51,538,194 46,270,884 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (851,674) (334,550) 
Deferred compensation obligation 1,403,922 1,118,509 
Treasury stock (1,403,922) (1,118,509) 

Total stockholders' equity 119,576,545 11 1,151,552 

Long-term debt, net of current maturities 63,255,636 71,050,000 

Total capitalization 182,832,18 1 182,201,552 

Current Liabilities 
Current portion of long-term debt 7,656,364 7,656,364 
Short-term borrowing 45,663,944 27,553,941 
Accounts payable 54,893,071 33,870,552 
Customer deposits and refunds 10,036,920 7,502,265 
Accrued interest 865,504 832,392 
Dividends payable 1,999,343 1,939,482 
Accrued compensation 3,400,112 2,901,053 
Regulatory liabilities 6,300,766 4,199,147 
Ma rk-to-market energy I iabi lit ies 7,739,261 1,371,379 
Other accrued liabilities 2,500,542 2,634,416 

Total current liabilities 141,055,827 90,460,991 

Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities 
Deferred income taxes 28,795,885 26 517,098 
Deferred investment tax credits 277,698 328,277 
Regula tory I iabil ities 1,136,071 1 236 254 
E nvi ronm ental l r  ab1 I I bes 835,143 211 581 
Other pension and benefit costs 2,513,030 1 608,311 
Accrued asset removal cost 20,249,948 18 410 992 
Other liabilities 3,861,229 4 018,928 

Total deferred credits and other liabilities 57,669,004 52,331 441 

Other Commitments and Contingencies (Note N) 

Total Capitalization and Liabilities $381,557,012 $324,993,984 
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Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005 

Common Stock 
Balance - beginning ofyear $3,254,998 $2.863.212 $2.812.538 

Dividend Reinvestment Plan 17,197 1 8.685 20.038 
Retirement Savings Plan 14,388 14.457 10.255 
Conversion of debentures 3,94 5 8.1 17 11,004 

Stock issuance 335.991 
Performance shares and options exercised " I  7,945 14,536 9.377 

Balance -end of year 3,298,473 3.254.998 2.863.212 

Additional Paid-in Capital 
Balance - beginning ofyear 61,960,220 39,619,849 36354,717 

I ,148.1 00 1.224.874 Dividcnd Reinvestment Plan 1,121,190 
Retirement Savings Plan 934,295 900.354 682.829 
Conversion of debentures 133,839 275.300 373.259 
Stock-base compensation and ophons exercised ' I '  1,442,008 887.426 484.170 
Stock issuance 19.362.518 
Exercisc warrants. net of tax (23 3.327 ) 

Balance -end of year 65,591,552 61.960.220 39.61 9.849 

Retained Earnings 
Balance - beginning ofyear 46,270,884 42.854.894 39.01 5.087 

Net income 13,197,710 IO .506.525 10.467.6 14 
Cash dividends ('' (7,930,400) 17.090.535 (6.627.807) 

Halancc - ciid of year 5 1,538,194 46.270.8 84 42.854.894 

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) 
Balance - beginning o f  year (334,550) (578.1 51 ) (527.246) 

Minimum pension liability adlushnent. net of tax 28.1 00 74.036 ( 5 0.905 ) 
Gain (Loa) on funded status of Emplovee Benefit Plans. net of tax (545,230) 169.565 

Balancc - cnd of year (851,674) 1334.5 50) (578.151) 

Deferred Compelsation Obligation 
Balance -beginning of year 1.1 18.509 794.535 816.044 

New dcfmals 285,413 323.974 13 0.426 
Payout ol' deferred compensahon 

Balance - end ol'vear 1,403322 I ~ I I 8.509 794.535 
( I 5  1.935) 

'l'rrasury Stock 
Ralance - beginning o f  year (1.1 18.509) (797.156) ( I .008.696) 

New dcf'urals related to a)mpmsalion obligation (285,413) i 323.974) (130.426) 
Purchasc oftreasury stock (29,77 1 ) (5 1.5721 (182.292) 
Sale and distribution ol'treasur\, stock 29,77 1 54.193 524.258 

13alancc - end of year (1,403,922) ( I .  I 1  8.509) (797.156) 

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income 
Net income $13,197,710 $10.506.525 S10.467.614 
Penson adjustmcnts. iict of tax o f  

$342.320. ($48.889) and $33.615. respcctivelv 15 17. 124) 74.036 (50.905 
Comprehensive Income $1 2,680,586 $ I 0,580,561 $ I  0.41 6.709 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

Page 60 Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 2007 Form 10-K 



Consolidated Statements of Income Taxes 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005 

Current Income Tax Expense 
Fe de ra I 
State 

$5,512,071 $5,994.296 $3.687.800 
1,223,145 1.424.485 7 89.23 3 

Investment tax credit adjustments. net (50,579) (54,816) (54.81 6) 
Total current income tax expense 6,684,637 7.3 63.965 4.422.21 7 

Deferred Income Tax Expense ‘ I )  

Property. plant and equipment 
Deferred ga costs 
Pensions and other employee benefits 
Environmental expenditures 

2,958,758 1,697.024 1.380.628 
(629,228) (2.085.066) 1.064.310 

(9,154) (97.436) (3 40.98 7) 
45,872 (5.580) (98.229) 

Other (46 4.3 22) (36.345) (1 15.923) 
Total deferred income tax expense (benefit) 1,901,926 (527.403) 1.8 89.799 
Total Income Tax Expense S,SS6,563 $6.836.562 $6.3 12.01 6 

Reconciliation of Effective Income Tax Rates 
Con ti nu ing Operat iom 

Federal income tax expense (’’ 
State income taxes. net of federal benefit 

S7,635.336 $6.2 12,237 $6.009.86 I 
1,086,680 $829.630 $732.046 
5 124,555) ($42.795 $269.68 7 

Total continuing operatiom $8,597,461 $6.999.072 $6,472.220 
Discontinued operat ions ($1 0,898) ( $ 1  62.5 10) ($1 60.204) 

Total income tax expense S8,SS6,563 $6.836.562 $6.3 12.01 6 

Effective income tax rate 39.4%) 39 4Yn 37.65h 

At December 31, 2007 2006 

Deferred Income Taxes 
Deferred income tax liabilities: 

Propcrty. plant and cquipmcnt S31,058,0SO $27.997.744 

0th er 860,993 8 70.424 
Total dcfcrrcd incomc tax liabilities 32,169,064 29.072.317 

Deferred income tax assets: 

Envi ronmental costs 250,02 1 204.149 

Ikmsion and other cmploycc bcncfits 2 ,% 1,853 2.225.944 
Sei f insurmu 384,009 468.922 
I)cfhrrcd gkL? C O S I S  1,146,133 528.814 
Other I ,416,577 696.855 

Total deferred incomc tax we t s  5,528,572 3.920.535 
Deferred Inmm Taxes Per Consolidated Bdana: Shect $26,640,492 $25.1 51.782 

( I  ) lncludcs S260.000. iSh(l.O()O). a n d  S; 146.000 or dcfcrrcd s l aw i n c o m e  UXCS for  the \cars 2007.  2 0 0 6 ,  a n d  ?OrJ5.  rcspccuvch 
1 2 )  Pcdcml incomc t a w s  WLTC rcctirdcd at 3 5 1 % ~  hi cacti \ u t  rq rc scn tcd  
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

A. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Nature of Business 
Chesapeake is engaged in natural gas distribution to 62,852 customers located in central and southern Delaware. 
Maryland's Eastern Shore and Florida. The Compan] ' s  natural gas transmission subsidiary operates an interstate pipeline 
from various points in Pennsylvania and northern Delaware to the Company's Delaware and Maryland distribution 
divisions as well as other utility and industrial customers in Pennsylvania. Delaware and the Eastern Shore of Maryland. 
The Company's propane distribution and wholesale marketing segment provides distribution sen ice  to 34.143 customers 
in central and southern Delaware. the Eastern Shore of  Maryland. southeastern Pennsylvania. central Florida and the 
Eastern Shore of Virginia and markets propane to wholesale customers including large independent oil and petrochemical 
companies. resellers and propane distribution companies in the southeastern United States. The advanced information 
services segment provides domestic and international clients with information-technology-related business services and 
solutions for both enterprise and e-business applications. 

Principles of Consolidation 
The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholl> owned subsidiaries. The 
Compan! does not have any ownership interests in investments accounted for using the equity method or any variable 
interests in a variable interest entit!. AI1 intercompany transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 

System of Accounts 
The natural gas distribution divisions of the Company located in Delaware, Maryland and Florida are subject to 
regulation by their respective PSCs with respect to their rates for service. maintenance of their accounting records and 
various other matters. Eastern Shore is an open access pipeline and is sub,icct to regulation b!. thc FERC. Our linancial 
statements are prepared in accordance with GAAP. which give appropriate recognition to the ratemaking and accounting 
practices and policies of the various commissions. The propane. advanced information services and other business 
segments are not sub,ject to regulation with respect to rates o r  maintenancc of accounting records. 

Property, Plant, Equipment and Depreciation 
IJtility and non-utility property is stated at original cost. Costs include direct labor. materials and third-part) construction 
contractor costs. allowance for capitalized interest and certain indirect costs related to equipment and employees engaged 
in construction. The costs of repairs and minor replacements arc charged against income as incurred. and the costs of 
major renewals and betterments are capitalized. Upon retirement or disposition ofnon-utility property. the gain or loss. 
net of salvage value. is charged to income. Upon retirement or disposition of utility propert>. the gain or loss. net 01' 
salvage valuc. is charged to accumulated depreciation. The provision for depreciation is computed using the straight-line 
method at rates that amortize the unrecovered cost of depreciable propert)' over the estimated remaining useful life ofthe 
assct. Ikprcciation and amortization cxpcnscs arc provided at an annual ratc for cach segment. Thc thrcc-year average 
rates were threc percent for natural gas distribution and transmission. live percent lb r  propane. elevcn percent for 
adwnccd information services and six percent for general plant. 
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At December 31, 2007 2006 Useful Life ('I 

Plant in service 
Mains $166.202.413 $151390,304 27-41 years 
Services - utility 35.127.633 32.334.145 14-33 years 
Compressor station equipment 24.959.330 24.921.976 28 years 
Liquefied petroleum gas equipment 25.575,213 24.627.398 30-33 years 
Meters and meter installations 18.1 11,466 16.093.737 Propane 10-33 years.Natural gas 26-44 years 
Measuring and regulating station equipma 14.067.262 13.272.20 1 27-54 years 
Ofice furniture and equipment 9.947,881 10.1 14.101 Non-regulated 3-10 years. Regulated 14-28years 
Transportation equipment 11.194.916 10.686.259 3-11 years 
Structures and improvements 10.024.105 9.538.345 10-44 years '*' 
Land and land rights 
Propane bulk plants and tanks 5.3 13.061 5.301.457 15 - 40 years 
Various 20.009.979 17.839.745 Various 

7.404.679 7.386.268 Not depreciable. except certain regulated assets 

Total plant in service 347.937.938 324.005.936 
Plus construction work in progress 4.8 99.608 1.829.948 
Less accumulated depreciation (92,414.289) (85.010.472) 
Net property. plant and equipment $260,423.257 $240.825.412 

' ' I  Certain immaerial account balances may fall outside this range. 

The regulated operations compute depreciation in accordance with rates approved by eithcr the state I'ublic Service Commission 
or the FERC:. These rates are based on depreciation studies and may changc pcriodicall!~ upon receiving approval from the 
appropriate regulatory body. The depreciation rates show1 above are bawd on the remaining useful lives ofthe assets at thc 
time ofthe dcpreciation study. rather than their original lives. The depreciation rates are composite. straight-linc rates applied 
to the averilgc investment for each clays ofdepreciable property and are adjusted for anticipated cost ofremoval less salvage 
valuc. 

I hc non-regulatcd operations compute depreciation using the straight-line method over the cstimated useful life ofthe awl.  

Includes buildings. structures uscd in connectiou with natural gay and propane operations. improvemcnts to those facilitics 
and leasehold improvements. 

_. 
f ?  I 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
The Company's policy is to invest cash in excess of operating requirements i n  overnight income-producing accounts. 
Such amounts are stated at cost. which approximates market valuc. Investments wi th  an original maturity oi'three months 
or less when purchased arc considered cash equivalents. 

Inventories 
I he Company uses the average cost method to value propane and materials and supplies inventor!. I fmarkct priccs drop 
below cost. inventory balances thal arc sub,jcct LO pricc risk arc ad,justcd to niarkct \.al~ics. 

. ,  

Regulatory Assets, Liabilities and Expenditures 
The Company accounts for its regulated operations in accordance with SFAS h o .  71. "Accounting for the Effects of 
Certain 'fypcs ol'licgulation." This standard includes accounting principles for companies whosc rates arc determined by 
independent third-party regulators. When setting rates. regulators often make decisions. the economics ofwhich require 
companies to defer costs or revenues in different periods than may be appropriate for unregulated enterprises. When this 
situation occurs. the regulated utility defers the associated costs as assets (regulator!, assets) on the balance sheet and 
records them as expense o n  the income statement as it collects revenues. Further. rcgulators can also impose liabilities 
upon a compan), for amounts previously collected lYom customers. and for recover! 01' costs that are expected to bc 
incurred in the future (regulatory liabilities). 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

At December 3 1. 2007 and 2006. the regulated utility operations had recorded the following regulatory assets and 
liabilities on the Balance Sheets. These assets and liabilities will be recognized as revenues and expenses in future 
periods as they are reflected in customers' rates. 

At December 31, 2007 2006 

Regulatory Assets 
Current 
Underrecovered purchased gas costs $1,389,454 $1.076.92 1 
Conservation cost recovery 51.408 
PSC Assessment 22,290 22.290 
Flex rate asset 107,394 81.926 
Other 55,934 43.108 
Total current 1,575,072 1.275.653 

Noncurrent 
lncome tax related amounts due iiom customers I , ]  15,638 1.300.544 
Deferred regulatory and other expenses 446,643 188.686 
Deferred gas supply 15,201 15.201 
Deferred post retirement benefits 111,159 138.949 
Environmental regulatory %sets and expmditures 8 9 , 5 9 4  121.708 
Total non-current 2,539,235 1.765.088 

Total Regulatory Assets $4,114,307 $3.040.74 I 

Regulatory Liabilities 
Current 
Self insurance -current S191,004 $568.897 
Overrecovered purchased gas costs 4,225,845 2.351.553 
Shared interruptible margins 11,202 100.355 
Conservation cost recovery 395379 
Opcrational flow order pnaltics 7.83 1 
Swing transportation imbalances 1,477,336 I .  170.51 I 
Total current 6,300,766 4.199.147 

Noncurrent 
Self insurancc -long-term 757,557 600.787 
Income tax related amounts due to cudomers 151,521 285.81 9 

Total non-arrent 1 ,I 36,07 1 1.236.25 4 

Accrued asslt removal cost 20,249,948 18.410.9W 

Total Regulatory Liabilities S2 7,686,785 $2 3.846.393 

9 226 993 349.648 

Included in the regulator) assets listed above are $ 1  07.000 o f  which is accruing interest. Ol'thc remaining regulator! 
assets, $2.6 million will be collected in approximately one to two years. $293.000 will be collected within approximatel! 
3 to 10 years. and $721.000 will be collected within approximatel), I I to 15 years. I n  addition. there is approximatel! 
$466.000 for which the Company is awaiting regulator>, approval [or recover!'. but  once approved is expected to be 
collected within I2  months. 

As required by SFAS N o .  71. the Conipany monitors its regulatory and competitive environment to detcrminc whcthcr 
thc recovery of its regulatory assets continues to bc probable. l f the Company were to detcrmine that recovery ofthcsc 
assets is no longer probable. it would write off'thc assets against earnings. Thc  Compan!, believes that SFAS No. 71 
continues to apply to its regulated operations. and that the recovery of its regulator), assets is probable. 
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Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets 
The Company accounts for its goodwill and other intangibles under SFAS No. 142. "Goodwill and Other Intangible 
Assets." Under SFAS No. 142. goodwill is not amortized but is tested for impairment at least annually. In addition. 
goodwill of  a reporting unit is tested for impairment between annual tests if an event occurs or circumstances change that 
would more likely than not reduce the fair value of a reporting unit below its carrying value. Other intangible assets are 
amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated economic useful lives. Please refer to Note F "Goodwill and Other 
Intangible Assets" for additional discussions of this subject. 

Other Deferred Charges 
Other deferred charges include discount, premium and issuance costs associated with long-term debt. Debt costs are 
deferred and then are amortized to interest expense over the original lives oi'the respective debt issuances. 

Income Taxes and Investment Tax Credit Adjustments 
The Compan! files a consolidated federal income tax return. income tax expense allocated to the Company's subsidiaries 
is based upon their respective taxable incomes and tax credits. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recorded for the tax effect of temporary differences between the financial 
statements bascs and tax bases ofassets and liabilities and are measured using the enacted tax rates in effect in thc years 
in which the differences are expected to reverse. The portions of the Company's deferred tax liabilities applicable to 
utility operations, which have not been reflected in current service rates. represent income taxes recoverable through 
future rates. Deferred tax assets are recorded net ofany valuation allowance when it is more likely than not that such tax 
benefits will be realized. Investment tax credits on utility property havc been dcl'erred and arc allocated to income ratably 
over the lives ol'the sub,ject property. 

l 'he Company adopted the provisions of FIN 48 '.Accounting for Iincertaint). in Income Taxes." effective January I .  
2007. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in a Company's financial statements in 
accordance with SFAS 109 "Accounting for Income 'l'axcs." FIN 48 requires that an uncertain tax position should be 
recognized only if it is "more likely than not" that the position is sustainable based on technical merits. Recognizable tas 
positions should then be measured to  determine the amount of benefit recognized in the financial statements. The 
Company's adoption of FIN 48 did n o t  have an impact on its financial condition or results oi' operations. 

Financial Instruments 
Xeron. Inc. ("Xcron"). the Coinpan! 's propanc wholcsalc marketing operation. engages in trading activitics using 
forward and futures contracts. which havc been accounted for using the mark-to-market method o f  accounting. Under 
mark-to-market accounting. the Company's trading contracts arc recorded at [air valuc. net o f  future scr\,icing costs. Thc 
changes in markct price are recognized as gains or losses in revenues on the income statement in the period ofchangc. 
I he resulting unrealized gains and losses arc rccorded as assets or liabilities. rcspectivcl\. Therc were unrealized gains ol' 

$ 1  79.000 and $8.500 at Ilecembcr 3 I .  2007 and 2006. respectively. Trading liabilities arc recorded in mark-to-market 
energy liabilitics. Trading assets arc recorded in mark-to-market energy assets. 

r .  

The Company's natural gas and propane distribution operations have entered into agreements with natural gas and 
propanc suppliers to purchasc gas lir resale to their customers. Purchases under these contracts either do not meet thc 
definition ofderivatives of SFAS No. 133 or are considered "normal purchases and sales" under SFAS No. 138 and arc 
accounted for on an accrual basis. 

The propane distribution operation may enter into a l l ir  value hcdgc of its inventory in order to mitigate the impact 0 1 '  
wholesale price lluctuations. At December 3 1 .  2007. thc C'ompany decided not to  hedge any ol'its propane inventories. 
At December 3 1 .  2006. the propane distribution operation had cntcrcd into a swap agrccnicnt t o  protect thc Conipan! 
from the impact of price increases on thc pricc-cap plan that we offer to customcrs. The Company considered this 
agreement to be an economic hedge that did not qualify for hedge accounting as described in SFAS 133. At the end ofthe 
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2006, the market price of propane dropped below the unit price within the swap agreement. As a result of the price drop, 
the Company marked the agreement to market. which resulted in an unrealized loss of$84.000. 

Earnings Per Share 
Chesapeake calculates earnings per share in accordance with SFAS 128 "Earnings per Share." The calculations of both 
basic and diluted earnings per share are presented in the following chart. 

For the Periods Ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005 

Calculation of Basic Earnings Per Share: 
Net Income $13,197,710 $1 0,506,525 $1 0,467,614 
Weighted average shares outstanding 6,743,041 6,032,462 5,836,463 

Basic Earnings Per Share $1.96 $1.74 $1 79 

Calculation of Diluted Earnings Per Share: 
Reconciliation of Numerator: 

Net Income $1 3,197,710 $1 0,506,525 $1 0,467,614 
Effect of 8.25% Convertible debentures 9561 1 105,024 123,559 

Adiusted numerator - Diluted $13,293,321 $10,611,549 $10,591,173 

Reconciliation of Denom inat or: 
Weighted shares outstanding - Basic 
Effect of dilutive securities 

Warrants 

6,743,041 6,032,462 5,836,463 

11,711 
8.25% Convertible debentures 111,675 122,669 144,378 

Adjusted denominator - Diluted 6,854,716 6,155,131 5,992,552 

Diluted Earnings Per Share $1.94 $1.72 $1.77 

Operating Revenues 
fievenues for the natural gas distribution operations o f t h e  Compan), are based on rates approved b!, the PSCs o f  the 
jurisdictions in which we operate. The natural gas transmission operation's revenues are based on rates approved by the 
FEKC. Customers' base rates may not be changed without formal approval b> these commissions. However. the 
rcgulatorl, authorities have granted the Company's regulated natural gas distribution operations the abilit! to negotiate 
rates. based on approved methodologies. with customers that have competitivc alternatives. I n  addition. the natural gas 
transmission operation can negotiate rates above or below, the FWC-approved tariff' rates. 

For regulated deliveries of' natural gas. Chesapeake reads mecers and bills customers on nionthi!, c~,clcs that d o  no[ 
coincide with the accounting periods used for financial reporting purposes. Chesapeake accrues unbilled revenues for gas 
that has been delivered. but not yet billed at the end of an accounting period t o  the extent that the! do not coincide. In 
connection with this accrual. Chesapeake must estimate the amount of'gas that has not been accounted i'or on its dclivcr! 
system and must cstimatc the amount of thc unbilled revenue by jurisdiction and customer class. A similar computation is 
made to accrue unbilled revenues Ibr propane customers with meters. such as co mmunity gas s!jstcm customers. 

The propane wholesale marketing operation records trading activity. on a nct niark-to-niarket basis in thc Compan) ' s  
income statement. for open contracts. The propane distribution. advanced ini'ormation services and other segnients record 
revenue in the period the products are delivered and/or services arc rendered. 

Chesapeake's natural gas distribution operations in Delaware and Maryland each have a purchased gas cost recovery 
mechanism. This mechanism provides thc Company w i t h  a method oI'ad.justing the billing rates with its custonicrs Ibr 
changes in the cost of purchased gas included in base rates. The difference between the current cost of'gas purchased and 
the cost of gas recovcrcd in billed rates is deferred and accounted for as either unrecovered purchased gas costs o r  
amounts payable to customers. Generally. these deferred amounts are recovered or refunded M ithin one year. 
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The Company charges flexible rates to the natural gas distribution's industrial interruptible customers to make them 
competitive with alternative types of fuel. Based on pricing, these customers can choose natural gas or alternative fuels. 
Neither the Company nor the interruptible customer is contractually obligated to deliver or receive natural gas. 

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 
An allowance for doubtful accounts is recorded against amounts due to reduce the net receivable balance to the amount 
we reasonably expect to collect based upon our collections experiences and our assessment ofour customers' inability or 
reluctance to p a l .  If circumstances change. however. our estimate of the recoverability of accounts receivable may also 
change. Circumstances which could affect our estimates include. but are not limited to. customer credit issues. the level 
ofnatural gas prices and general economic conditions. Accounts are written offonce they are deemed to be uncollectible. 

Certain Risks and Uncertainties 
The Company's financial statements are prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles that 
require management to make estimates in measuring assets and liabilities and related revenues and expenses (see Notes 
M and N to the Consolidated Financial Statements for significant estimates). These estimates involve judgments with 
respect to. among other things. various future economic factors that are difficult to predict and are beyond the control of 
the Company: therefore. actual results could differ from those estimates. 

The Company records certain assets and liabilities i n  accordance with SFAS No. 71. I f  the Company were required to 
terminate application of SFAS No.  71 for its regulated operations. all such deferred amounts would be recognized in the 
income statement at that time. This could result in a charge to  earnings. net ol'applicable incomc taxes. which could be 
material. 

FASB Statements and Other Authoritative Pronouncements 
In .lunc 2006. the Financial Accounting Standards Hoard ("FASH") issued IASI3 lntcrpretation ("Flh'"') No. 48. 
"Employers' Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes." This interpretation: ( i  j clarifies the accounting for 
uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise's linancial statements in accordance with SFAS No. 1 00, 
"Accounting for Income Taxes:" ( i i )  prescribes a recognition threshold and mcasurement attribute for the financial 
statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return: and ( i i i )  provides 
guidance on derecognition and classification ofuncertain tax positions. reporting of interest and penalties. accounting in 
interim periods. disclosure. and transition. FIN No.48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15.2006. and 
Chesapeake's adoption of it in the first quarter o f  2007 did not  have any impact o n  the Compan) ' s  Consolidated 
f,'inanci aI Stat em cii t s , 

In Scptcmbcr 2006. thc FAS13 issued SI:AS No. 157. **I:air Value Measurements.' his staicnicnt defines Ihir valuc. 
establishes a framework f i r  measuring fair value in GAAP.  and expands disclosures about l l ir  value measurements. This 
Statement applies under other accounting pronouncements that rcquirc or permit flir value measurements. the FASH 
having prcviousl! concluded in thosc accounting pronouncements that Pdir \ d u e  is the relevant measurement attribute. 
Accordingly. this statement does not require an) ne%' fair value mcasurements. Since S[;AS No.  I57 is effective fix 
linancial statements issued within fiscal )cars beginning after November 15.2007. Chesapcakc will be required to adopt 
this statement in the first quarter oi'2008. The Compan) does not expect S I A S  N o .  I57 will have a material impact on  its 
Consolidated Financial Statements. 

In Februar). 2007. the FASH issued SFAS No.  159. "The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial 
Liabilities-including an amendment of'FASB Statement N o .  I 15.  " SFAS N o .  I59 permits entities to measure at fair value 
many financial instruments and certain other itcms that arc n o t  currcntl), required to he measured at flir value. w i t h  
unrealized gains and losses related to these linancial instruments reported in earnings at each subsequent reponing date. 
This Statement is el'lbclivc as of the beginning of'an entity's first fiscal year that begins after November 15. 2007. Thc 
Company does not expect SI.'AS No. 159 will have a material impact o n  its Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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In April 2007. the FASB directed the FASB Staff to issue FSP No. FIN 39-1. “Amendment of FASB Interpretation No. 
39” (“FSP FIN 39-1.’). FSP FIN 39-1 modifies FIN No. 39, “Offsetting ofAmounts Related to Certain Contracts.” and 
permits companies to offset cash collateral receivables or payables with net derivative positions under certain 
circumstances. FSP FIN 39-1 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. with early adoption 
permitted. The Company does not expect FSP FIN 39-1 will have a material impact its Consolidated Financial 
Statements. 

Reclassification of Prior Years’ Amounts 
The Company reclassified some previously reported amounts to conform to current period classifications. 

B. BUSINESS DISPOSITIONS AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 

During the quartcr ended September 30. 2007. Chesapeake decided to close its distributed energ) services subsidiar! . 
Chesapeake OnSight Services. LLC (“OnSight”). which has experienced operating losses since its inception in 2004. 
OnSight was prcviousl) reported as part ofthe Company‘s Other business segment. At December 3 1.2007. thc results of 
operations for OnSight have been reclassified to discontinued operations and shown net of tax for all periods presented. 
For 2007. the discontinued operations experienced a net loss of $20.000. compared to a net loss of $241 .000 for 2006 and 
a net loss 01‘$23 1,000 for 2005. 
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C. SEGMENT INFORMATION 

The following table presents information about the Company's reportable segments. The table excludes financial data 
related to our distributed energy company, which was reclassed to discontinued operations for each year presented. 

Forthe Years Ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005 

Operating Revenues, Unaffiliated Customers 
Natural g a  distribution. transmission and marketing S180,842,699 $170.114.512 $166.388.562 
Propane 62,837,696 48,575.976 48,975,349 
Advanced information services 1 4,606,100 12.509.077 14.1 2 1.441 
Other 

Total ouer at ing revenues. unaffiliated customers $258,286,495 $231,199.565 $229.485.352 
~~~ ~~ ~ 

lntersegment Revenues ( ' )  

Natural gas distribution. transmission and marketing $359,235 $259.970 $ I93.4M 
Propane 406 668 
Advanced information services 492,840 58.532 18.123 
Other 622.272 61 8.492 618.492 

$830.687 Total intersegmcnt revenues $1,474,753 $ 93 6.9 94 

Operating Income 
Natural gas distribubon. transmission and marketing S22,485,266 $19.733.487 $17.235.810 
Propane 4,497,843 2.534.035 3.209.388 
Advanced iii I'ormation services 835,981 767.160 I . I 96.545 
Other and climinatrons 2 94,49 2 297.255 279.136 

Operating I n c o m e  28,113,582 2 3 3 3  1.937 21.920.879 

Other income 
lntercst cha rges  

291,305 189.093 3 X2.6 10 
5 .  I 32.458 6,589,639 5.773.993 
6.4 72.220 Income taxes 8,597,46 1 6.999.072 

Net inwmc from continuing operations 1613,217,787 $10.747.965 $10.698.811 

Depreciation and Amortization 
Natural gas distribunon. transmission and marketing $6,917,609 $6.312.277 $5.682.137 
Prop an c 1,842.047 I .65 8.5 54 1.574.357 
Advanced in I'omation services 143,706 I 12.729 I 22.56") 
Other and climinations 156,823 160.155 I X9. 146 

'I otal depreciation and amortization $9,060,185 $8.243.7 15 $7.568.209 

Capital Expenditures 
Natural gas distribution. transmission iind markcting 1623,086,713 543.894.614 $28.433.671 
Prop anc 5.290,215 J.77X.89 I 3.955.799 
Advanccd inlbmiation s~7viccs  174,184 I5 9.402 2 94.792 

Total cau ital e xnend it urcs $30.142.384 $40.154.1 1 I $33.423.341 

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ ~  ~~ ~~~ ~~ ~ _______~ _ _ _ _ _ _ ~ ~ ~  ______~  ~ 

At December 31, 2007 2006 2005 

Identifiable Assets 
Natural gas distribution. transmission and marketing $273,500,890 S252.292.600 $225.667.040 
Propane 94,966,212 6 0 .  I 7 0.2 00 57 .-3 44,859 

2.573.8 IO 2,062,902 Advanccd inl'ormatioii services 2,507,!!1 0 
Other 10,533.511 I0.503.XO4 10.9 11.229 

Total identifiable assels $381,508,523 $325.540.4 14 $295.986.039 
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Chesapeake uses the management approach to identify operating segments. Chesapeake organizes its business around 
differences in products or services, and the operating results of each segment are regularly reviewed by the Company's 
chief operating decision maker in order to make decisions about resources and to assess performance. The segments are 
evaluated based on their pre-tax operating income. 

The Company's operations are primaril) domestic. The advanced information senices  segment has infrequent 
transactions with foreign companies. located primarily in Canada. which are denominated and paid in U.S. dollars. These 
transactions are immaterial to the consolidated revenues. 

D. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

Various items within the balance sheet are considered to be financial instruments. because they are cash or are to be 
settled in cash. The carrying values ofthese items generally approximate their fair value (see Note E to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements for disclosure of fair value of investments). The Companq ' s  open forward and futures contracts at 
December 3 1.2007 had again of $1 79,000 and at December 3 1.2006 had again in fair value of $8.500. based on market 
rates at the respective dates. The fair value o f the  Company's long-term debt is estimated using a discounted cash flow 
methodology. The Companq 's long-term debt at December 3 1.2007. including current maturities. had an estimated fair 
valuc of$75.0 million as compared to a carrying value o1'$70.9 million. At December 3 I .  2006. the estimated fair value 
was approximately $81.4 million as compared to a ca rg  ing value of $78.7 million. These estimates are based on 
published corporate borrowing rates for debt instruments with similar terms and average maturities. 

E. INVESTMENTS 

The investment balances at December 31. 2007 and 2006 represent a Rabbi Trust associated with the Company's 
Supplemental Executive Retirement Savings Plan. In accordance with SFAS No. 1 15, "Accounting for Certain 
Investments in Debt and Equit) Securities," the Company classifies these investments as trading securities. As a result of 
classifying them as trading securities. the Compan) is required to report the sccurities at their fair value. with an! 
unrealized gains and losscs included in other income. The Company also has an associated liability that is recorded and 
ad.justed each month for the gains and losses incurred by the Trust. At December 3 1. 2007 and 2006. total investments 
had a f i r  valuc of.$1.9 million and $2.0 million. respectivel>. 

F. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 
In  accordance with SFAS No.  142. goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually. In addition. goodwill ol'a 
rcporting unit is tested for impairment between annual tests ifan c\ cnt occurs or circumstances change that would mort 
likclj than not reduce the fair value oi 'a reporting unit h e l m  its carrying value. The propane unil had $674.000 in 
goodwill f'or thc two years ended December 31. 2007 and 2006. Testing for 2007 and 2006 has indicated that n o  
impairment ol'thc goodwill has occurred. 
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The carrying value and accumulated amortization of intangible assets subject to amortization for the years ended 
r>ccembcr 3 I .  2007 and 2006 are as follow: 

December 31, 2007 December 31,2006 
Gross Gross 

Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated 
Amount Amorhzabon Amount AmortIzabon 

Customer list? $1 15,333 $82,269 $11 5.333 $75.057 
Acquisihon costs 263,659 118,649 263.659 11 2.057 

.I otal $378,992 $200,918 $378.992 $187.1 14 

Amortization of intangible assets was $1 4.000 for the years ended December 3 1 .  2007 and 2006. The estimated annual 
amortization o f  intangibles is $14.000 per year for each of the years 2008 through 2012. 

G. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

Changes in common stock shares issued and outstanding are shown in the table below 

Forthe Years Ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005 

Common Stock shares issued and outstanding (I) 
Shares issued - beginning of period balance 6,688,084 5,883.099 5,778,976 

Dividend Reinvestment Plan (*) 35,333 38,392 41,175 
Retirement Savings Plan 29,563 29,705 21,071 
Conversion of debentures 8,106 16,677 22,609 
Employee award plan 350 350 
Performance shares and options exercised ''I 15,974 29,516 19,268 
Public offering 690,345 

Shares issued -end of Deriod balance (41 6,777,410 6,688.084 5,883,099 

Treasury shares - beginning of period balance 
Purchases 
Dividend Reinvestment Plan 
Retirement Savings Plan 

(97) (9,418) 
(4,852) 
2,142 

12,031 
Other issuances 97 

Treasury Shares -end of period balance (97) 

Total Shares outstanding 6,777,410 6,688,084 5,883,002 

(') 12 000 000 shares are authonzed at a par value of $0 4867 per share 
Includes shares purchased with reinvested dividends and optional cash payments 
Includes shares issued for Directors' compensation 

(41 Includes 57 309 48 187 and 37 528 shares at December 31 2007 2006 and 2005 respectively held in a 
Rabbi Trust established by the Company relating to the Deferred Compensation Plan 

In 2000 and 200 I ,  thc ('ompan>, entered into agreements with an invcstmcnt banker to assist i n  identifying acquisition 
candidates. llnder the agreements. the Company issued warrants to the investment banker to purchase 15.000 shares of '  
Chesapeake stock in 2000. at an exercise price oi'$I8.00 per share and 15.000 in 200 I at an exercise price o f $ ]  8.25 per 
share. In August 2006. the investment banker exercised the 30.000 warrants pursuant to thc terms of'thc agreement at 
$33.3657 per share. At the request o f t h e  investment banker. Chesapeake scttlcd the warrants with a cash payment oi' 
$435.000. in lieu ol'issuing shares o f the  Compan!,'s common stock. At December 3 I .  2007 and 2006. C'hesapcakc did 
not have any stock warrants outstanding. 
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On November 2 1 2006. the Company completed a public offering of 600.300 shares of its common stock at a price per 
share of $30.10. On November 30. 2006. the Company completed the sale of90.045 additional shares of its common 
stock, pursuant to the over-allotment option granted to the Underwriters by the Company. The net proceeds from the sale 
of common stock, after deducting underwriting commissions and expenses. were approximatel) $1 9.8 million, which 
were added to the Company's general funds and used primaril) to repay a portion of the Company's short-term debt 
under unsecured lines of  credit. 

H. LONG-TERM DEBT 
The Company's outstanding long-term debt. net of current maturities. is as shown below. 

At December 31, 2007 2006 
Uncollateralized senior notes: 

7.97% note. due February 1. 2008 $0 $1 .000.000 
6.9 1% note. due October I .  20 10 1,818,182 2.727.273 
6.85%note.due January 1.2012 3,000,000 4.000.000 
7.83% note. due January I ,  201 5 12,000,000 14.000.000 
6.64% note. due October 3 1. 201 7 2 4,545,454 27.272.7 21 

20 .00 0.0 00 5.50% note, due October 12.2020 2 0,000,000 
Convertible debentures: 

8.25% due March 1.20 14 1,832,000 1 .Y70.000 
Promissory note 60,000 80.000 
Total Long-Term Debt $63,255,636 $71.050,000 

:innuiii nIi1l1il'iller r!/rol1.siJ/iduled / l l f l ~ - l ~ ~ l ' r ~ l  rich, f o r  lhc  nexl / i l w  y I r $  Llrc 11.5 /o / iowr  $', f i j f i , 3 f i 4  /f ir ? / / / / E  

Sfi,fi5fi,.?64 /I l l '  2 f ~ / / ~ , s f i , f i s f i , 3 f i ~ ~ f J V  20111, s-, '4- ?7.? / I J V  2011.  ,s6,-2-,27.? / lJV 21/12 

The convertible debentures may be converted. at the option ofthc holder. into shares ofthe Compan! 's  common stock at 
a conversion price of$l7.01 per share. During 2007 and 2006. debentures totaling $ 1  38.000 and $284.000. respectivcl)'. 
were converted to stock. The debentures are also redeemable for cash at the option of the holder. sub,ject to an annual 
non-cumulative maximum limitation of $200.000. In  2007 and 2006, no debentures were redeemed for cash. During 
2005. debentures totaling $5.000 were redeemed for cash. At the Company's option. the debentures may be redeemed at 
stated amounts. 

On October 12. 2006. the Company issued $20 million of5.5 percent Senior \otcs to three institutional investors (l'hc 
Prudential Insurance Company of America. Prudential Ketiremcnt lnsurancc and Annuity Company and L'nited Omaha 
I ,ife Insurance ('ompan!,). The original note agreement was executed on October 18.2005 and provided for the Company 
to sell thc Notes at an!' time prior to .lanuaF 15.2007. The terms ol'the Notes require annual principal rcpa!'nicnts ol'$2 
million beginning on the fifth annivcrsarq ol'the issuance oi'thc Notes. 'I'hc Notes will maturc on October 12.2020. 'l'hc 
proceeds from this issuance were used t o  rcducc a portion oi'thc ('ompan) 's  outslanding short-term dchl. 

Indentures to the long-term dcbt of the ('ompan) and its subsidiaries contain various restrictions. The most  stringent 
restrictions state that the Compan!. must maintain equity of at least 40 percent ol'total capitalization. and thc pro-i'orma 
lised charge coverage ratio must bc I . 5  times. Thc Compan!' is in compliance with all o r  its dcbt co\jcnants. 

I. SHORT-TERM BORROWING 

The Board of Dircctors has authorized the C h i p a n y  to borrow up  to $55.0 million of' short-term debt. as rcquircd. ifom 
various banks and trust companies under short-term lines of' credit. As of December 31,  2007. Chcsapcake had livc 
unsecured bank lines of credit with thrcc financial institutions. totaling $90.0 million. none of which rcquirca 
compensating balances. 'l'hcsc bank lines are available (0 provide i'unds for the ('ompuny's shoi?-term cash nccds to mccl 
seasonal working capital requirements and to fund temporarily portions of' its capital expenditures. Three of the bank 
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lines. Iotaling $25.0 million. are committed. Advances offered under the uncommitted lines of credit are subject to the 
discretion ol' the banks. The outstanding balance of short-term borrowing at December 3 1. 2007 and 2006 was $45.7 
million and $27.6 million. respectivel). The annual weighted average interest rates on short-term debt were 5.46 percent 
and 5.47 pcrcenl for 2007 and 2006. respectively. 

The  ('ompany also had a letter of credit outstanding with its primary insurance company in the amount of $775000 as 
securitl, 10 satisfy the deductibles under the Cornpanj 's  various insurance policies. This letter of credit reduced the 
amounts available under the lines ofcredit and is scheduled to expire on Mal 31.2008. The Company does not anticipate 
that this lctter of credit will be drawn upon by the counterparty. and the Compan!. expects that it w d l  be renewed as 
necessary. 

J. LEASE OBLIGATIONS 
' rhe  Company has entered into several operating lease arrangements for office space at various locations. equipment and 
pipelinc facilities. Rent expense related to these leases was $736.000. $680.000. and $837.000 for 2007.2006. and 2005. 
respectivel!,. Future minimum payments under the Company's current lease agreements are $79 1 .000. $668.000. 
$544.000. $531,000 and $636.000 for the years 2008 through 2012. respectively: and $2.3 million thereafter. with an 
aggregate total o1'$5.4 million. 

K. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS 

Retirement Plans 

Before 1999. Company employees generally participated in both a defined benelit pension plan ("Defined Pension Plan") 
and a Retirement Savings Plan. Effcctivc January I .  1999. the Company restructured its retirement program to compete 
more effectively with similar businesses. As part of'this restructuring. the Company closed the Defined Pension Plan to 
new participants. Employees who paflicipated in the Defined Pension Plan at that time were given the option of  
remaining in (and continuing to accrue benefits under) the Defined Pension Plan or receiving an enhanccd matching 
contribution in the Retirement Savings Plan. 

Because the Defined Pension Plan was not open to new participants. the number o f  active participants in that plan 
decreascd and is approaching the minimum number nccdcd for the Defined Pension Pian to maintain its tax-qualified 
status. To avoid jeopardizing the tax-qualified status o f the  Defined Pension Plan. the Compan), 's  Board of Directors 
amended the Defined Pension Plan on September 24.2004. '1.0 ensure that the Company continues to provide appropriate 
levels ol'benelits to the C'ompan? '~ employees. the Board amended the Defined Pension Plan and the Retircnicnt Savings 
Plan. cffcctivc .Januar\, I. 2005. so that Defined Pension Plan participants who were activei) employed by the Company 
on that date: ( I ) rcccivc two additional years ol'bcncfit scr\,icc credit to be used in  calculating their Dcfincd I'cnsion Plan 
benclit (sub,jcct to thc Defined Iknsion Plan's liniit o f 3 5  years ofbenefit service credit). ( 2 )  have the option to  receive 
thcir Defined Pension Plan benefit in  the form ol'a lump sum at the timc thcy retire. and ( 3 )  arc eligible to receive the 
cnhanced matching contribution in the Retirement Savings Plan. In addition. cl'l'ectivc .lanuar)' 1. 3005. the Hoard 
amendcd the Defined Pension Pian so that participants will not accrue any additional benefits under that plan. These 
changes were communicated to the Companq ' s  employees during the lirst ~vcck ol'Novcmbcr 1004. 

In Scptembcr 2006. the I,'ASH issued Sb'AS No. 158. "I3nploycrs' Accounting Ibr I)cfincd I3cnclit I'cnsion and Other 
Postretirement Plans" (SFAS 158). The Company adopted SFAS 158 prospectively on December 3 I .  1006. SF AS I58 
requires that we recognize all obligations related to defined benefit pensions and other postretirement benefits. This 
statement requires that we quantify thc plans' lunded status as an asset or a liability on our consolidated balance sheets. 

SFAS 158 requires that \\e measure the plans' assets and obligations that determine our funded status as ofthc end ofthc 
fiscal year. The Company is also required to recognize as a coniponcnt of accumulated other comprchcnsive incomo 
("AOCI") the changes in lundcd status that occurred during the year that are not recognized as part o f n c t  pcriodic bcnclit 
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cost, as explained in SFAS No. 87. "Employers' Accounting for Pensions." or SFAS No. 106. "Employers' Accounting 
for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions.'' 

At December 3 1 .  2007. the funded status of the Compan! ' s  Defined Pension Plan was a liability of $274.739: at 
December 3 I .  2006 it was an asset of$590.560. In order to account for the liability and decrease in the funded status in 
accordance with FAS 158, the Company took a charge of $568.3 16. net of tax. to Comprehensive Income. In addition. 
the funded status of the postretirement health and life insurance plan was a liability of $1.756 million at December 3 1 .  
2007 compared to $1.763 million at December 3 1.2006. To adjust for the reduced liability for the postretirement health 
and life insurance plan. as required by FAS 158, the Company recorded income of  $23,086. net oftax. to Comprehensive 
Income. 

The amounts in AOCI for the respective retirement plans that are expected to be recognized as a component of net benefit 
cost in 2008 arc set forth in the following table. 

Defined Executive Excess Other 
Benefit Defined Benefit Postretirement 
Pension Pension Benefit 

Prior servicx: cost (credit) ($4.699) 
Loss (gain) $46.444 $130.973 

Defined Benefit Pension Plan 
As described above. effective January I .  2005. the Defined Pension Plan was frozen with respect to additional years of 
service or additional compensation. Benefits under the plan were based on each participant's pears ofser\jice and highest 
average compensation, prior to the freeze. The Company's funding policy provides that payments to the trustee shall be 
equal to the minimum funding requirements of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974. The Cumpan), 
does not expect to  be required to makc any funding payments to the Defined Pension Plan in 2008. The measurement 
dates for the Pension Plan were December 3 1 .  2007 and 2006. 

The following schedule summarizes the assets of the Defined Pension Plan. by investment type. at December 3 I .  2007. 
2006 and 2005: 

At December 31, 2007 2006 2005 
Asset C a t q o v  

Equity securities 49.03 Yo 11.34oio 76.120/u 
Debt securities .SO .26 "h I8.59?% 23.28% 
OthLT 0.71 u/o 3.07YU 0.600/;, 

'I'otal 1 OO.OU"h I00.00% 1oc).oO% 

The asset listed as "Other" in thc above tablc rcprescnts monies tcmporaril!, held in m o n q  market funds. The monc! 
market fund invests at least 80 pcrccnt of  its total asscts in: 

Lnited States Government obligations: and 
Iicpurchasc agreements that are l'u11y collatcralizcd by such obligations 

The investment policy ofthe Plan calls for an allocation ofasscts between cquit!, and debt instruments with equity being 
60 percent and debt at 40 percent, but allowing for a variance o f20  percent in either direction. In addition. as changes arc 
made to holdings. cash. mom) market funds or United States 'I'rcasurq Rills ma)' be held temporarilj by the fund. 
Investments in the following are prohibited: options. guaranteed investment contracts. real estate. venture capital. private 
placements, futures. commodities. limited partnerships and Chesapeake stock: short selling and margin transactions arc 
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prohibited as well. During 2004. Chesapeake modified its investment policy to allow the Employee Benefits Committee 
to reallocate investments to better match the expected life of the plan. 

The following schedule sets forth the funded status of the Defined Pension Plan at December 3 1.2007. 2006 and 2005: 

At December 31, 2007 2006 2005 
Change in benefit obligation: 

Benefit obligahon - beghung ofyear $1 1,449,725 $12.39.621 $12,053.063 
Interest cost 622,057 635.877 645.740 
Change in assumptions (301.8 51) 388.979 
Actuarial loss 282,684 6 07 28,895 
Benefits paid ( 1,280,946) (1.284.529) (717.056) 

Benefit obligation -end ofyear 11,073,520 11.449.725 12.399.621 

Change in plan assets: 
Fair value of plan assets -beginning of year 

Actual retum on plan assets 
12,040,287 11.780.866 12.097.248 

39,440 1.543.950 400.674 
Benefits paid (1,280,946) (1.284s 29) (71 7.056) 

Fair value of plan assets -end ofyear 10,798,781 12.040.287 11.780.866 

Reconciliation of funded status: " '  
Plan assets in cxcess (less than) benefit obligation at year-md (2 74,739) 590.560 (61 8.755) 
Unrecognized prior service cost (34.259) 
Unrecognized net actuarial gain ( 129.739) 

Ret amount accrued ($2 74,73 9) $590.5 60 ($782.753) 

Assumptions: 
Discount ratc 5.50% 5.50% 5.25% 
Expected retum on plan assets 6 .Oo % 6.OO0/6 6.00% 

(1) After the adoption of SFAS 150 on December 31, 2006, these amounts are recorded and this reconciliation IS no longer required 

'['he Company reviewed the assumptions used for the discount ratc to calculate thc benefit obligation ol'the plan and has 
clectcd to maintain thc ratc at 5.50 percent. rcflecting relatively n o  change in thc interest rates ofhigh quality bonds and 
reflecting the expected life ofthc plan, in light of the lump sum payment option. In addition. the average expected retum 
o n  plan assets (or thc Defined Pension Plan remained constant at six perccnt due to the adoption of'a change in thc 
invcstmcnt policy that allows for a higher le\wl of  investment in bonds and a lower level ofequity investments. Sincc the 
Plan is frozen in regard additional years of service and compensation. the rate of assumed compensation rate increases is 
not applicable. 'l'hc accumulated bcncfit obligation was 3; I 1 . 1  million and $ 1  1.4 million at Ikcembcr 3 1.2007 and 2006. 
respectivcly . 

Nct periodic pcnsion bcncfit li)r thc Defined Pcnsion Plan [or 2007. 2006. and 2005 include the components as 
shown below : 

Forthe Years Ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005 
Components of net periodic pension cost: 

lnterest cost $622,u57 $635 3 7 7  $645.740 
E;xxpcctd rctum on aSscts (696.398) (6YO.533) (703.2Xji 
Amortization of: 

IVet periodic pension benefit ($79,040) 

Assumptions: 
Discount rate 5 .so % 525% 5.50% 
Expected retum on plan asszts 6 .OO '/' 6.0 090 6. ooo/o  
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Executive Excess Defined Benefit Pension Plan 

The Company also provides an unfunded executive excess defined benefit pension plan (“Pension SERP“). As noted 
above, this plan was frozen with respect to additional years of service and additional compensation as of December 3 1. 
2004. Benefits under the plan were based on each participant‘s years ofservice and highest average compensation, prior 
to the freeze. The accumulated benefit obligation was $2.32 million and $2.29 million at December 3 1.2007 and 2006. 
respectively. 

The following schedule sets forth the status of the Pension SERP: 

At December 31, 20 07 2006 2005 
Change in benefit obligation: 

Benefit obligation - beginning ofyear $2,286,970 $2.322,471 $2.162.952 
Interest cost 1 23,36 1 119.588 119.658 
Actuarial (gain) loss 5,123 (65.886) 133.839 
Benefits paid (89,204) (89.203) (93.978) 

Benefit obligation -end ofyear 2,326,250 2.286.970 2.322.471 

Change in plan assets: 
Fair value of plan assets -beginning of year 

Employer con@ ibutions 89,204 89.203 9 3.978 
Benefits paid (89,204) (89.203) (93.9 78) 

Fair value of plan assets -end ofyear 

Funded status (2,326,250) (2.286.970) (2,322,47 1 ) 
95 9.492 

Net amount accrued “’ ($2,326,250) ($2.286.970) ($1,362.979) 

Assumptions: 

linrecognizcd net actuarial loss 

Discount rate 5.50% 5.50% 5.25% 
(1) After the adoption of SFAS 158 on December 31, 2OG6 these amounts are recorded and this reconciliabon IS no longer 
required. 

The Company reviewed the assumptions used for the discount rate ofthe plan to calculate the benefit obligation and has 
elected to maintain the rate at 5.50 percent. reflecting relatively n o  change in the interest rates ofhigli quality bonds and a 
reduction in thc expected life of the plan. Since the Plan is frozen in regard to additional years of service and 
compensation. the ratc ofassumed pay ratc increases is not applicable. The nieasurement dates for the Pension SERP 
were December 3 I ,  2007 and 2006. 

Net periodic pension costs Ibr the Pension Slrlil’ I‘or 2007. 2004. and 2005 includc thc componcnts as  shown b e h  : 

For the Years Ended December 31, 20 07 2006 2005 
C‘omponcnts of net periodic pension cost: 

Service wst $0 $0 $0 
Interest cost 123.361 119.588 1 1 9.658 
Amortization o f  

Actuarial 10s 51,734 57 .o 39 49.310 
Net periodic pension cost SI 75,095 !i 176.627 93168.977 

Assumptions: 
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Other Postretirement Benefits 

The Company sponsors a defined benefit postretirement health care and life insurance plan that covers substantially 
all employees. The following schedule sets forth the status of the postretirement health care and life insurance plan: 

At December 31, 20 07 2006 2005 
Change in benefit obligation: 

Benefit obligation -beginning of year S1,763,108 $1.534.684 $1.599.280 
Retirees 56,123 264.470 (59.152) 
Fu I1 y-e li gi bl e active employees 21,012 ( 1  14,082) (3 1.761) 
Other active (84,679) 78.036 26.317 

Benefit obligation -end of year $1,755,564 $1.763.108 $1.534.684 

Change in plan assets: 
Fair value of' plan assets -beginning ofyear 

Employer contribuions 243,660 300.360 89.238 
Plan participant's contibutions 100,863 94.9 14 72.866 
Benefits paid (344,523) ( 395.2 74) 1162.104) 

Fair value of plan assets -end ofyear 

Funded status 
Unrecognized transition obligation 

($1,755,564) ($1.763.1 08) ($1.534.684) 
22.282 

Ilnrecognized net actuarial loss 
Net amount accrued " I  

75 1.450 
($1,755,564) ($1.763.108) ($760.952) 

Assumptions: 

(1) After the adoption of SFAS 158 on December 31 2006 these amounts are recorded and this reconclliabon is no longer 
required 

1)iscount rate 5 50%) 5 50Kl 5 25% 

Net periodic postretirement costs for 2007. 2006 and 2005 include the following components: 

Forthe Years Ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005 
Components of net periodic postretirement cost: 

Service cost %,203 $9. I94 66.257 
Interest cost 101,776 93.924 7 7.872 
Amortlzatioii 01': 

'I ransition obligation 22.282 27.859 
Actuarial Iosc 166,423 144.694 88.291 

Net periodic postretirement cost $274,402 $270.094 $200.279 

'l'hc health carc inflation rate fo r  2007 to calculate the bcnclit obligation is assumed to be 5.5 perccnt ['or medical and 
seven perccnt for prescription drugs. 'These rates are pro,iectcd to decrease to ultimate rates of five and sis percenl. 
respectivcl). by the year 2009. A one percentage point increase in the health carc inflation ratc from thc assumed ratc 
would increase the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation by approximately $242.000 as o!'.lanuary I .  2008. and 
would increase the aggrcgatc oftlic service cost and interest cost components of the  net periodic postretirement benefit 
cost l'oi 2008 by approxiniatcl! $15.000. A one percentage point decrease in the health carc inflation ratc from the 
assumed ratc would decrease the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation by approsimatcly $200.000 as oI'.lanuar! 
1. 2008. and would decrease the aggregate of the scrvicc cost and interest cost components o r  thc net periodic 
postretirement bcnclit cost lbr 2008 b! approximatel!' $ 12.000, Thc incasurcmcnt dates werc 1)eccnibcr 3 I .  2007 and 
2006. 
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Estimated Future Benefit Payments 

The schedule bclow shows the estimated future benefit payments for each of the years 2008 through 2012 and the 
aggregate of the next five years for each of the plans previously described. 

Defined Executive Excess Other Post- 
Benefit Defined Benefit Retirement 

Pension Plan " I  Pension Plan ( 2 )  Benefits 
2008 $7 34.94 0 $87,959 $1 96,449 
2009 
2010 
2011 
20 12 
Years 2013 through 201 7 

1.3 63.07 4 86.586 
921.490 85.081 
437.21 3 83.444 

1.3 32.896 11 3.415 
3.755.45 5 83 5.4 15 1 

199.250 
208,938 
195.679 
204.524 

.081,460 

The pension plan is funded: therefore. benefit payments are expected to be paid out ofthe plan assas. 
Benefit payments are expected to be paid out ofthe general funds of the Company. 

11 ) 

12 1 

Retirement Savings Plan 

The Company sponsors a 401(k) Retirement Savings Plan. which provides participants a mechanism for making 
contributions for retirement savings. Each participant ma! make pre-tax contributions ofup to I5 percent ofeligible base 
compensation. subject to Internal Revenue Service limitations. These participants were eligible for the enhanced 
matching described belon. effective Janua? I .  2005. 

Effective January 1. 1999. the Company began offering an enhanced 401(k)  Plan to all new employees. as well as 
existing employees who elected to no longer participate in the Defined Pension Plan. Thc Company makes matching 
contributions ol'up to six percent of' each employee's prc-tax compcnsation for the year. except for the employees ol'our 
Advanced Information Services segment. The match is between 100 percent and 200 percent of' the employee's 
contribution. based on the employee's age and years of scrvicc. The first 100 percent is matched with Chesapeake 
common stock. The remaining match is imested in the Company's 401 (k)  Plan according to each employee's election 
options. 

Effective July I .  2006. the Company's contribution made on behalf' 01 '  Advanced Information Services segment 
employees. is a 50 percent matching contribution. up to sis percent 0 1 '  the employee's annual compensation. The 
malching contribution i s  funded in Chesapeake common stock. The Plan was also amended at the same time to enable it 
to receive discretionary profit-sharing contributions in the form of'employcc prc-tax deferrals. The extent to which the 
Advanccd Inlbrmation Sei-\, ices segnicnt h n>  dollars available for profit-sharing is dependent upon the extent to 

which actual earnings exceed budgeted earnings. An). profit-sharing dollars made a\<ailablc to employees can be deferred 
into thc Plan and/or paid ou t  in the Ihrm o f a  bonus. 

On December I .  2001. the Company converted the 4 0 l ( k )  fund holding Chesapeake stock to an 1:mploycc Stock 
O\vncrship Plan ("ESOP"). 

Effective January I .  1999. the ('onipan) began offering a non-quali lied supplemental employee retirement sa\.ings plan 
("401(k) SERP") open to Company executives over a specilic income threshold. Participants receive cash only matching 
contribution percentage equkalent to their 401 ( k )  match level. Al l  contributions and matched funds can bc invested 
among the twenty-one mutual funds available for investment. These same lunds arc available for investment ol'employcc 
contributions within the Retirement Savings Plan. All obligations arising under the 401 i k )  SERP are payablc from the 
general assets ofchesapeakc. although Chcsapeakc has established a Rabbi Trust to help pay benefits under the 401 ( k )  
SERP. As discussed further in Note E - "Investments." to the Consolidated Financial Statements. thc assets held in the 
Rabbi Trust had a fair value o f $  I .9 million and $2.0 million at Decem bcr 3 I .  1007 and 1006. rcspectivcl! , T h e  assets of' 
the Rabbi Trust are at all times sub.ject to the claims ofChesapeake's general creditors. 
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The Company's contributions to the 401(k) plans totaled $1.48 million. $1.61 million. and $1.68 million for the years 
ended December 3 I .  2007.2006. and 2005, respectively. As of December 3 1.2007. there are 47-91 6 shares reserved to 
fund future contributions to the Retirement Savings Plan. 

Deferred Compensation Plan 

On December 7, 2006. the Board of Directors approved the Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Deferred Compensation 
Plan ("Deferred Compensation Plan"). as amended. effective January 1.2007. The Deferred Compensation Plan is a non- 
qualified. deferred compensation arrangement under which certain executives and members of the Board ofDirectors are 
able to defer payment of part or all of certain specified types of compensation. including executive cash bonuses. 
executive performance shares. and directors' fees. At December 3 1. 2007. the Deferred Compensation Plan consists 
solely of  shares of common stock related to the deferral of  executive performance shares and directors' stock retainers. 

Participants in the Deferred Compensation Plan are able to elect the payment of benefits to begin on a specified future 
date after the elcction is made in the form of a lump sum or annual installments. Deferrals of executive cash bonuses and 
directors' cash retainers and fees shall be paid in cash. All deferrals of executive performance shares and directors' stock 
retainers shall be paid in shares of the Company's common stock. except that cash shall be paid in lieu of fractional 
shares. 

The Company established a Rabbi Trust in connection ui th  the Deferrcd Compensation Plan. The valuc of the 
Company's stock held in the Rabbi Trust is classified within the stockholders' equity section o f the  Balance Sheet and 
has been accounted for in a manner similar to treasury stock. The amounts recorded under the Deferred Compensation 
Plan totaled $1.4 million and $ 1  . I  million at Ilecember 3 I .  2007 and 2006. rcspcctivcl!. 

L. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS 

?'he Company accounts for its share-bascd compensation arrangements under SPAS N o .  123 (revised 2004). "Share 
Rased Payments" ("SFAS I23R"). which requires companies to record compensation costs for all share-based awards 
over the respective service period for employee services receited in exchange for an award of equitj. or equity-based 
compensation. l'hc compensation cost is based oil the fair valuc of thc grant on thc daw it was awarded. Thc Company 
currently has two share-based compensation plans. the Directors Stock Compensation Plan ("DSCP") and the 
I'crl'ormancc lnccnlivc Plan (*'PIP''). that require accounting under SFAS 12311. 
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The table below presents the amounts included in net income. after tax. related to share-based compensation expense, for 
the restricted stock awards issued under the DSCP and the PIP. 

For the year ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005 

Directors Stock Compensation Plan $ 110,360 $ 100,860 $ 83,980 
Performance Incentive Plan 493,510 332,110 439,580 

Amounts included in net income after tax $ 603,870 $ 432,970 $ 523,560 

Stock Options 
The Company did not have any stock options outstanding at December 3 1. 2007 or December 3 1. 2006, nor were any 
stock options issued during 2007 and 2006. 

Directors Stock Compensation Plan 
Under the DSCP. each non-emplo>ee director of thc Compan) received in 2007 an annual retainer of 600 shares of 
common stock and an additional 150 shares of common stock for services as a committee chairman. Shares issued under 
thc DSCP arc fully vested as of the date of the grant. The Company records a prepaid expense as of'the date of the grant 
equal to the fair value of the shares issued and amortizes the expense equally over a service period of one year. 

A summary of restricted stock activity under the DSCP for the three years of2007. 2006. and 2005 is presented below: 

Number of Restricted Weighted Average Grant 
Shares Date Fair Value 

Outstanding - December 31, 2004 
Issued - May 5. 2005 5,850 524 68 
Vested 5,850 
Outstanding - December 31, 2005 
Issued - May 2. 2006 5,850 $30 02 
Vested 5,850 
Outstanding - December 31 2006 
Issued - May 2, 2007 5,850 $31 38 
Vested 5,850 
Outstanding - December 31, 2007 

Compcnsation cxpcnsc rclatcd to DSCP awards recorded by the Company Ibr the years 2007. 2000. and 2005 is 
presented in the lhllowing table: 

For the year ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005 

Compensation expense for DSCP $ 180,920 S 165.340 $ 137,670 

As o f  December 31. 2007. thcrc wcrc 57.450 shares rcser\cd for tssuancc under the terms of'thc Companl 's  DSCP 

Performancc lnccntivc Plan ("J'IP") 
The Company's Compensation Committee of' the Board 01' Directors is authorized to  grant ke! employees 01' the 
Company the right to receive awards of' shares o f t h e  Compan! '~ common stock. contingent upon the achievenicnt 01' 
established performance goals. These awards are subject to certain post-vcsting transfer' restrictions. The shares granted 
under the PIP arc fully vested. and the fair value ofeach sharc is equal to the market price oi'the Company's common 
stock on the date oi'grant. 

A summary ofrestrickd stock activit!, under thc PIP li)r the thrcc years of2007. 2000. and 2005 is prcscntcd below: 
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Number of Restricted Weighted Average Grant 
Shares Date Fair Value 

Outstanding - December 31, 2004 
Issued - February 24,2005 10,130 $27.00 
Vested 10,130 
Outstanding - December 31, 2005 
Issued -February 23,2006 23,666 $30.40 
Vested 23,666 
Outstanding - December 31, 2006 
issued - March 1, 2007 10,124 $30 89 
Vested 10.124 
Outstandinq - December 31, 2007 

Compensation expense related to the PIP recorded by the Company during the three years o f  2007. 2006. and 2005 is 
presented in the following table: 

For the vear ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005 

Compensation expense for PIP $ 809,030 $ 544,450 $ 720.630 

As of  December 3 1.  2007. there were 389.876 shares reserved for issuance under the terms of thc  C o m p a n ) ' ~  PIP. 

M. ENVIRONMENTAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Chesapeakc is sub,ject to federal, state and local laws and regulations governing environmental quality and pollution 
control. 'These laws and regulations require the Company to remove or remedy the effect on the environment of the 
disposal or release of specified substances at current and f'ormer operating sites. 

In 2004. Chesapeake received a Certificate ofCompletion lor the remedial work performed at a former manufactured gas 
plant site located in Dover. Delaware. Chesapeakc is also currently participating in the investigation. assessment or 
rcmcdiation ol'two additional former nianulictured gas plant sites located in Maryland and Florida. The Company has 
accrued liabilities for the three sites referred to. respectively. as the Dover Gas Light, Salisbury Town Gas Light and thc 
Winter I-lavcn Coal Gas sites. The Company has been in discussions with the Mar!,land Ikpartnicnt ofthc Environment 
("MDT:") regarding a fourth former manufactured gas plant site located in Cambridge. Mar1,land. The following 
discussion provides details o f  each site. 

Dover Gas Light Site 
'l'hc I>ovcr Gas I,ight site is a I'ormcr manufactured gas plant sitc located in I>ovcr. I)clawarc. On .lanuarb, 15. 2004. thc 
Compan!, received a Certificate oi' Completion of' Work from the United States I:nvironnicntal Protection Agcnc! 
(.'EPA") regarding this site. This concluded Chesapeake's remedial action obligation related to this site and relieves 
Chesapeakc from liability for future rcnicdiation at thc site. unless prcviouslq unknown conditions are discovered at thc 
site. or inibrmation previously unknown to the EI'A is received that indicates the remedial action that has been taken is 
not sufficicntlJ. protective. These contingencies arc standard and are required b) thc EPA i n  all liabilit! settlements. 

Thc Conipan), has reviewed its rcmcdiation costs incurred to datc I'or thc L>ovcr Gas I,ight sitc and has concludcd that all 
costs incurred have been paid. Thc Company does not expect an!' future environmental expenditure for this site. Through 
December 3 I ~ 2007. thc Company has incurred approximately $9.67 niillion in costs related to environmental testing and 
remedial action studies at the site. Approximately $9.96 million has been recovered through December 2007 from other 
parties or through rates. As oi'llecember 3 I .  2007. a regulatory liability of'approximatcly $294.500. reprcsenling thc 
over-recovery portion of the clean-up costs. has been recorded. The over-recocer)' is temporary and will bt: rel'undcd b! 
the Company to customers in future rates. 
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Salisbury Town Gas Light Site 
In  cooperation with the MDE. the Company has completed remediation of the Salisburq Town Gas Light site. located in 
Salisbury, Mar) land. where it was determined that a former manufactured gas plant had caused localized ground-water 
contamination. During 1996. the Company completed construction and began Air Sparging and Soil-Vapor Extraction 
("ASISVE") remediation procedures. Chesapeake has been reporting the remediation and monitoring results to the MDE 
on an ongoing basis since 1996. In February 2002. the MDE granted permission to decommission permanently the 
AS/SVE system and to discontinue all on-site and off-site well monitoring. except for one well that is being maintained 
for continued product monitoring and recovery. Chesapeake has requested a No Further Action determination and is 
awaiting such a determination from the MDE. 

Through December 3 1. 2007. the Company has incurred approximately $2.9 million for remedial actions and 
environmental studies at the Salisbury Town Gas Light site. Of this amount, approximately $1.88 million has been 
recovered through insurance proceeds or in rates. On September 26. 2006. the Company received approval from the 
Maryland Public Service Commission to recover. through its rates charged to customers. the remaining $1.02 million of 
the incurred environmental remediation costs. 

Winter Haven Coal Gas  Site 
The Winter I-lavcn Coal Gas site is located in Winter Haven, Florida. Chesapeake has been working with the Florida 
Department of Environmental Protection ("FDEP") in assessing this coal gas site. In May 1996. the Company filed with 
the FDEP an A S E V E  Pilot Study Work Plan (the "Work Plan") for the Winter IHaven Coal Gas site. After discussions 
with the FDEP. the Company filed a modified Work Plan. which contained a description of the scope of work to 
complete the site assessment activities and a report describing a limited sediment investigation performed in 1997. In 
December 1998. the FDEP approved the modified Work Plan. which the Company completed during the third quarter of 
1999. In February 2001. the Company filed a Remedial Action Plan ("RAP") with the FDEP to address the 
contamination of the subsurface soil and ground-water in a portion ofthe site. The FDEP approved the RAP on May 4. 
2001. Construction of the ASiSVE system was completed in the fouith quarter of 2002. and the system remains full!, 
operational. 

In the third quarter of2007. the Company performed an updated environmental review ofthis site. including a review, of 
any potcntial liabilities related to the investigation and remcdiation actions. Based on this rcviei4. the Company increased 
its liability by approximately $700.000 for the updated estimate ofcosts to remediate this site. Through December 3 1 .  
2007. the Compan! has incurred approximately $ I  .8 million of environmental costs associated with this site. At 
December 3 1 .  2007. the Company had accrued a liability of $835.000 related to this site. offsetting (a) $1 5.000 collected 
through rates in excess 01' costs incurred and (b )  a regulator) asset of approximately $851.000. representing the 
uncollected portion of the estimated clean-up costs. The Compan! expects to recover the remaining clean-up costs 
through rates. 

The FDllP has indicated that the Company ma)' be required to remediate sediments along the shorcline of  I,akc Shipp. 
immediatcl) west of the Winter I-layen Coal Gas site. Based on studies performed to date. the Compan!, ob,jects to the 
FDEP's suggestion that the sediments have been contaminated and will rcquire remediation. The Company's earl! 
estimates indicate that some of the corrective measures discussed by the FDEI' may cost as much as $ 1  million. Given 
the Compan!.'s view as to  the absence o f  ecological effe the Compan). believes that cost expenditures of this 
magnitude arc unwarranted and plans to oppose any requirement that i t  undertake corrcctiw measures in the offshore 
sediments. Chesapeake anticipates that it will be several years bcli)re this issue is resolved. A t  this time. the ('onipan! 
has not recorded a liability for sediment remediation. The outcome ofthis  maner cannot be predicted at this tinie. 

Other 
'The Company is in discussions with the MDE regarding a manufactured gas plant site located in Cambridge. Maryland. 
The outcome ofthis matter cannot be determined at this time: therefore. the Company has not recorded an environmental 
liability for this location. 
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N. OTHER COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Natural Gas and Propane Supply 

The Company's natural gas and propane distribution operations have entered into contractual commitments to purchase 
gas from various suppliers. The contracts have various expiration dates. In April 2007. the Company renewed its contract 
with an energy marketing and risk management company to manage a portion of the Company's natural gas 
transportation and storage capacity. This new contract expires on March 3 1,2008. PESCO is currently in the process of 
obtaining and reviewing supply proposals from suppliers and anticipates executing agreements prior to the existing 
contracts. 

Corporate Guarantees 

The Company has issued corporate guarantees to certain vendors of its propane wholesale marketing subsidiary and its 
Florida natural gas supply management subsidiary. These corporate guarantees provide for the payment of propane and 
natural gas purchases in the event of either subsidiary's default. The liabilities for these purchases are recorded in the 
Consolidated Financial Statements when incurred. The aggregate amount guaranteed at December 3 1.2007 totaled $24.2 
million. with thc guarantees expiring on various dates in 2008. No  guarantees were recorded by the Company in 2007. 

In addition to the corporate guarantees. the ('ompan) has issued a letter ofcredit to its primary insurance company lbr 
$775.000. which expires on May 3 1.2008. The letter of credit is provided as security to satisfy the deductibles under the 
Companl 's  various insurance policies. There have been no draws on this letter o f  credit as o1'Deceniber 31. 2007 

Internal Revenue Service Audit 

In November 2007. the Company was notified b l  the Internal Revenue Service ("IRS") that its consolidated federal 
incomc tax return lir the year ended I>ecember 3 1.2005 has been selected for examination. Thc IRS audit is ongoing and 
is expected to be completed in the second quarter of2008. The outcome ofthis audit cannot be determined at this time: 
therefore. thc Company has not  recorded an)' rcscrves for potential assessments that ma! result from the examination. 

Other 
The ('ompan!, is involved in certain legal actions and claims arising in the normal course of business. ' fhc  Company is 
also involved in certain legal and administrative proceedings before various governmental agencies conccming rates. In 
the opinion 01' management. the ultimate disposition 01' these proceedings will not have a material c f t c t  o n  thc 
consolidated financial position. results of  operations or cash flows of thc ('ompan>. 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

0. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED) 
In the opinion ofthe Company, the quarterly financial information shown below includes all ad.justments necessary for a 
fair presentation of the operations for such periods and to disclose OnSight as a discontinued operation. The quarterly 
information shown has been adjusted to reflect the reclassification of Onsight’s operations for all periods presented. Due 
to the seasonal nature of  the Company’s business. there are substantial variations in operations reported on a quarter11 
basis. 

Forthe Quarters Ended March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31 

200 7 
Operating Revenue $93,526,891 $52,501,920 $41,418,718 $70,838,968 
Operating lncomc $14,613,572 S3,698,066 $985,634 $8.816,310 
Net Income (Loss) $7,991,088 $1.481,791 ($35 5,898) $4,080,730 
Earnings per share: 

Basic $1.19 s0.22 ( $0. OS) $0.60 
Diluted $1.18 s0.22 (S0.M) $0.60 

2006 
Operating Revcnue $90.950.160 $44.303.239 $35.141.531 $60.804.636 
Operating Income $11.535.1 95 $3.303.448 $32 2.6 72 $8.1 70.62 1 
Net Income (Loss) $6.096.4 16 $1.132.509 ($656.579) $3.934.179 
Earnings per sharc: 

Basic $1.03 $0.19 ($0.11) $0.63 
Di 1 utcd $1.01 $0.19 ($0.11) $0.62 
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE. 

On March 20. 2007. the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation (the 
"Company") dismissed Pricewaterhousecoopers LLP ("PwC") as the Company's independent registered public 
accounting firm. 

The reports of PwC on the consolidated financial statements ofthe Company for the years ended December 3 1.2006 and 
2005 did not contain an adverse opinion or a disclaimer of opinion. nor were the!, qualified or modified as to uncertainty. 
audit scope. or accounting principle. 

During the years ended December 3 1.2006 and 2005 and through March 20.2007. there have been no (a) disagreements. 
as described under Item 304(a)( I)(iv) of Regulation S-K. with PwC on any matter of accounting principles or practices. 
financial statement disclosure, or auditing scope or procedure. which disagreements. ifnot resolved to the satisfaction of 
PwC. would have caused PwC to make reference thereto in their reports on the Company's consolidated financial 
statements for such years. or (b) reportable events. as described under Item 304(a)(l ) (v)  of  Regulation S-K. 

The Compan!, engaged Beard Miller Companj LLP as its new independent registered public accounting firm. During the 
years ended December 3 I .  2006 and 2005 and through March 20. 2007. the Cornpan!, had not consulted ujith Beard 
Miller Compan), LLP on any matters or events described in Item 304(a)(2) ( i )  and ( i i )  ofRegulation S-K. 

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES. 

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures 
The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of  the Compan!,. with the participation of other Compan? 
officials. have evaluated the Company's "disclosure controls and procedures" (as such term is defined under Rule 13a- 
15(e) and 15d - I5(e) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. as amended) as of December 3 1. 2007. 
Based upon their evaluation. the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Compan!.'s 
disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of December 3 1. 2007. 

Changes in Internal Controls 
There has becn no change in internal control over financial reporting (as such term is dclined in Eschangc Act Rulc 13a- 
lS(f,)) that occurred during the quarter cndcd December 31. 2007. that materially affected. or is reasonably likel! to 
matcriallq all'cct. intcrnal control over linancial rcporting. 

CEO and CFO Certifications 
The Compan!,'s Chief Executive Officer as wcll as thc Senior Vice I'resident and Chiel'Financial Ofliccr h a w  liled with 
thc Securities and Exchange Commission the certifications required b!, Section 302 ofthc Sarbanes-Osle!, Act of2002 as 
13;xhibits 3 I ,  I and 3 1.7 to the Compan!,'s Annual Keport on Form IO-E; for the liscal year ended December 3 I .  2007. I n  
addition. on Ma! 27.2007. the Conipan) ' s  CEO certified to the NCM' York Stock I h h a n g c  that he was not aware ofan! 
\,iolation b!, thc rompan) ,  o f  thc NYSF: corporate governance listing standards. 

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
The report of management required under this Item 9A is contained in  lteni 8 ol'this Forin 10-K under thc caption 
*bManagemcnt's lieport on Internal ('ontrol o \  cr Financial Iicporting." 

Our independent auditors. Beard Miller ('ompan! l,l,P. have audited and issued their report on effectiveness ol'thc 
Company's internal control over financial reporting. That report appears belon. 

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 
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To the Board ofDirectors and 
Stockholders o f  Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 

We have audited Chesapeake Utilities Corporation's internal control over financial reporting as of  December 3 1,2007. 
based on criteria established in Jnternal Control-Jntegrated Framework issued bq the Committee of Sponsoring 
Organizations ofthe Treadway Commission (COSO). Chesapeake Utilities Corporation's management is responsible for 
maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal 
control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Management's Report on Intemal Control Over Financial 
Reporting appearing under Item 8. Our responsibilit? is to express an opinion on the company's internal control over 
financial reporting based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United 
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit of internal control 
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting. assessing the 
risk that a material weakness exists. and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control 
based on the assessed risk. Our audit also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the 
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonablc basis for our opinion. 

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally acceptcd accounting principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that ( 1  ) pertain to the maintenance of records that. in reasonable detail. accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of  the company: ( 2 )  provide reasonable assurance that transactions are 
recorded as necessarq to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally acceptcd accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of 
management and directors ofthe company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection 
of  unauthorized acquisition. use. or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements. 

13ecausc of' its inherent limitations. internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. 
Also, prqiections of any evaluation ol' effectiveness to future periods are subject to thc risk that controls may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions. or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures ma! 
dctcrioratc. 

In our opinion. Chesapeake Utilities Corporation maintained. in all material respects. cl'lixtivc internal control over 
financial reporting as ol'llecember 3 1. 2007. based on criteria established in /n/erna/ ( ' on / ro /  /n/egra/eu' I.?a/nc)work 
issued by the Committee of  Sponsoring Organizations of'the 'l'readway Commission (COSO). 

We have also audited. in accordance with the standards o f the  Public Compan)' Accounting Oversight Board (Unilcd 
States). the consolidated balance sheet ol' Chesapeake Ikilities ('orporation as 01' Ikcemhcr  3 I .  2007. and the related 
consolidated statements oi'incomc. scockholders' equit),. comprehensive incomc. cash I lo~+~s  and incomc Laxcs I'or the 
year then ended. and our report dated March 10. 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion. 

/ S f  BEARD MILLER COMPANY LLP 
Beard Miller Company I ,LP  
Reading. Pennsylvania 
March 10. 2008 
ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION. 

Page 86 Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 2007 Form 10-K 



None 

PART I l l  

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT AND CORPORATE GOVERNANACE. 

The information required bq this Item is incorporated herein b) reference to the portions of the Prox) Statement. 
captioned “Proposal I - Election of Directors,“ “Information Regarding the Board of Directors and Nominees.“ 
“Corporate Governance Practices and Stockholder Communications - Nomination of Directors.” “Committees of the 
Board - Audit Committee“ and “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reponing Compliance” to be filed not later than 
March 3 1. 2008 in connection u ith the Company‘s Annual Meeting to be held on May 1. 2008. 

‘The information required by this ltem with respect to executive officers is. pursuant to instruction 3 ofparagraph (b )  of 
ltem 401 ofRegulation S-K. set forth in this report following Item 4. as ltem 4A. under the caption “Executive Officers 
of the Compan! .” 

’The Company has adopted a Code of  Ethics for Financial Officers. which applies to its principal executive officer. 
principal financial officer. principal accounting officer or controller. or persons performing similar functions. The 
information set I‘orth under Item I hereofconcerning the Code ol’Ethics for Financial Officers is incorporated herein b!, 
reference. 

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION. 

The inlbrmation required by this ltem is incorporated herein hy reference to the portion ofthc Proxy Statement captioned 
“Director Compensation.” “Executive Compensation“ and “Compensation Discussion and Analysis” in the Proxy 
Statement to hc lilcd not later than March 3 1. 2008. in connection with the Cumpan) ‘ 5  Annual Meeting to be held on 
Ma)’ I .  2008. 

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED 
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS. 

The inlbrmation required b!. this ltcm is incorporated hercin by rcli-rencc to the portion ol‘thc Proxy Statement captioned 
“Renclicial Ownership of Chesapeake‘s Securities“ to be filed not later than March 3 1 .  2008 in connection with the 
Company‘s Annual Meeting to be hcld on Ma! I .  2008. 
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The following table sets forth information. as of December 3 1.2007. with respect to compensation plans of Chesapeake 
and its subsidiaries. under which shares o f  Chesapeake common stock are authorized for issuance: 

Number of secunbes 
remaining available for 
future issuance under 

Numberof securibesto Weighted-average equity cornpensaton 
be issued upon exercse exercise price of plans (excluding 
of outstanding opttons outstanding options securites reflected in 

warrants and rights warrants and rights mlumn (a)) 
Equity compensation 
plans approved by 
securrty holders 0 (1) 471 626 (2 ) 

Equity compensation 
plans not approved by 

Tota I 0 

(1) All optlons to purchase shares underthe 1992 Perfonnance incentwe Plan as amended were exerclsed as of 12/31/05 

(2) includes 389 876shares under the 2005 Performance Incentive Plan 57 450 shares available undef the 2005 Oirectors Stock 
Compensation Plan and 24 300 shares available under the 2005 Employee Stock Awards Pian 

(31 All warrants were exercised in 2006 

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE. 

Nonc 

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES. 

I'hc infirmation required b\ this Item is incorporated herein b! reference to the portion of the Proxj Statement captioned 
"bees and Services ofthe Independent I'ublic Accounting Firm" to bc liled not later than March 3 I .  2008. in conncction 
with the Company's Annual Meeting to be held on Ma! I .  2008. 

Page 88 Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 2007 Form 10-K 



PART IV 

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES. 

(a) The following documents are filed as part of this report: 
Financial Statements: 
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm; 

Consolidated Statements of Income for each of the three years ended December 3 1.2007.2006 and 2005: 

Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 3 1. 2007 and December 3 1. 2006: 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for each ofthe three years ended December 3 1.2007.2006. and 2005: 

Consolidated Statements of Common Stockholders’ Equit) for each of the three years ended December 3 1, 
2007. 2006. and 2005: 

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for each ofthe three years ended December 3 1.2007.2006. 
and 2005: 

Consolidated Statements oflncome Taxes for each ofthe three \ears ended December 3 1.2007.2006. and 2005: 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Financial Statement Schedule: 
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm: and 

Schedule I I  - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts. 

All other schcdules arc omittcd. becausc they are not required. are inapplicable or the information is otherwise 
shown in the financial statements or  notes thereto. 

Exhibits 
Exhibit 1 . 1  IJnderwriting Agreement entered into bq Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and Robert b’. 

Baird &: Co. Incorporated and A.6 .  Edwards &: Sons. Itic.. on Novenibcr IS. 2007. relating to 
thc sale and issuance of 600.300 shares of the C o m p a n ) ‘ ~  common stock. is incorporated 
herein by reference to Exhibit 1 .I of ‘I’hc Compan) ‘ s  Current Report on Form 8-K. filed 
Novem bcr 16. 2007. File No. 001 - I 1590, 

Restated Certificatc of‘ Incorporation 01‘ Chesapeake Iltilitics Corporation is incorporated 
herein by reference to Exhibit 3. I ofthe Company’s Quartcrly Report on Form 10-0 Ibr the 
period endcd .lune 30. 1998. File N o .  001 - 1 1590. 

Amended and Restated Bylaws ofChesapeake lltilities Corporation. effective December 12. 
2007. is f i led herewith. 

Form of Indcnture between the Company and Roatmcn‘s Trust C‘ompan),. Trustec. with 
rcspcct to the 8 114%) (“wcrtiblc Ikbenturcs is incorporated hcrcin by rcl‘crcncc to 1;shibit 
4.2 of the Compan).’s Registration Statement on Form S-2. Keg. No. 33-26582. f i led on 
.lanuar> 13. 1989. 

Note Agreement dated Februao 9. 1993. by and between the Compan!, and Massachusetts 
Mutual L,ife Insurance Company and MML Pension Insurance Compan). with respect to $10 
million of7.97?/0 Unsecured Senior Notes due February I .  2008. is incorporated herein b> 
reference to Exhibit 4 to the Company‘s Annual Report o n  Iiorm I O - l i  for the ycar cndcd 
Decem bcr 3 I. 1992. 1:iIc No.  0-503. 

I:xhibit 3 .  1 

1:xhibit 3.2 

Exhibit 4. I 

Exhibit 4.2 
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a 

a 

a 

a 

a 

a 

a 

a 

a 

Exhibit 4.3 

Exhibit 4 .4  

Exhibit 4.5 

Exhibit 4.6 

Exhibit 4 .7  

Exhibit 4.8 

Exhibit 4.9 

Exhibit 4.10 

IJxhibit 10.1 * 

l:xhibit IO.?* 

Exhibit 10.3* 

Exhibit 10.4* 

Note Purchase Agreement. entered into by the Company on October 2. 1995. pursuant to 
which the Company privately placed $1 0 million of its 6.91 % Senior Notes. due in 201 0. is 
not being filed herewith, in accordance with item 601(b)(4)(iii) of Regulation S-K. The 
Company hereby agrees to furnish a copy of that agreement to the SEC upon request. 

Note Purchase Agreement. entered into by the Company on December 15. 1997, pursuant to 
which the Company privately placed $10 million of its 6.85% Senior Notes due in 2012. is 
not being filed herewith. in accordance with item 601 (b)(4)(iii) of Regulation S-K. The 
Company hereby agrees to furnish a copy of that agreement to the SEC upon request. 

Kote Purchase Agreement entered into by the Company on December 27.2000, pursuant to 
which the Company privately placed $20 million of its 7.83% Senior Notes. due in 2015. is 
not being filed herewith, in accordance with item 601 (b)(4)(iii) of Regulation S-K. The 
Company hereby agrees to furnish a copy of that agreement to the SEC upon request. 

Note Agreement entered into by the Company on October 3 1. 2002. pursuant to  which the 
Company privately placed $30 million of its 6.64% Senior Notes. due in 2017. is 
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2 ofthe Company's Current Report on Form 8-K. 
filed November 6. 2002. FileNo. 001-1 1590. 

Note Agreement entered into by the Company on October 18. 2005. pursuant t o  which the 
Company. on October 12.2006. privately placed $20 million ofits 5.5% Senior Notes. due in 
2020. with Prudential Investment Management. Inc.. is incorporated herein by reference to 
Exhibit 4.1 of the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 3 I ,  
2005. File No. 001 - I  1590. 

Form of Senior Dcbt Trust lndcnturc bctwccn Chesapeake litilities Corporation and the 
trustee for the debt securities is incorporated herein by reference to  Exhibit 4.3.1 of' thc 
Company's Registration Statement on Form S-3.4. Reg. Xo. 333-1 35602. dated November 0. 
2006. 

Form of Subordinated Debt Trust Indenture between Chesapeake li'tilities Corporation and 
the trustce for the debt sccurities is incorporatcd hcrcin by rcfcrencc to Exhibit 4.3.2 oi'thc 
Company's Registration Statement on Form S-3A, Reg. KO. 333-1 35602. dated Novembcr 6. 
2006. 

Form of debt securities is incorporated herein by rcfcrence to Exhibit 4.4 ofthe Company's 
Registration Statement on Form S-3A. Keg. No. 333-135602. dated November 6 ,  2006. 

Chcsapeakc IJtilitics Corporation Cash Bonus Incentive Plan. dated January I ,  2005. is 
incorporatcd herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Company's Annual Report on 1:orm 
10-K for the year ended December 31. 2004. File Eo. 001-1 1590. 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Directors Stock Compensation I'lan. adoptcd in 2005. is 
incorporatcd herein by referencc to thc Company's Proxy Statement dated March 28. 2005. 
in connection with thc Compan),'s Annual Meeting held on Ma! 5. 2005. File N o .  001- 
I 1590. 

Chcsapeakc I ltilitics Corporation Employee Stock Award Plan. adopted in 2005. is 
incorporated hercin b!, reference to the Compan\,'s Pros), Statement dated March 28.2005, 
in connection with the CompanJ's Annual Mccting held on Ma! 5 .  2005. File N o .  OOI- 
I 1590. 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Periixmance Inccntive I'lan. adopted in 2005. is 
incorporated herein by relerencc to thc Company's Proxy Statement dated March 28. 2005. 
in connection with the Company's Annual Meeting held o n  Ma> 5 .  2005. File Lo. 001- 
I 1590. 
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Exhibit 10.5* 

Exhibit 10.6* 

Exhibit 10.7* 

Exhibit 10.8' 

Exhibit 10.9* 

Exhibit 10.10* 

Exhibit IO. I 1  * 

lxhibit 10.12* 

bxhibit lO.13* 

1:xhibit 10.14* 

Ihhibit 10 .15*  

Eshibit 10. I6* 

Exhibit IO. I7* 

Eshibit lO.18* 

Deferred Compensation Program (amended and restated as of December 7 .  2006) is 
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10 ofthe Company's Current Report on Form 8- 
K: filed December 13. 2006. File No. 001-1 1590. 

Executive Employment Agreement dated December 29.2006. by and between Chesapeake 
Utilities Corporation and S. Robert Zola. is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.7 
of the Company's Annual Report on Form IO-K for the year ended December 31.2006. File 

Executive Employment Agreement dated December 29.2006. by and between Chesapeake 
Utilities Corporation and Stephen C. Thompson. is incorporated herein by reference to 
Exhibit 10.8 of the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 
31.2006. Fi leNo.  001-1 1590. 

Executive Employment Agreement dated December 29.2006. by and between Chesapeake 
Utilities Corporation and Beth W .  Cooper. is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.9 
of the Companj.'s Annual Repot? on Form 10-K for the year ended Decem her 3 1.2006. File 

Executive Employment Agreement dated December 29.2006. by and between Chesapeake 
lltilities Corporation and Michael P. McMasters. is incorporated herein by reference to 
Exhibit 10.10 of the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 
31. 2006. Fi leNo.  001-1 1590. 

Executive Employment Agreement dated December 29.2006. by and between Chesapeake 
Iltilities Corporation and John R. Schimkaitis. is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 
IO. 1 I of the Company's Annual Report on Form I O - I (  for the year ended December 3 I .  
2006. File No. 001-1 1590. 

Performance Share Agreement dated January 23.2008 for the period 2008 to 2009. pursuant 
to Chesapeake lltilities Corporation Performance Incentive Plan by and between Chesapeake 
Utilities Corporation and John R. Schimkaitis. filed herewith. 

Performance Share Agreement dated January 23.2008 for the period 2008 to 201 0, pursuant 
to Chesapeake Iltilities Corporation Performance Incentive Plan b> and between Chesapeake 
IJtilities Corporation and John R. Schimkaitis. is filed herewith. 

Performance Share Agreement dated January 23.2008 !'or the period 2008 to 2009. pursuant 
to Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Performance Incentive Plan by and between Chesapeake 
Utilities Corporation and Michael 1'. McMasters. i s  tiled herewith. 

Performance Share Agreement dated Januar! 23.2008 for the period 2008 to 201 0. pursuant 
cs Corporation Performance Incentive Plan by and between Chesapeake 

Ltilities Corporation and Michael P. McMasters. is  tiled herewith. 

l'cribrmance Share Agreement dated Januar! 23. 2008 for the period 2008 to 2000. pursuant 
to Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Performance Incentive I'lan b ~ ,  and between Chesapeake 
Otilities Corporation and Stephen C. Thompson. is tiled herewith. 

Performance Share Agreement dated January 23.2008 for the period 2008 to 201 0. pursuant 
to Chesapeake IJtilities Corporation Performancc lncentivc Plan b>, and between Chcsapeakc 
IJtilities Corporation and Stephen C'. Thonipson. is l i l cd herewith. 

Performance Share Agreement dated January 23.2008 for thc period 2008 to 2009. pursuant 
to Chesapeake lltilities Corporation Performance Incentive I'lan b! and between Chesapeake 
Utilities Corporation and Beth 'A:. Cooper. is filed herewith. 

Performance Share Agreement dated Januar) 23. 2008 I'or the period 2008 to 201 0. pursuant 
to Chcsapcakc Utilities Corporation Performance Incentive Plan b!, and between Chesapeake 
Iltilities Corporation and Beth W .  Cooper. is filed hcrcwith. 

No. 001-1 1590. 

NO. 001 - 1 1590. 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 2007 Form 10-K Page 91 



Exhibit 10.19* 

Exhibit 10.20* 

Exhibit 12 

Exhibit 14.1 

Exhibit 14.2 

Exhibit 16 

Exhibit21 

Exhibit 22 

Exhibit 23.1 

Exhibit 23.2 

Exhibit 3 1 . 1  

Lxhibit 3 I .2 

Exhibit 32.1 

Exhibit 32.2 

Performance Share Agreement dated January 23.2008 for the period 2008 to 2009. pursuant 
to Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Performance incentive Plan by and between Chesapeake 
Utilities Corporation and S. Robert Zola. is filed herewith. 

Performance Share Agreement dated January 23.2008 for the period 2008 to 201 0, pursuant 
to Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Performance Incentive Plan by and between Chesapeake 
Utilities Corporation and S. Robert Zola, is filed herewith. 

Computation of Ratio of Earning to Fixed Charges is filed herewith. 

Code ofEthics for Financial Officers is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 14 ofthe 
Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31. 2006. File No. 

Business Code o f  Ethics and Conduct is filed herewith. 

Letter Regarding Change in Certifying Accountant is filed herewith. 

Subsidiaries o f the  Registrant is filed herewith. 

Published Report Regarding Matters Submitted to Vote of SecuritS, Holders is incorporated 
herein by reference to Part 11. Item 4 of the Companj 's  Quarterl) Report on Form 10-Q for 
the period ended June 30. 2006. File No. 001-1 1590. 

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm is filed herewith. 

Consent of Preceding Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm for years 2006 and 
2005 is filed herewith. 

Certificate of Chief Executive Office of Chesapeake LJtilities Corporation pursuant to 
Exchange Act Rule 13a-l4(a). dated March 10. 2008. is filed herewith. 

Certificate of Chiei' Financial Officer of Chesapeake [Jtilities Corporation pursuant to 
Exchange Act Rule 13a-l4(a). dated March I O .  2008, is filed herewith. 

Certificate of Chief Executive Office of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation pursuant to I8 
I;.S.C. Section 1350. dated March IO. 2008. is filed herewith. 

Certificate of Chier Financial Officer of Chesapeake lltilities Corporation pursuant to 18 

001-1 1590. 

C. Section 1350. dated March I O .  2008. is filed hcrcwith. 

* Managemcnt contract or compensator! plan or agreenicnt. 
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Chesapeake Utilities 
Corporation has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned. thereunto duly authorized. 

CHESAPEAKE UTILITIES CORPORATION 

By: /s/ JOHN R. SCHIMKAITIS 
John R. Schimkaitis 
President and Chief Executive Officer 

Date: March 10. 2008 

Pursuant to the requirements ofthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934. this report has been signed below by the following 
persons on behalf o f the  registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated. 

/S/ f<AL,PH )I. ADKINS 
Ralph J .  Adkins. Chairman of the Board 
and Director 
Date: February 20. 2008 

/ S I  JOHN R. SCMIMKAITIS 
John R. Schinikaitis. President. 
Chief Executive Officer and Director 
Date: March 10. 2008 

/S/ MICI-IAEL. P. MCMASTERS 
Michael 1’. McMasters. Senior Vice President 
and Chief Financial Officer 
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer) 
Date: March I O .  2008 

i s /  RICI-IARD BERNSTEIN 
Richard Bernstein. Director 
Date: February 20. 2008 

/S/ E U G E N E  1-1. 13AYARD 
Eugene 1-1. Dayard. Director 
Date: Februarj 20. 2008 

/S/ 7‘110MAS 1’. I-1ILL. J R .  
Thomas 1’. Hill. .Ir.. Director 
Ihtc: I-cbruar! 20. 2008 

/ S i  .I. I’tYI-X MAli’I’IN 
.I. Pctcr Martin. Director 
Ih te :  Februar), 20. 2008 

/S/ CA1,VERI A .  MORGAN. J R .  
Calvert A.  Morgan. Jr..  Direclor 
Date: Februar) 20. 2008 

!S/ ‘I’HOMAS J .  BRtSNAN 
Thomas 1. Hresnan. Director 
Date: March 10. 2008 

I S /  WALTER d .  COL.EMAh 
Walter J .  Coleman. Director 
Dale: Fchruar! 20. 2008 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

To the Board of Directors and 
Stockholders of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 

The audit referrcd to in our report dated March I O .  2008 relating to the consolidated financial statements ofChesapeake 
lltilities Corporation as ofDecember 3 1.2007 and for the year then ended, which is contained in Item 8 ofthis Form 10- 
K also included the audit of the financial statement schedules listed in Item 1 5 .  These financial statement schedules are 
the responsibilit? ofthe Chesapeake Utilities Corporation's management. Our responsibilin is to express an opinion on 
these financial statement schedules based on our audit. 

In our opinion such financial statement schedules. when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial 
statements taken as a whole. present fairl). in all material respects. the information set forth thercin. 

I S /  BEAK11 MILLER COMPANY LLI' 
Beard Miller Companq LLP 
Reading. Pennsylvania 
March I O .  2008 



Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and Subsidiaries 
Schedule I1 

Valuation and Qualifying Accounts 

Additions 
Balance at 

Beginning of Charged to Other Balance at End 
For the Year Ended December 31, Year Income Accounts (') Deductions ") of Year 
Reservc Deducted From Related Assets 

Reserve for Iincollectible Accounts 

$66 1.597 $8 18,561 $26,190 ($554.273) $952,075 ........................................... " ................................................................................................................... ........................................................................................................... " ........................................................... 

( $ 6  

( $ 5  " 

.............................. 

......................................... ............................................................................... .................................... 1,111,11111.1 I", .... .." 

" Recoverim 
" Oncollectihlc accounts charged ol'f 



EXHIBIT 12 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges 

F o r  t h e  Y e a r s  Ended D e c e m b e r  31, 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 

Income from continuing operations N3.217.787 $10,747.965 $ I  0.698.81 1 $9.686.449 $10.079.483 
Add .  

Income taxes 8,597,461 6.999.072 6.472.220 5,771,333 6.032.445 

Interest o n  indebtedness 6539,004 5.721.912 5.076.666 5.145.243 5,527,601 
Amortization o f d e b t  discount and expense SO, 635 52.081 55.792 61,421 89.155 

Earnings as adjusted $28,650,286 $23.747.613 $22.582.335 $20,973.892 $22.080.129 

Fixed Charges 

Portion of rents representative of interest factor 245,399 226.583 278,846 309.446 35 1.445 

Portion of ren ts  represenwive of interest factor $245,399 $226.583 $278.846 $309.446 $35 1.445 
Interest o n  indebtedness 6,539,004 5,721,912 5.076.666 5.145.243 5.527.601 
Amortiiatioii o f d e b t  discount and expense 50.635 52.081 55.792 61,421 89.155 

Fixed Charges $6,835,038 $6.000.576 $5.41 1.304 $5,516.1 10 $5,968,201 

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges 4.19 3 96 4 17 3 8O 3 70 



EXHIBIT 21 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 
Subsidiaries of the Registrant 

Subsidiaries State Incorporated 

Eastern Shore Natural Gas Company 
Sharp Energy. Inc. 

Chesapeake Service Compan) 
Xeron. Inc. 

Sam Shannahan \'ell Companq, Inc. 
Sharp Water. Inc. 

Chesapeake OnSight Services LLC 
Peninsula Energy Services Company. Inc 

Peninsula Pipeline Compan). Inc. 

De I aware 
Delaware 
Delaware 

Mississippi 
Ma? land 
Delaware 
Delawarc 
Delaware 
Delaware 

Subsidiaries of Sharp Enerw,  Inc. State Incorporated 
Sharpgas. Inc. Delaware 

Tri-County (ias Co.. Incorporated Maryland 

Subsidiaries of Chesapeake Service ComDanv State Incorporated 
Skipjack. Inc. Delawarc 

BravePoint. Inc. Georgia 
Chesapeake Investment Compan! Delawarc 

Dciauarc Eastcrn Shorc Rcal Estatc. Inc. 

Subsidiaries of SharD Water, Inc. 
Sharp U'atcr of Idaho. Inc. 

Sharp Water of' Minnesota. Inc. 

State Incorporated 
I l c l a ~  arc 
1)elanarc 



EXHIBIT 23.1 

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on S-8 (Nos. 333-01 175% 333-941 59. 
333-124646, 333-124694 and 333-124717) of our reports dated March 10.2008. relating to the consolidated financial 
statements, the effectiveness of intemal control over financial reporting. and financial statement schedules ofChesapeake 
Utilities Corporation appearing in the Companj ‘ s  Annual Report on Form IO-K for the year ended December 3 1.2007. 

/SI BEARD MILLER COMPANY LLP 
Beard Miller Company LLP 
Reading, Pennsylvania 
March 10. 2008 



EXHIBIT 23.2 

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

Chesapeake IJtili ties Corporation 

W e  hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-3 (Nos. 333-63381 and 
333-121524) and Form S-8 (Kos. 333-01 175. 333-94159. 333-124646. 333-124694 and 333-124717) of Chesapeake 
Utilities Corporation of our report dated March 13. 2007 relating to the consolidated financial statements and financial 
statement schedule which appears in this Form 10-K 

PKICr~WATERI-lo~JSEcOOPERS I.LP 
Boston. Massachusetts 
March 10. 2008 



EXHIBIT 31 .I 

CERTIFICATE PURSUANT TO RULE 13A-I4(A) AND 15D-I4(A) 
UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS ADOPTED 

PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 

I .  John R. Schimkaitis. certify that: 

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of  Chesapeake Utilities Corporation: 

Based on my knowledge. this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material 
fact necessary to make the statements made. in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made. not 
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report: 

Based on my knowledge. the financial statements. and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in 
all material respects the financial condition. results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for. the 
periods presented in this report: 

The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and 
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-1 j ( e )  and I jd- l j (e))  and internal control over financial reporting (as 
defined in  Exchange Act Rules 13a-I5(f) and l j d - I j ( f ) )  for the registrant and we have: 

designed such disclosure controls and procedures. or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be 
designed under our supervision. to ensure that material information relating to the registrant. including its 
consolidated subsidiaries. is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the 
period in which this report is being prepared: 

designed such internal control over financial reporting. or caused such internal control over financial 
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability ol' 
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles: 

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and prescnted in this 
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures. as of the end 01' 
the period covered by this report based on such evaluations: and 

d )  disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred 
during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the casc of an 
annual report) that has materially affected. or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's 
internal control over financial reporting: and 

a) 

b )  

c )  

Thc registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I havc disclosed. bascd on our most recent evaluation ol'intcrnal control 
over financial reporting. to the registrant's auditors and thc audit comniittec of thc registrant's board o f  directors (or 
persons performing the equivalent functions): 

a) all significant deficicncics and material wcakncsscs in thc design or operation of intcrnal control over 
financial reponing which are reasonably like11 to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record. process. 
summarize and report financial information: and 

an)' fraud. whether or not material. that involves management or other employees who have a significant 
rolc in thc registrant's internal control ovcr financial reporting. 

b )  

Ilatc: March I O .  2008 

IS1 JOHN R. SCHlMKAITlS 
John R. Schimkaitis 
President and Chief' F,xecuti\ e Officet 



EXHIBIT 31.2 

CERTIFICATE PURSUANT TO RULE 13A-I4(A) AND 15D-I4(A) 
UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS ADOPTED 

PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 

I .  Michael P. McMasters. certify that: 

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation: 

Based on my knobledge. this report does not contain an\ untrue statement of  a material fact or omit to state a material 
fact necessary to make the statements made. in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not 
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report: 

Based on my knowledge. the financial statements. and other financial information included in this report. fairl! present in 
all material respects the financial condition. results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of. and for. the 
periods presented in this report: 

The registrant's other certifving officer(s) and 1 are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and 
procedures (as  defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-I5(e) and 15d-l5(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as 
defincd in Exchange Act Rules 13a-I5(f) and I jd-1 5( f)) for the registrant and we have: 

designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to bc 
designed under our supervision. to ensure that material information relating to the registrant. including its 
consolidated subsidiaries. is made known to us by others within those entities. particularly during the 
period in which this report is being prepared: 

designed such internal control over financial reporting. or caused such internal control over financial 
reporting to be designed under our supervision. to provide reasonable assurance regarding the rcliabilit) of 
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles: 

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this 
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures. as ofthe end of 
thc period covered b) this rcport based o n  such waluations: and 

disclosed in this report any change in thc registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred 
during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of  an 
annual report) that has matcriall! affected. or is reasonably likel), to materially aflcct. thc  rcgistrant ' s  
internal control over financial reporting: and 

a )  

b )  

c )  

d )  

'I'hc registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed. based on  our most recent evaluation ol'internal control 
over financial reporting. to  the registrant's auditors and the audit conimittcc 01' the registrant's board 0 1 '  directors ( o r  
persons pe r l iH"g  the equivalcnt functions): 

all significant deficiencies and material wcakncsses in the design or operation 01' internal control over 
linancial reporting which arc reasonably likcl! to adversely al'l'cct thc registrant's abilit! to record. process. 
summarize and report linancial inlormation: and 

an! fraud. whether or not material. that invol\ es management or other cmplo!,ees w h o  havc a signilicant 
role in the registrant's internal control over linancial reporting. 

a )  

b)  

Date: March I O .  2OOX 

1s: MICHAEL P. MCMASTERS 
Michael f', McMasters 
Senior Vice President and C'hicI' Financial Olliccr 



EXHIBIT 32.1 

CERTIFICATED OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
OF CHESAPEAKE UTLlTlES CORPORATION 

PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED 
PUSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 

I .  John R. Schimkaitis. President and Chief Executive Officer ofChesapeake Utilities Corporation, certify that. 
to the best of my knowledge. the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation (“Chesapeake”) for 
the year ended December 31, 2007. filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof ( i )  full! 
complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) ofthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934. as amended. and (ii) the 
information contained therein fair11 presents. in all material respects. the financial condition and results of operations of 
Chesapeake. 

/ S i  JOHN R. SCHIMKAITIS 
.John R. Schimkaitis 
March 10. 2008 

A signed original ofthis written statement required by Section 906 ofthe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of‘2002, or other document 
authenticating. acknowledging. or otherwise adopting the signature that appears in typed form within the electronic 
version ofthis written statement required by Section 906. has been provided to Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and will 
be retained by Chesapeake lltilities Corporation and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff‘ 
upon request. 



EXHIBIT 32.2 

CERTIFICATED OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
OF CHESAPEAKE UTLlTlES CORPORATION 

PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED 
PUSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 

I ,  Michael P. McMasters. Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Chesapeake Utilities 
Corporation. certify that, to the best of  my knowledge. the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Chesapeake Utilities 
Corporation ("Chesapeake") for the year ended December 3 I .  2007. filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission 
o n  the date hereof (i) fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 
1934. as amended. and ( i i )  the information contained therein fairly presents. in all material respects. the financial 
condition and results of operations of  Chesapeake. 

IS/ MICHAEL f'. MCMASTERS 
Michael P. McMasters 
March 10. 2008 

A signed original ofthis written statement required by Section 906 ofthc Sarbancs-Oxley Act of 2002. or othcr document 
authenticating. acknowledging. or otherwise adopting the signature that appears in typed I'orni within the electronic 
version ofthis written statement required by Section 906. has been provided to Chesapeake ljtilitics Corporation and will 
be retained by Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and furnished to the Securities and Exchangc Commission or its staff 
upon request. 



Upon writlen request, 
Chesapeake will provide, ,free of 
charge, a copy of an,v exhibit to 

the 2007 Annual Report on 
Form 10-K not included 

in this document. 




